
McAlester City Council 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Revised Regular Meeting Agenda 
Tuesday, September 11, 2012- 6:00pm 

McAlester City Hall- Council Chambers 
28 E. Washington 

Steve Harrison ... ......... .... ......... .. .... .......................... ...... .................. ... Mayor 
Weldon Smith .... ........ .... .. ......................... ........................ .... ........ Ward One 
John Titsworth .. ........................... ..... .................... ............ .... ....... Ward Two 
Travis Read ........................... .. ... ....................................... Ward Three 
Robert Karr ........ ..................................... ... ..... ................. .......... . Ward Four 
Buddy Garvin ............... ..... .... ... .......................... .... .... .. ... Ward Five 
Sam Mason, Vice Mayor .................................................... .. ...... .... Ward Six 

Peter J. Stasiak ......................................... ...... ......................... City Manager 
William J. Ervin ............ ... ....................................................... City Attorney 
Cora M. Middleton ....................................................................... City Clerk 

This agenda has been posted at the McAlester City Hall, distributed to the appropriate news media, and posted on 
the City website: www.cityo[mcalester.com within the required time frame. 

The Mayor and City Council request that all cell phones and pagers be turned off or set to vibrate. Members of the 
audience are requested to step outside the Council Chambers to respond to a page or to conduct a phone 
conversation. 

The McAlester City Hall is wheelchair accessible. Sign interpretation or other special assistance for disabled 
attendees must be requested 48 hours in advance by contacting the City Clerk's Office at 918.423.9300, Extension 
4956. 

CALL TO ORDER 
Announce the presence of a Quorum. 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Linda Lowber, First Baptist Church 

ROLLCALL 

CITIZENS COMMENTS ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 
Residents may address Council regarding an item that is not listed on the Agenda. Residents must provide their 
name and address. Council requests that comments be limited to five (5) minutes. 



September 11, 20 12 McAlester City Council Agenda- Regular Meeting Page 2 of5 

CONSENT AGENDA 
All matters listed under the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by 
one motion. There will not be separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be removed 
from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

A. Approval of the Minutes from the August 28, 2012 Regular Meeting of the McAlester 
City Council. (Cora Middleton, Ciry Clerk) 

B. Approval of Claims for August 22 through September 4, 2012. (Toni Ervin, ChiefFinam'tal 
Officer) 

C. Concur with Mayor' s Re-appointment of John Goodyear to the McAlester Community 
Tree Board for a term to expire September, 2014. (Steve Hamson, Mqyor) 

D. Concur with Mayor' s Re-appointment of Doris Hackler to the McAlester Community 
Tree Board for a term to expire September, 2014. (Steve Hamson, Mqyor) 

E. Concur with Mayor's Re-appointment of Karen Harrison to the McAlester Community 
Tree Board for a term to expire September, 2014. (Steve Hamson, Mqyor) 

F. Concur with Mayor' s Appointment of David Cantrell to the McAlester Community Tree 
Board for a term to expire September, 2013. (Steve Harrison, Mqyor) 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING 
All persons interested in any ordinance listed under Scheduled Business shall have an opportunity to be heard in accordance 
with Article 2, Section 2.12(b) of the City Charter. 

• AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 2425 WHICH ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL 
YEAR 2012-2013; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

• AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 106.71(A) AND 106.71(C) OF THE 
McALESTER CITY CODES FIXING WATER RATES; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

SCHEDULED BUSINESS 

1. Tabled - Discussion and possible action, on a Resolution put forward by the Gaines 
Creek Association of Free Will Baptist opposing the removal of figurines depicting U.S. 
Military Kneeling in Silent Prayer from the 3rd Street intersection and asking the City of 
McAlester to reverse the decision and reinstall the silhouette. (Peter]. Stasiak, Ciry Manager) 



September 11 , 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda- Regular Meeting Page 3 of5 

Executive Summary 
Discussion and possible action, regarding silhouettes on City street signs. 

2. Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2425 which established 
the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a 
severability clause; and declaring an emergency. (Toni Ervin, ChiifFinancial Officer) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance. 

3. Consider and Act Upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance 2235 Sections 106.71 
(a) and 106.71 (c) of the McAlester City Codes Fixing Water Rates and Declaring an 
Emergency. (Toni Ervin, Chief Financial Officer) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve Ordinance amending Sections I 06.71 (a) and I 06.71 (c) of the McAlester City Codes. 

4. Consider and act upon awarding bid in the amount of $27,171.00, for one new and 
unused One Ton Truck for the Waste Water Maintenance Department. (Peter]. Stasiak, 
Ciry Manager) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the award of bid to Nix Ford, McAlester, Oklahoma, for the purchase of one (I) New and Unused 
2012 F-350 I Ton Truck. 

5. Consider, and act upon, the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of 
McAlester and the International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) Local No. 2284, 
effective July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013 and to include 2012-2013 Memorandum of 
Understanding. (Peter]. Stasiak, Ciry Manager) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to accept the IAFF 2012-2013 Collective Bargaining Agreement; this includes a 2012-2013 Memorandum 
of Understanding. 

6. Final review of Marketing Alliance Agreement with City Attorney changes and 
comments. (Peter]. Stasiak, Ciry Manager) 

Executive Summary 
The agreement was approved on August 28, 2012, subject to City Attorney changes. This is a final review of 
Market Alliance Agreement with City Attorney recommended changes. 

NEW BUSINESS 
Any matter not known or which could not have been reasonably foreseen prior to the time of posting the Agenda in 
accordance with Sec. 311. 9, Title 2 5, Oklahoma State Statutes. 

CITY MANAGER'S REPORT (Peter J. Stasiak) 
• Report on activities for the past two weeks. 



September 11 , 2012 McAlester City Council Agenda- Regular Meeting Page 4 of5 

REMARKS AND INQUIRIES BY CITY COUNCIL 

MAYORS COMMENTS AND COMMITTEE APPOINTMENTS 

RECESS COUNCIL MEETING 

CONVENE AS McALESTER AIRPORT AUTHORITY 
Majority of a Quorum required for approval 

• Approval of the Minutes from the August 28, 2012 Regular Meeting of the McAlester 
Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, Ciry Clerk) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending 
September 4, 2012. (Toni Ervin, ChiefFinam·ial O.ffiter) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 6, final review of Marketing Alliance 
Agreement with City Attorney changes and comments. (Peter]. Stasiak, Ciry Manager) 

ADJOURNMAA 

CONVENE AS McALESTER PUBLIC WORKS AUTHORITY 
Majority of a Quorum required for approval 

• Approval of the Minutes from the August 28, 2012 Special Meeting of the McAlester 
Public Works Authority (Cora Middleton, Cz!J Clerk) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item B, regarding claims ending 
September 4, 2012. (Toni Ervin, ChiefFinandal O.ffiter) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 3, an Ordinance amending 
Ordinance 2235 Sections 106.71 (a) and 106.71 (c) of the McAlester City Codes 
Fixing Water Rates and Declaring an Emergency. (Toni Ervin, ChiefFinandal O.ffiter) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 4, awarding bid in the amount of 
$27,171.00, for one new and unused One Ton Truck for the Waste Water Maintenance 
Department. (David Medlry, PE, Dimtor of Utilities) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 6, final review of Marketing Alliance 
Agreement with City Attorney changes and comments. (Peter]. Stasiak, Ciry Manager) 

ADJOURN MPW A 



September 11,2012 McAlester City Council Agenda - Regular Meeting Page 5 of5 

RECONVENE COUNCIL MEETING 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Recess into Executive Session in compliance with Section Title 25 Section 307 (B) (4) et.seq. Oklahoma Statutes, to wit: 

1) Proposed executive session pursuant to Title 25, Sec. 307 (B) ( 4) for Confidential 
communications between a public body and its attorney concerning a pending 
investigations, claims, or actions, more particularly: City of McAlester v. Randy Green, 
Case No. C-06-844; Jerry McCormick v. McAlester, USDC ED OK 11-CV-
166; Michelle & Jerry McCormick v. McAlester, et.al., USDC ED OK 12-CV-62 

RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION 
Take any action as a result from Executive Session. 

ADJOURNMENT 

CERTIFICATION 
1 certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on this __ day of 2012 at a.m./p.m. as 
required by law in accordance with Section 303 of the Oklahoma Statutes and that the appropriate news media was 
contacted. As a courtesy, this agenda is also posted on the City of McAlester website: www. cityo(mcalester. com. 

Cora M. Middleton, City Clerk 



Council Chambers 
Municipal Building 
August 28, 20 I2 

The McAlester City Council met in Regular session on Tuesday, August 28, 20I2, at 6:00P.M. 
after proper notice and agenda was posted, August 27, 2012, at II :25 A.M. 

Call to Order 
Mayor Harrison called the meeting to order. 

Mother Stephanie Swinnea, All-Saints Episcopal Church gave the invocation and lead the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

Roll Call 

Council Roll Call was as follows: 

Present: 

Absent: 
Presiding: 

Weldon Smith, Travis Read, Robert Karr, Buddy Garvin, Sam Mason & Steve 
Harrison 
None 
Steve Harrison, Mayor 

Staff Present: Peter J. Stasiak, City Manager; Brett Brewer, Fire Chief; Mel Priddy, Community 
Services Director; David Medley, Utilities Director; William J. Ervin, City 
Attorney and Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Citizen's Comments on Non-agenda Items 

There were no comments. 

Consent Agenda 

A. Approval of the Minutes from the July 24, 20I2 Regular Meeting of the McAlester City 
Council. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 

B. Approval of the Minutes from the July 3I, 20I2 Special Meeting of the McAlester City 
Council. (Cora A1iddleton, Ci[y Clerk) 

C. Approval of the Minutes from the August I4, 20I2 Regular Meeting of the McAlester 
City Council. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 

D. Approval of Claims for August 8, 20I2 - August 2I, 20I2. (Toni Erz;in, Chi~/ rznancial 
Officer) In the following amounts: In the following amounts: General Fund- $187,971.02; 
Parking Authority - $82.56; Nutrition - $2,320.95; Landfill Res./Sub-Title D - $2,950.00; 
Tourism Fund - $339.84; SE Expo Center - $16,385.28; E-911 - $127,722.95; Economic 



Development - $6,600.00; Fleet l\Iaintenance - $10,021.35 and Dedicated Sales Tax -
$2,500.00. 

E. Designate Saturday, October 27, 2012, as "Make a Difference Day" for the City of 
McAlester. (Cora Middleton, C'i[y Clerk) 

F. Concur with Mayor's Appointment of Gary Bryant to the McAlester Ethics Board for a 
term to expire July, 2015. (Stm I lani.ron, Mqyot) 

G. Concur with Mayor's Appointment of Steven Brook to the McAlester Personnel Board 
for a term to expire July, 2016. (Stm 1/ani.ron, A1c!J'Or) 

H. Approval of $700.00 expenditure for Mayor Steve Harrison to attend the Oklahoma 
Municipal League 2012 Annual Conference & Exposition to be held in Oklahoma City, 
September 25-27. (Peterf. StaJiak, City A1am~ger) 

I. Consider and Act Upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign the Emergency Medical 
Technician Basic, Intermediate and Paramedic Field Clinical Agreement between 
Kiamichi Technology Center and the City of McAlester. (Brett Brewet~ Fire Cbiej) 

J. Accept and place on file the McAlester Public Schools Quarterly Update on Roofing 
Project. ~Vlar.rba Gore, Superintendent) 

Councilman Read requested that item "F" be removed for individual consideration, Councilman 
Smith requested that item "I" be removed for individual consideration and Mayor Harrison 
requested that item "H" be removed for individual consideration. 

A motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Read to approve 
Consent Agenda items "A, B, C, D, E, G, and J." 

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

Items removed from Consent Agenda 

F. Concur with Mayor's Appointment of Gary Bryant to the McAlester Ethics Board for a 
term to expire July, 2015. (~tm Ilarri.ron, Mayor) 

A motion was made by Councilman Karr and seconded by Vice-Mayor Mason to concur with 
the Mayor's appointment of Gary Bryant to the McAlester Ethics Board for a term to expire July, 
2015. 

2 



Before the vote, Councilman Read stated that he opposed this appointment because of the 
possible conflict of interest with Mr. Bryant's employment with the McAlester Regional Health 
Center and Councilman Smith's membership on the Hospital's Board ofDirectors. 

Councilman Karr asked if this was a new appointment or a re-appointment. 

Mayor Harrison commented that Councilman Read had made a good point and if there was 
agreement with Councilman Karr and Vice-Mayor Mason he would withdraw this appointment. 

Both Councilman Karr and Vice-Mayor Mason agreed and Mr. Bryant's appointment was 
withdrawn. 

H. Approval of $700.00 expenditure for Mayor Steve Harrison to attend the Oklahoma 
Municipal League 2012 Annual Conference & Exposition to be held in Oklahoma City, 
September 25-27. (Peter]. Stmiak, City Manq~er) 

Vice-Mayor Mason moved to approve the expenditure of $700.00 for Mayor Steve Harrison to 
attend the Oklahoma Municipal League 2012 Annual Conference & Exposition to be held in 
Oklahoma City, September 25-27. The motion was seconded by Councilman Read. 

Before the vote, Mayor Harrison commented that he had removed this item from the Consent 
Agenda so it could be voted on separately. There was no further discussion and the vote was 
taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith & Titsworth 
NAY: None 
ABSTAIN: Mayor Harrison 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

I. Consider and Act Upon, authorizing the Mayor to sign the Emergency Medical 
Technician Basic, Intermediate and Paramedic Field Clinical Agreement between 
Kiamichi Technology Center and the City of McAlester. (Brett Bmver, h'r<: Chief) 

Councilman Read moved to authorize the Mayor to sign the Emergency Medical Technician 
Basic, Intermediate and Paramedic Field Clinical Agreement between Kiamichi Technology 
Center and the City of McAlester. The motion was seconded by Councilman Karr. 

Before the vote, there was a brief discussion among the Council regarding whose insurance 
would cover the students when they were riding on the ambulances. 

Chief Brewer informed the Council Kiamichi Vo-Tech carried a policy that would cover the 
students. There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

3 



AYE: Councilman Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith Titsworth, Read & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

A motion was made by Councilman Read and seconded by Councilman Smith to open a Public 
Hearing to address an Ordinance amending the budget for Fiscal Year 2012-2013. There was no 
discussion, and the vote was taken. 

AYE: Councilman Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried, and the Public Hearing was opened at 6:10 P.M. 

Public Hearing 

• AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA, 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2425 WHICH ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET 
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

There were no comments from the Public or the Council and Councilman Smith moved to close 
the Public Hearing. The motion was seconded by Councilman Read and the vote was taken as 
follows: 

AYE: Councilman Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried and the Public Hearing was closed at 6:11 P.M. 

Scheduled Business 

1. Discussion and possible action, on a Resolution put forward by the Gaines Creek 
Association of Free Will Baptist opposing the removal of figurines depicting U.S. 
Military Kneeling in Silent Prayer from the 3rd Street intersection and asking the City of 
McAlester to reverse the decision and reinstall the silhouette. (Peter]. S taJiak, City J\1ana,ge1) 

Executive Summary 
Resolution put forward by the Gaines Creek Association of Free Will Baptist. 

Mayor Steve Harrison opened the floor stating that he was thankful for everyone in attendance 
and thankful to live in a country where religion and government could be discussed openly. He 
then explained the procedures to be followed during the meeting. 

Manager Stasiak explained how Mr. Wallace had become active in supporting the City of 
McAlester in various ways. He added that over a year ago Mr. Wallace had addressed the 
possibility of installing the silhouettes throughout the City. Manager Stasiak explained that a 

4 



pilot project had been conducted to see if the silhouettes would withstand the weather and not 
damage the street signs. He stated that about six (6) or seven (7) months ago he received a call 
from a citizen stating that the sign of the cross was being displayed on City property. He added 
that he contacted the City Attorney and the City Attorney advised that in keeping the City neutral 
the silhouettes displaying the symbol of the cross should be removed. Manager Stasiak stated 
that he then instructed a City crew to remove any silhouettes that displayed the sign of the cross 
and return them to Mr. Wallace. He commented that about a month ago another citizen had 
brought this to the attention of the newspaper and other media outlets. 

City Attorney Ervin explained that the memorandum that had been furnished to the Council by 
Joe Ervin and in his opinion the law expressed in that memorandum was solid. He added that 
given the facts of this particular case that when the law was applied it would be a violation of the 
establishment clause of the U.S. Constitution. He further stated that in the City Attorney's 
opinion it would be a violation of the law for the City to put those silhouettes up. 

Mayor Harrison stated that since this item had been placed on the agenda by the public, the 
citizens would be allowed to speak. 

Mr. James Prince, Lonnie Palmer, Jr., Fred Morrison, Brett Jarrett, Art Dodd, Kevin Davies, 
William Murdock, Jay Stanfield, Julie Steadman, Joe Watkins, David Choate, and Tim Russell 
each addressed the Council regarding their concern of the removal of the silhouettes and support 
for having the silhouettes reinstalled on the City streets. 

Mayor Harrison clarified that the issue was the symbol of the cross. 

There was discussion among the Council regarding the grey area that this fell into, possibly 
tabling this matter for further information, and the support from some of the Council for the 
reinstallation of the silhouettes. During this discussion, Councilman Smith moved to table this 
matter for more information on what the law said. The motion was seconded by Councilman 
Titsworth. 

Mayor Harrison once again thanked everyone for attending the meeting. There was no further 
discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

Mayor Harrison recessed the Council for a short break stating that the meeting would reconvene 
at 7:25P.M. 

The meeting was reconvened at 7:25P.M. 

2. Discussion of CDBG 2012 Grant. (Peter]. StaJiak, Cz!J Manager and Damry Baldwin, Execuli!Je 
Directm~ KEDDO) 

Executive Summary 

5 



Review of the CDBG 2012 Grant. 

Manager Stasiak addressed the Council stating that at the last meeting he had reported that the 
City had missed out on the funding for the 2012 CDBG Small Cities Grant because of a grant 
still being open from 2010. He explained that the City of McAlester had received the notice of 
removal of contract conditions which meant the City could proceed on the 2010 CDBG Small 
Cities Grant. He informed the Council that the issue was that the City did not have enough of the 
2010 Grant completed to apply for the 2012 Grant. He stated that Danny Baldwin for KEDDO 
was in attendance to help answer any questions. Manager Stasiak reviewed the steps that had 
been completed for the 2010 Grant and informed the Council that the individual that had been 
working with the City on the CDBG Grants was no longer employed with KEDDO. He added 
that going forward to help insure that this would not happen in the future Pam Kirby would be 
involved in the grant application process. 

There was a lengthy discussion among the Council, Manager Stasiak and Mr. Baldwin regarding 
the communication problems, how McAlester was unique in the grant application process, how 
Mr. Baldwin would be the individual involved in the oversight of the application process going 
forward, at what point the City lost illegibility for the grant, if there had been any notice from the 
Oklahoma Department of Commerce regarding the possible loss of the funding, if there were any 
alternatives to KEDDO for grant administration, if KEDDO actively searched for other grants 
that might be available to the City, what the City did to insure that grant money was spent in 
time, establishing a better line of communication and if the City would continue to use KED DO 
in the Future. 

Manager Stasiak stated that he would make that decision next week. 

There was no vote on this item. 

3. Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2425 which established 
the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a 
severability clause; and declaring an emergency. (Toni Emin, Cbiefrznanda/ Offim) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance. 

ORDINANCE NO. 2436 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA, AMENDING 
ORDINANCE NO. 2425 WHICH ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2012-2013; REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

A motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Read to approve 
ORDINANCE NO. 2436, amending Fiscal Year 2012-2013 to appropriate funds for the award 
from the Strategic Military Planning Commission. 

Before the vote, Manager Stasiak explained that this would be a matching 10% Grant to improve 
an area at the Airport to allow the landing of a C130 plane. He added that it was a grant in the 

6 



amount of $133,000.00 with a matching amount of $14,780.00 from the City. There was no 
other discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Mason to approve the EMERGENCY CLAUSE. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Read and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

4. Consider, and act upon, authorizing a change in the rental fee for Bren Air Inc. from 
5.0% of gross fuel sales to a flat rate of$.10/gallon of fuel pumped at the McAlester 
Regional Airport. (Peter.J. Sta.riak, City Manager) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve and act upon a change in the rental fee for Bren Air Inc. from 5.0% of gross fuel sales 
to a flat rate of $.1 0/gallon of fuel dispersed and authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

A motion was made by Councilman Garvin and seconded by Councilman Karr to authorize a 
change in the rental fee for Bren Air Inc. from 5.0% of gross fuel sales to a flat rate of 
$.1 0/ gallon of fuel dispersed and authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

Before the vote, Manager Stasiak addressed the Council informing them that the terms of the 
contract with Bren Air, Inc. was to pay the City a monthly rental fee of 5% of the gross fuel sales 
at the airport. He added that staff had analyzed the surrounding cities and states for comparable 
rates and found that no communities were receiving a percentage of gross sales. He stated the 
average for Oklahoma cities was $.09/gallon, the surrounding states with similar size populations 
was $.052/gallon with the average for all communities referenced to be $.071/gallon. Manager 
Stasiak commented that with the rising cost of fuel, Bren Air, Inc. has had to raise its cost to 
furnish fuel to cover the 5% fee paid to the City and with this change it would allow Bren Air, 
Inc. to remain competitive in the market of fueling aircraft. 

There was a brief discussion, among the Council regarding the contract, extending the contract 
an additional five ( 5) years, amending the current contract, maintaining the March, 2015 
expiration, changing the language in section 8 of the contract to commence on March 1, 2010, 
more local communities included in the analysis and making this an amendment to the contract 
that was currently in force. 

Mayor Harrison restated that motion for clarification as "amend the current contract in item 2 
only, rental fee of ten (10) cents per gallon of gross sales (not to include fuel used by Second 
Party) effective on sales on or after September 1, 2012." The duration of the contract remains 
the same. There was no other discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

7 



AYE: Councilman Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

5. Presentation and Update on the Southeast Expo events and tourism. (feny I,-yn11 11/i!wn, 
SoutbeuJ! E\po Munu.gn) 

Executive Summary 
Update on Southeast Expo events and tourism. 

Ms. Wilson addressed the Council regarding the tourism efforts at the Expo Center. She 
commented that the Expo worked with the other groups in the City and then further reviewed 
some of the events that had been held at the Expo, the attendance at those events and some future 
events that looked very promising. She commented on the project that the Expo had planned to 
team up with the Chamber in the future. 

There was discussion among the Council including Ms. Wilson concerning the Expo's efforts, 
the need for all of the City groups to work together to promote and market the City, if 
improvement of the air conditioning situation could increase the use of the Expo, the available 
parking at the Expo, the capacity of seating at the Expo, the financial information concerning the 
Expo breaking even, the ability to track infonnation about hotel use, and if the Expo could 
regularly report on its' marketing and tourism efforts. 

There was no vote on this item. 

6. Consider, and act upon, a Partnership Request by Tanaye Harvanek, McAlester Area 
Chamber of Commerce, for the use of the Southeast Expo Center for the Veteran's Job 
Fair scheduled for September 19, 2012, by partnering with them in the amount of 
$315.00. (ferry L-ynn 11/i!wn, SoutheuJ! E\po A!unuger) 

Executive Summary 
Consider approval ofPartnership Request in the amount of$315.00. 

A motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Titsworth to approve a 
Partnership Request by Tanaye Harvanek, McAlester Area Chamber of Commerce, for the use of 
the Southeast Expo Center for the Veteran's Job Fair scheduled for September 19, 2012, by 
partnering with them in the amount of$315.00. 

Before the vote, Ms. Harvanek addressed the Council explaining the proposed job fair for the 
Council. 

There was a brief discussion among the Council concerning the number of employers expected 
to participate and how they could sign up to participate. 

There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth & Mayor Harrison 

8 



NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

7. Consider and act upon awarding bid in the amount of$79,640.00 for one new and unused 
Industrial Backhoe-Loader to YellowHouse Machinery, McAlester, Oklahoma. (;\lei 
P1idc{y, Diredor Commmzi(y S eJ7!ia.~) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve the award of bid to YellowHouse Machinery for Industrial Backhoe-Loader. 

A motion was made by Councilman Read and seconded by Councilman Smith to award a bid in 
the amount of $79,640.00 for one new and unused Industrial Backhoe-Loader to YellowHouse 
Machinery, McAlester, Oklahoma. 

Before the vote, Mel Priddy informed the Council that sealed bids had been opened on August 
10, 2012 for a new and unused Industrial Backhoe-Loader. He added that only one bid had been 
received and it was from YellowHouse Machinery located in McAlester and the bid had been 
under the budgeted amount of $81,004.00. 

There was discussion among the Council regarding the lack of bids, if the City was going far 
enough outside the City to advertise these bids, if there was any feed back on why no other 
companies bid on the item, if the City advertised on the internet and additional cost that could be 
incurred from out of town bids. 

There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

8. Consider, and act upon, the final Contractor's Pay Estimate No. 8 for the Water 
Treatment Plant Filter and Clearwell Improvements. (Dm;id Medley, Director of Utz/itie.~) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve final payment to the Water Treatment Plant Filter and Clearwell Improvements Project 
to J.S. Haren Company of Athens, Tennessee. 

A motion was made by Councilman Smith and seconded by Councilman Read to approve the 
final payment for the Water Treatment Plant Filter and Clearwell Improvements Project to J.S. 
Haren Company of Athens, Tennessee. 

Before the vote, David Medley addressed the Council informing them that all of the work had 
been completed on this project and the City's Engineer on the project, Mehlburger Brawley had 
recommended approval of the Final Pay Estimate. 

There was no other discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

9 



AYE: Councilman Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

9. Consider and Act Upon, bids that were opened on Tuesday, August 14, 2012. The City 
opened bids for the 2010 CDBG Water and Sewer Improvements Project. One Contractor 
submitted a bid, C.S. Day & Associates, LLC of Tahlequah, Oklahoma. The bid was in 
the amount of $325,190.00. Due to the bid being considerably higher than the City's 
budgeted amount and the receipt of only one bidder, the Engineer, Mehlburger Brawley, 
and the Utility Department recommends rejection of bid and direction to re-bid. (Dcmid 
Aled!qy, Director of [ TtiJitie.~) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to reject the bid received on August 14, 2012 by C.S. Day & Associates and directing the Utility 
Department to re-bid the project. 

A motion to reject the bid reject a bid received on August 14, 2012 by C.S. Day & Associates 
and directing the Utility Department to re-bid the project was made by Councilman Smith and 
seconded by Councilman Read. 

Before the vote, David Medley addressed the Council informing them that the only bid received 
for the 2010 CDBG Water and Sewer Improvements Project had been considerably higher than 
the City's budgeted amount and the Engineer, Mehlburger Brawley and the Utilities Department 
Staff recommended the rejection of the bid and allow the project to be re-bid. He added that the 
re-bid project would include a reduced base bid with alternate bid items to allow the reduction of 
the Project to be within the budgeted funds and this would not interfere with the City receiving 
the 2013 CDBG Small Cities grant. 

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

10. Consider, and act upon, authorizing a water purchase contract to Pliant, LLC a Wholly 
Owned Subsidiary of Berry Plastics referred to as a "Wholesale Customer". (Peter[. 
StaJiak, City Manager) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve and act upon a water purchase contract with Pliant, LLC a Wholly Owned Subsidiary 
of Berry Plastics and authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Mason and seconded by Councilman Karr to authorize a 
water purchase contract with Pliant, LLC a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Berry Plastics and 
authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

10 



Before the vote, Manager Stasiak addressed the Council informing them that Berry Plastics 
located at the Steven Taylor Industrial Park had been classified and charges as a City User for 
water rate charges in the past. He stated that Section 106-72 of the City Code addressed "Special 
contracts, rates for large users" and it authorized the City Council to enter into special contracts 
for water services for customers exceeding 300,000 gallons of usage per month. Manager 
Stasiak stated that classifying Berry Plastics as a Wholesale Customer would reduce the rate 
charged to $3.23/1000 gallons of usage and if adopted would go into effect September 1, 2012. 

There was discussion among the Council regarding the impact on the City's revenue, passing the 
cost of upgrading the system to the customers, how the staff planned to adjust the budget to 
absorb the reduction in revenue, the City's need to support its' major industries, the cost 
associated with the production of water, where the City was currently at in the water revenue and 
the need to do things for the City's businesses. 

There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

11. Tabled from previous meeting. Consider, and Act Upon, an Agreement with Marketing 
Alliance for Professional and Creative Services to develop a McAlester Logo and 
Marketing Plan for an estimated total price of $18,500. (Peter]. 5 tasiak, Ci(y i\:1an~~er) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve agreement with Marketing Alliance for an estimated total price of $18,500. 

A motion was made by Councilman Read and seconded by Councilman Garvin to approve an 
Agreement with Marketing Alliance for Professional and Creative Services to develop a 
McAlester Logo and Marketing Plan for an estimated total price of $18,500. 

Before the vote, Mayor Harrison made the following statement and requested that it be included 
verbatim in the minutes. "A recent editorial in the McAlester News-Capital expressed 
opposition by the publisher of that newspaper to the proposal to engage a professional marketing 
firm to help our city develop a new logo and a marketing plan. She categorized it as "$18,500 
worth of spit" and suggested that we ask for community volunteers instead. I do not know if this 
opposition represents a bias against hiring trained and experienced professionals in the field of 
marketing or just a belief that the money could be better spent elsewhere. 

Of course, the money to fund this contract is appropriated out of the Tourism Fund. The 
hotel/motel tax is the source of the Tourism fund revenue and it is restricted by the voters to 
tourism uses only. Therefore, none of the other alternate uses suggested in the editorial would be 
a legal use of these funds. 

The desire to hire Marketing Alliance to develop our logo and marketing plan is based upon their 
proven ability to get results. They have already helped us produce our international award­
winning tourism brochure. It is a natural next step to engage them to broaden the effort into a 

II 



marketing plan. They have been very successful in doing this for other cities. As one example, 
consider Sumter, South Carolina. Continental Tire selected Sumter and recently broke ground 
on a new plant that will create more than 1,500 jobs. Would this have happened without the 
implementation of a professionally-developed plan that marketed Sumter's assets? Who knows? 
But the point is, why not explore ways that McAlester can better market itself? And why not use 
a professional with a proven track record to help us do that? 

I take no issue with the publisher exercising her right to oppose this proposal in print. 
Reasonable people can and do disa!:,Jfee on issues all the time. However, I believe her editorial 
does a disservice to this council and its immediate predecessors in two important aspects. First is 
that we are somehow unwilling to deal with the "hard stuff' and spend our time on (in her 
words) "fluffy stuff." She also asserts that we are willing to spend "a whole bunch of money ... to 
do a bunch of unnecessary stuff' due to a desire to leave a legacy. It is my strongly held belief 
that each and every member of this council is motivated solely by what that councilman believes 
is best for our city. Although we don't always agree with each other, I never question a 
councilman's motivation and it saddens me to see Ms. Johns make such an accusation. 

The second aspect of the editorial that I found very discouraging is the apparent lack of 
knowledge displayed concerning progress on the so-called "hard stuff' that she says we are 
ignoring. Is she not aware of the multi-million dollar investment we have made to upgrade our 
water plant? Does she not recall that we have repaired and improved all of our water storage 
tanks and now have them under permanent maintenance contracts? Is our water system as good 
as it's going to get? No, it's not, but we're not finished yet either. The effort continues. 

She wants meth houses tom down. Her own newspaper has published information that more 
than 80 dilapidated structures have been demolished in the recent past. The council authorized 
condemnation of nine more very recently. Again, the effort continues. 

Perhaps most puzzling of all, she indicates that we are unwilling to deal with the hard stuff of 
getting our "roads repaired, not just patched." In the August 15, 2012, edition of the News­
Capital was an article under the headline "Council seeks bond election." This article detailed 
how the council had called an election to refinance bonds at lower interest rates and to use the 
savings to invest as much as $13 million for street improvements - all at ZERO cost to the 
taxpayer. This article was published in her own newspaper only three days before this editorial. 
My hope is that the News-Capital will be an active and vocal supporter of this ballot initiative to 
fix our streets. 

In summary, I think this council and this city administration are tackling the "hard stuff' and are 
making progress every day. I hope that at some point, the News-Capital will decide to play a 
more positive role in helping us achieve that progress." 

Ben Capers and Steve Woodam addressed the Council concerning the need for a marketing plan 
for the City of McAlester and the support this project would receive from the local hotels. 

There was discussion among the Council regarding the Councils expectations that all concerned 
groups work together, that the current MPower contract included this type of project in its work 

12 



plan, the funding that MPower had received, MPower's role to advise the City on this type of 
project, the need to make clear what items were funded in the contracts and what items were 
unfunded, the need for the City Attorney to review the contract, and what this project would 
actually look at changing. 

Vice-Mayor Mason commented that if the Council voted to fund the plan, it would be pending 
the City Attorney's review 

Tanaye Harvanek addressed the Council suggesting that they look within the State for a company 
that could perform this type of project. She commented that as the Chamber Director it was her 
duty to keep money in the City and if not in the City at least within the State. 

Councilman Karr asked what the City Manager thought of this project. Manager Stasiak stated 
that the City did need a new marketing plan and he was excited to see pulling all the entities and 
some of the businesses together. 

Councilman Garvin asked Ms. Harvanek what the Chamber had done for the City of McAlester. 
Ms. Harvanek informed the Council that the last two (2) years the Chamber had brought the 
National Boat Racing competition to the City, they had partnered with the City to create the 
Tourism guide, worked with the local hotels and had worked with both Main Street and Pride in 
McAlester. 

Councilman Titsworth stated that he felt that the City had funded MPower and their contract 
stated that MPower would do this project. 

Mayor Harrison restated the motion as "to authorize the agreement with Marketing Alliance 
subject to the City Attorney's review and returning it to the Council at the next meeting with his 
recommended changes." 

There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Read & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: Councilman Titsworth 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

12. Consider, and act upon, authorizing the submittal of Certification for Competitive Bid 
and/or Contract with the Oklahoma Department of Commerce. (Peter]. Jta.riak, Ci(y 
Manager) 

Executive Summary 
Motion to approve and act upon the Certification for Competitive Bid and/or Contract with the Oklahoma 
Department of Commerce and authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

A motion was made by Vice-Mayor Mason and seconded by Councilman Smith to authorize the 
Certification for Competitive Bid and/or Contract with the Oklahoma Department of Commerce 
and authorizing the Mayor to sign the agreement. 

13 



Before the vote, Manager Stasiak informed the Council that the Governor had money available 
for Economic or growth projects within defense communities around the State of Oklahoma. He 
stated that working with Mark Jordan of MDSA, a project at the McAlester Airport to 
reconstruct the load out pad to handle the parking of C-130 military aircraft in emergency cases 
only. He added that currently the runway can handle the weight of such an aircraft as long as it 
was moving but once it stopped the runway would be damaged. He stated that an area north east 
of the existing terminal would be rebuilt to allow the parking of a C-130 aircraft. Manager 
Stasiak added that the $133,000.00 was from the Oklahoma Department of Commerce through 
the Governor's funding and the City's match would be $14,778.00 for a total project amount of 
$147,778.00. 

Councilman Read asked if the runway was long enough to accommodate a C-130. Manager 
Stasiak stated that yes it was most of the time. 

There was no further discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Mason & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried. 

New Business 

There was no new business. 

City Manager's Report 

Manager Stasiak reported that the City of McAlester had an employee, Glen Kerns, retiring after 
forty four ( 44) years. He then invited the Council to attend Mr. Kerns' retirement celebration 
Friday, at 2:00P.M. at the Expo. 

Remarks and Inquiries by City Council 

Councilman Smith encouraged the citizens to report any problems with their cable service. 

Councilman Titsworth had no comments for the evening. 

Councilman Read commented on the quality of the Parks in the City and the Parks Department. 

Manager Stasiak stated that Mr. Kerns had kept a detailed diary of every tree that he had planted 
in the City of McAlester. 

Councilman Karr thanked the Street Department for the cleaning of the streets and curbs and 
asked that the citizens help keep grass clippings out of the streets. 

14 



Councilman Garvin thanked Manager Stasiak for the work he had gotten accomplished or put 
into motion. 

Vice-Mayor Mason also encouraged the citizens to promptly report any problems with cable. 

Mayor's Comments and Committee Appointments 

Mayor Harrison had no comments for the evening. 

Recess Council Meeting 

Mayor Harrison asked for a motion to recess the Regular Meeting to convene the Authorities. 
Councilman Smith moved to recess the Regular Meeting and convene the Authorities. The 
motion was seconded by Councilman Titsworth. There was no discussion, and the vote was 
taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried and the meeting was recessed at 9:34P.M. 

Reconvene Council Meeting 

The Regular Meeting was reconvened at 9:36P.M. 

Adjournment 

There being no further business to come before the Council, Councilman Smith moved for the 
meeting to be adjourned, seconded by Vice-Mayor Mason. 

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Councilman Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith & Mayor Harrison 
NAY: None 

Mayor Harrison declared the motion carried, and the meeting was adjourned at 9:36P.M. 

ATTEST: Steve Harrison, Mayor 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

15 



CLAIMS FROM 

AUGUST 22, 2012 
THRU 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2012 



g: 1.S ]l..,_'vl 

9 CLA:::ES FOR 9/11/12 

ITEM # 

AT & T """"ON::.J ::JISTANCE 

:::-2012(18224G71 

"A" PLLTS LAWN ;:'.ERVlCE 

',] AL'A ~APE? CC:. 

I -l.Z-lJlJ"I 12 

I-:?4~221 

r-;;::r;;::90441C'"7 

I< c,t•J1 

r-::_sr)u: 

A~L~:rJTl-l.-NCF: C0~1MUN1CATIU 

T-20l;;:CS2941J9'; 

l -.-~ .r:..l1:C::F,lCA'\l RL:___ CROSS 

::: -·;u 1 

I-1)'"7'/9 

:::-1190/9 

:::-1196/9 

I -11 98/9 

I-120:;:/9 

]-"211/9 

::--91 ::_ 

I -.51 f.- 841. 

T-::.~lfl96t;1.001 

I-.51 

:::-Sl081U29.0C"l 

REGULAR IJEPARTMENT PAYMEl\1 kEG:::STEK 

G/ L ACCOU}JT NAME 

OJ -5215315 

Cl -SS423CI8 

01 -SS422lH 

lJESCR:PTI::-;N 

TE:LSFH:JNE UJJ PHONE 1JT:::L-~C:NG DlSTANr-=:E .SV.S 

ClF'F.KATTNG .S 1JP FAPER COPIERS-CITY H,Il.. 

COhTRACTEr: SF: CCJ:t\'T:KACT KECFf"T10NI?·T !:'E:E 

CCJNTF<ACTL~; 2E ~ONTF<ACT REC~FTIONIST FEE: 

OPERATING S'JP OXYGSN AND S"JPPL:::ES-El1S 

REt'AlRS & MAT RFB17ILD CHLO:.:.IN.n.T::Jf< MT:P 

REPAIRS & MAl F\YBUlLD C:H~::_;R:::NATOR MT"P 

lNTERNET .SF.f<\l IKTE?,NET 2ERVIl'F.-F~RE ST #2 

;NTF.RNET ?ERV :::NTJ:.:RNET S:t'RVTCE-CEHETEEY 

:::NTEF<NF.T :=:;ERV :::NTERNET sv;::-p;_mr,-:-c WKS ~Jl~'= 

STRE!c:T l<.EfAIR MISC St~Pf-'LTF.S A2. NE~:_,r:::_ 

REt'Alt<,S & MAT MT SC ?EPA:::? & MhlN":' l TE~S 

REFAIR.S & HAT MISC: R~E-'AlR & !'JJI.IN: ITEMS 

F\EFF.I.RS & 1'-1Al 11:::.sc REPAIR & F .. JUNT ::_ TEMS 

FEf"ATR2 & MAI M:::.sr REFAlF\ & F.AINT -:-TF.M.S 

R£?AlK2 & HJ\T HI?C: F\EFJl.IF\ & Y.L.n.lN'l' ::: ~EM2 

FE?AIF\5 & MAl !'1l2C REF.n.TK & HJI.INT ::::El-15 

RE:t-'.n.IR & I"'..A_;_N SMALL PARTS AS NEE:::1E[ 

REFJ\IR? MAl M_;_sc KEPAIR & Y.AINT 

KEI--JdR2 & MJ'.I MI.SC RF.Fl..TF & Y.AIN':" ITEJv:S 

REFAIR2 & HAT MISt: FELI\IF\ & Y .. JUN"~ ITE:~s 

PAGE: 

CHECK# 

[101305 

ct.14Il1 

Jb141 ':, 

ll(l:_i)1""7 

4:::8 

:61418 

f,14lb 

:J6141 r 

..423 

l, 

23 b. 1 b 

~' 

453. 

62. 9~ 

. 9b 

1 6~ . 

35.96 

.CJS 

::_ 3. 98 

. 94 

l..l 



9/CI4/2012 9:1 S AM REGULAR ;::;[fJARTMENT PAYMEN'l REGIS~F:R 

t-.L,':KE'::': CLAIES FOR 9/11/:2 

GE~ERAL FUN[; 

ITEM # G/L ACCCJPKT NAI1E [1£SCRIFTICN 

cc,ntlnued 

,-,1-E·-, 

I-S:6S712J. 

:::-S1C82371. :J01 

r-;:;:::-c1219~, 

CENT£? F::, -:-t~T 5::1\L:kGY ARKL 

"i'A5TI:.NAL 

I-: 

I-1.22 SAPA 

I-S-7.2~·61-:"._2 

~-S-73629-12 

I-S--'111-:2 

1-~.-P (J: 1::.-1.2 

I<EPT 

l-:JKMC:::AJ Ud·>~S 

:::-OKl1C:.l\1 0861 c. 

G ,, ,~ F. EN r.n.~ c::E;.;TER, IN 

I-16202 

.:_ -1 C2 2_3 

T-~ 

1-164~3 

.:_ -1 ~~ ~ :-; 3 

I-l '2 

G.L,LT 1 ~--I l.J\ l'-?J.j1A._q_K 

J1 

U1 -~.21'::·314 

-ScES210 

C·1 -=·2143D2 

·'::1 -SS422CI3 

- ':·:: 42 31 ,, 

, 1 -Srn:;_c,. 1 o 

r-,1 

RE;-~.l\IF\S (, l'1Al XISr_· F<EPA:R & t1AlNT ITEMS 

RF:FAIRS & Y.Al MISC RF:PAI:K & Y..AIN: ITEJ'~S 

RF.PAJR;:; & Y.A1 MOT8?. fOR FAN 

STREE~ EEFAlk LABOR 

GAS IJT I L- dl7 VI LLJ'..G~ E.:... VL 

SMP.U, --:'001.3 :c:;c:aA l'1A2K 

OPE~l\TING S~J? 5PI: HOCL5, FOP C:FFICEF<;:; 

STREET RFFAIF\ 

STBEET KF:F-.l\ TK 1_ 

~Ol\ GRP.VEL 

':'ON GF\AVE.:... 

STREL:' k1::1-'AlR J c1 '0 TON GRAVEL 

SJREET REPA.::R 10C<' TCN GRJI.'v?L 

;:;T?.FT.T REPAT?. TCN GRF.VE:L 

STPF:ET ?.F:PAI?. 11JCJC' TCN G8.AVEL 

STREET REH..IR 1 r101~1 TON GRAVEL 

STF\EFT RFf l\ TR 1 TON G?.AVE~ 

~TREET RE?AIR : ~'0(1 -:'OK GRAVEL 

LEGAL FF:ES-MTHlY REJAINLR 

RSFAJ:-c::; & HAl :vi12::C RF:?ldR & l'1AI~T :::TEMS 

Rit-'AlR...:' & l'1Al YliSC REPATR & 1'1../'..I:-\T I'::'5::l-1S 

LLA::E l'i'l."r'EEN':' LEAS~ # 1 ~:;3 

REPldF<S & EQ;JI ?ME;\;T ?El\TAL 

STF\E:t:T F\EFJU:k ASPHALT & CONCRETE TOOLS 

STREET BELL..IR ASf'HALT & CONr:F:.ET5:: TOl--:·LS 

;::TF:.FET F\EFP..IR ASPHALT & CONCR£TE TOCLS 

STRF'FT RFt.l\ TR TPJ~CEOE f<EN-:-Al. 

RU'AI PS & fv!A 1 TF<..ACPOE RENTJ\l. WHEN KEED5:: 

PAGE: 

CHECK# 

~61423 

[161423 

061424 

UU4:J2 

c 614 36 

. :._: 614 36 

~· 614 3 ( 

~,, f-, 14 j 6 

0614Jf 

[16143 Q 

0614 3 6 

[1(~436 

CIC14 36 

436 

CJt,144n 

061440 

I) h 14 L] ~ 

1]6: 4 43 

CIEl443 

4 ~ .. 71 

.. 9. 39 

;3S.32 

98 3. 21 

(,ij 9 . 

03 3. 3S 

CJ3 

t.4 q. (10 

• (10 

321. f 4 

. 41 

3, 12 s. 

134. II 

1 c. oc 

s, l 

. S. r 1 

~(JCI. 

6 "Cj(J. 14 



g I _.::;I 2 ~~ 12 g: 1 S A!.f REGULAR [lF:PARTEENT PAYMEh"T REGISTER 

r;:..::::.-<:ET: C'8619 CLAIMS FOR 9/11112 

I-512:5807-7 

l-=l2:584U74 

:::Nc. 

I-98q2214942 

J:J:vJFL:.:E£NT INC 

:-Efl1tH?,F.Y P. TJ11BING, INC. 

I-1 Hs;:g 

CFFIC'E s;_ PFLY 

I- :J -: <; 31 ~) 

1- I T"iLEK TECENOL:J(_] I ES 

J & :::; FE:\C :::NG 

1-2 2 ~l81 

·-=:·JNSTR'JCT lGN INC 

I-29211 

LIB:C::STY F.L.:..:::;s INC 

:::Nc. 

I-t:"71h4 

I-104S'019-0D 

G/L ACCOUNT ~AME 

con'L1nued 

Ul -S4312Lrl 

(]] -53)12(17 

o: -:A?1 

Ul -S.431207 

Cll -:4 '31207 

Cll -S32120"1 

01 -S4J12Cll 

01 -:.d212LJ2 

·:..,} -5321202 

·~'1 -521121]2 

~ 1 

ll1 

308 

!JESC8 I Pi I OJ\ 

c:...cTnr:-;r::; AL~G UNI FCRM A~LCJV..TANCE 

CLCT:-JJKG ALLO UNIFORM A~L:JWANCE 

C.OTETNG ALLO lJNIFURl1 AL~ChiFJ\JCf: 

CLOTMTNG ALLO UN:::FORl1 ALLOWANCE 

CLOTHING ALLO ;_;NJ FOK'vf ALLOWANCI'.: 

\_'LOTHJNG ALLO l!l'<lFOI-IY. ALLOWANCE 

CLCJ':'HING AL~C UNI FCI?l.f ALLOWF.o1".JCE 

REHUR5 & MAT FAN FC.k BIG FEEEZER 

REPA:::RS c. Jv',JU AIC R~PAIR ?.T WTP 

::.::::_J:>TER Tvli\INT FEES 

OPFRF.TTNG Slli= ~ISC F::.CE SlJ:t-'!= LIES 

OPEkAT lNG S 1J!' MT ;:_:;( OFFICE S'JPPLIE.S 

O:t'ERATlNG ;:::~lt Mise· OFFICE SUP?LIE.S 

OPF.RATTNG s:JP Mrs; SJFPLIES 

MOJ'.:THLY SUPPORT FEE-CO'JRT 

.SOFTWA8F. HJ~ 1~1 MOJ\JTHLY .S'JPPORT FEE-l T 

RF.PJl..:::RS 1, H.H..I FE:W-:E ?EPAl? AT ':::EALilCK 

.5TRF.F- RF.PJ~::-R A:::.?HAL'I FOF<.. STREET ?JT 

:J::·ERAT~NC~ SUF fLAGS FOR STKTIO\'"S 

Rl::!:'AlR? ' MAC !'::lSC r<AlNT & PoPAik I~C:Mc' 

F<..EF.i\lR3 & HAI :V::lSC RJ:.:PAlR " MAl :.iT ::.":::EHS 

REPF.IF:.:3 & MA:!: XI.SC REPAIF & M.Al:\'l' 1 ::.sH.s 

f1E!:"'AlR::' & M.A.:: Jv:lSC Y..AlNT & .kl::FAlR J';~HS 

REiAIBS & MA: Y.JI.INT & R~T?,TR 1':"~HS 

PAGE: 

CHECK it 

2 61 <;4 4 

:'bl iJ t;.4 

(Jfl44iJ 

cJ(;1.:1!,4 

0614<; 4 

CJ6HI,4 

(1(1444 

DE144; 

C·614 :.,2 

()(-11 

~· 61 4 c: c' 

IJE] '1 (:_,,: 

46C 

~ 4 61:1 

At.fOlTNT 

1 ·11 . gc 

142.21 

-. 4 9 

~.3.49 

2 (1(1. 

24' .9J 



9/04/2012 9:15 A."i REGULAR I 1EFARTMENT PAYHENT REGISTER 

f'I<.CKET: 08619 CLAIMS tOR g/ll/:!_2 

·:nJI,CR SET: Cll 

GENERAL FUND 

ITEM 

I-18~944S9-(IL 

I-921-o: 

I-9:J'::,39C-l 

I-9U94r_:3 

1-91]943b-l 

I-9C:9"7CJ4-1 

:-t·'i" '"'" ~H::...~r::? 8f'fl::=-2: EGlJIPXENT 

l-l-Jf_'ll 

l-M'::A3J2043 

t-1lSOCd_:f<l Ivl TN:::CIPl~L :F.:AG 

I-2012-11 1 2 

t+~-.:AFEE & T.r...rT 

l-330426 

I-38042""7 

. -~-F- [1C!\I_t!..LL<3 F:2:ST'J.PJV\T 

. -N NOP 

I-AtTG 

I-DS60""7390 

T-CIS.CU' jC}l 

G/T ACCOl;l\IT NAME 

contln'Jed 

L'l -S.SO.S212 

o: -S~422C 3 

rn -S54R.:;::·<~ 

Ul -5548203 

RE:LI\IRS & HAl ;v:ISC M.4IN':' & REPAIR ITEMS 

KFf".l\TRS & M.L..I Hl.SC kEP.l\lR & :1AIN~ ITEMS 

STREET RFJ>AIK FOR!~TNG Jv'J .. T & .S',JPPL::.ES 

REPAIR & !1Al~ REFAlR l TEMS FOR LIG4TS 

REPA:R::: & !1AI M::-SC REt1~IR & l1AI~T :i~EES 

REP.li.IR.::: & MA I TA3LES FOR .ST::: ?E C'E!'c!TE? 

S~REF.T REP.Il..IR F:JRJ1I:Kc:; l1AT & SUFFLIES 

REFJUR.S & ~_.h_:_ Y.lSC REI'AIP & MF~::-NT TTH1S 

RE?AIRS & PtA::: Y.T SC PEI'h::-R & MA:::NT ITEMS 

REFAIR~-; & Jv'...hl ElSC PEPA_;_s & MA:::NT ITFJ.'JS 

STKEET REt"ldR FOFJVJ::-NG MAT & 5U??LIE5 

REI-'AlRS f,_ 11?.1 HIS::: REPAIR & MA:::NT ITEHS 

REPAIRS & HAI HISC REF.Il..IR & :vLAINT ITJ::HS 

REPAlP & !1AI;.J :REt~AIR ITEHS FOK L::-GilTS 

REPAIRS r, HAl HISC F<.t:Ln.rr.., & :V.tAlNl' ITEMS 

RFPAIK.~~ & :,r..;;-:- FF:NCF' REPAIRS A~ CE~"iETF?Y 

REF-Aik-:: & Y...hl FES!'::5:: REPAIRS ':ENNIS 

KEF-AIRS & ~l~T FF.NC? f..EPAIR A": MOJ\R.:;E 

KE~-AIR;:_~ & EJI.l FE;cJC"E ~EPAIRS A".: .:::BC 

C8N2T~.TJ\..NT.C:/L LEGAL FF:F:S 

CJNt:':_;:,Tl".NTS/L LF.C._~AL FF.EO 

c::_JNSt:~TANT:S/L LEGAL FEES 

C::'Ns;_;~ TAN f5 I L LEGAL FEES 

c::_;N.~'l_;::_, Tl\NTS/L LEGAL FEES 

C.lPER!-~.TTNG !RTSC·NFP lvl?J-~_~ 

FL'BLiCATLJN5 AS NEL1EL 

A~'VSPTL::_;_:_Nc & tL'BLlCATIJNS AS NEE=:1EL 

1-.LTo'ERTJS:::NG & fUBL:::CATION2 AS NEE:)Er' 

J~['VF.RTT~~::NG & rt~BL~C.l..TTONS AS NF.F.LF[' 

lJ2FT 

PAGE: 

CHECK# 

Cl6l4E< 

[161,:;61 

0614 61 

06:4 61 

Of14 61 

·=- 614 61 

061 ~ 61 

0614 62 

[1014 62 

0 Cl4 6.? 

1Jt14 62 

flbl4 

06:'._469 

~ 4 6 9 

1]61 4 69 

u614 ""72 

CJ614 7 3 

.:._: 61 413 

AMOUN: 

2 _5. 8.2 

::-P.10 

1. uiJ 

.22 

: (:4. 

. 02 

. 00 

1,f)8:J. 

l, ::-.(),11() 

67. 

13:-31 



9/()4/2ll12 9:1: At1 REGULA? LEPARTMENT PA"fl1ENT REG~:'lTER PAGE: 

9 c:.A:::M:=: F:JK g/11/12 

OET: 

r '_ll~~ IJ} GENEP,.;..L FUND 

:\;.J1E ~ TEM # 

I-I~C:394E6"7 

, . - , DI~-ClK ::NI1EPENlJENT L:::VJ 

I-022C,12-20UJ/?211 

1-2 J12Uh29t;CJ94 

1-2' 12002240~0 

I -2 ') 12 (: 82 2 4 1_' 8l1 

I- 2 (I~~ '_• s 2 2 4 0 8 D 

1-2 0 ::_ 2 C! 8 2.2 4 u t (1 

1-2 0 2_ 2 ~J 8 2 9 4 (: q s 

]-

BP..KNES 

:-7012LI9~S4108 

I-6~·1,lt-:J<J 

& E:NG. IN 

1-h.FJ3623 

1-4 c.sgg 
I -4 -:ue~ 

I -/1' 12 S 

I-4 8 30C: 

'1 • H. k:_/JI:J<S LL""Y:BE:!-1. 

G/L ACCOtTNT N.AMF 

-54317(J7 

:J1 -543l207 

'Cl -521 

-571S3:3 

'318 

2·1 -54312l1) 

o~ -::.sos2o2 

CHECK# 

CLOTHING ALLO UNIS'JFJ1 PIJ?CHASES IJ 61482 

CLOTHING h.LLO 'JNI FChl1 F'JW.::E-IASES :J61482 

crL-oK Fe's IN co:JT?ACT vHTH o:::L 06'._486 

EX1-'LC1YEF. T?J'-1V T?..ll.'/EL EXl'-HE.n.~ TH U\RE REF MTG c_: b 14 0 3 

ELE'CTRlr_: UTIL E:::,fCT :JTIL-KCM.AJ\ FAV 

F.LF:CTRI::-: UTlL E2_ECT 'LTT:L-KCI'1k? PARK 

[16::_ 311 

061371 

ELEC:RIC UTIL ELf,C':' 1ITIL-MCALE2TEP ~AKF F'ARK (1613~::. 

ELECT?TC UTI:L ELCXT l"TIL-MCALES~ER LF.KE PARK 06137: 

ELECTRIC U~lL ELECT UTIL-6' 17 VJI,LAGE B~VC 

FLF:CTRI C 'JT :;_1 ELECT UTI 1-D~T /:\J-.. J\C 

CO:-;JT?ACT MO\I<JING 

CON1:KACT L.ABO TJMFIRE fF.F.S-13 GAJ'viES 

?EPAI:K2 & MAl SAFETY SL"PPLIF.S FOR PARKS 

H~Ln.IR2 & Mld SAFETY St'PPLIES E'O!\ FAF<I<S 

CCNT?ACTr::Ji 

RE!=ATRS & MAT HIS:::: REPA::.R PAl-\':!:'S 

(1FE.FV ... TI;-JG SPP M:.SC OFFICE SlJPPL:LES 

OPERA~I~G Sl1 1: M.lSC OFFICE SlJI'l'LIES 

O~ERA':. 11<:.; :-;l!F M::::::c OFFICE .S'GPPLIES 

·:JFERA':::ING ~,TJF MI~'C ;::,FFICE St7PPL-:-E.s 

STF:.EET RLPh.I 

c: 614 04 

·:· 014 04 

IJ(}49S 

1lfl5D4 

AMOUNT 

2' 

E8. 59 

2,. sg 

.(1(1 

4CI.DCI 

. uc 

. 54 

1 f9. 81 

3 60. 

8 6. 81 

. oc 

. 44 

·no 

29.99 

54. :.u 
JS.3t; 

[, 1. 1 4 

4_<. 9S 



9/D4/:::CI12 9:l5 AM REGl!LAR L1£PARTMENT PAD1ENT REGJSTF:R 

:·SE:.19 CLAIMS FOR 9/11/]2 

',Tt\:_'CJP CJ1 

GENSRAL FUND 

IEM # G/l., ACCCUt-;T NAME DE.SCPIPTION 

continued 

I-46[1933 

-:'E: ALEXANDF:R 

~· 3·11 ~:-JE MO;\;'JMSNT PLACE 

I~ -T' 4:;; g 

T-12-0C698 

D.h.VIS 

l-2012CJ9D44111] 

I -9Jl 7 4 

TW::-1\ ~:TIES RE.h.DY l,11X 

I-10562 

l- 7 

I-1(18(11 

I - 1 (:911 

I-1(;962 

:--7108 0 

:::--; 11 J -, 

C-9893 C? 

l-OG 

I-C:9S4 

I -8 89[1 

I _qqr_'l] 

IJHJTf ET,~r TP-:-CAL SVPPLY 

. 'J01 

l-s.:.=..1ll~-:9~l. 

:::-SE;llL_ 7. (1Q::_ 

01 -5865218 

(11 -55443(18 

-5:_;4 43C:S 

:Jl -S86S218 

C1l -S26S212 

STREET RI:..FAlR SlJFPL:;:ES FO? STREET REF-Al 

STREET ?EPAlR SUH·-'~1E2 FCR .5TRF.F.T Rf::-JU 

CONTRACT LABO l~1P:::RE FEES-lCJ G.A.Y.F:S 

A'."JARDS PROGR...Z:.. AWJI.RD FCR AWARLJ l1INNER 

CONTRACT ~ABO 1JMFIRE FF:F.S-13 Gll.l1E.S 

REPAIRS & VIA~ PW'R s·,JP?LY FOR REPEAT£?.5 

STREET REL41R CONC?.F.TF p.._s N!-:£I1E:::· 

.STR~ET Rl:?ALR CO:--.JC:KETE AS NEEI1E~) 

STREET RE?Aif< COKCRETE FOR :C4TH .:.~T PJ'":" 

STREFT Rf.::--'ATR COKCRF:TE FOP 14TH .ST P,J'l 

2TREE1 REPAIR COl\CF<t:TE AS ~f.f[,E':J 

STREET REPAIR CONCRETI:.. AS 1\E:EIJE:ll 

S'.:'REE';:' REPAIR '_-ONCRETE AS :\Ef:TJFD 

S~'REET REPAIR CONCRETE JI.S NEELE[1 

STREET REP.h.IR ~ONCRE l'~ A2 N~ELEI' 

ST!-\EET SE:t'A.i.R COW.::RETE FCJR JI,Tll 

:::lTRF.F:T ?F:P.U..-:-R C:JNCRETE FCJ? 14TH 2~ FC::T 

STREET .PEPA:::R (':-JNC.hE:'E A:': NEE:,EL 

REPAIR:=; & :1F.::: ~ISC REF-AIR ITE;v:s 

REPAIP.S & :-1J.._._ Y.lSC kEt-'AIF<. ITE;,::::; 

OPERAT::-NG ~~IJC: !~ISC ~UFPI..,IE.:O 

OF~RF.T:::NG Jv:I2.C STJ~F~lES 

REPAIF<;:; & :1A::: Jv:ISC RE?AIF< ITE;v:s 

REPl:..IF<S & ~,q,::- MISC f<Ej::'.l'o..IR :TEES 

REPAIRS & Y . .Jd 1-1lSC REt-'Aih & 11.l\INT :::-::-E:M2 

REPAIRS Y.Al REPAIR & l1AINT ::::EMS 

REPAIRS & Y..A..:. ML~C RE:PAIR & 11AINT ::: -:'EM2 

RF.I-'A T R:::l f, V.A::: M I ;:;r_: RF.r·AI R & Mld:JT -:- ~E:t1S 

RF.PATRS & )'JJ\.I MISr=: REPFdR & l'LZ\INT ;-::-~HS 

REPAIRS & MA::: ~ISC PE?AIR & }I',AIN~ :::TEMS 

REFAIF<S 1. ~""\.::: Jv:1:3C RE:t='Aif< & MJUNT :::TE:tv:S 

REPldR~~ & \l.A~ FbC KF~-ATF< & IV:ATN'":" -:-TF.ES 

RFPAIR:::l & Ml-d >~1 RFh'\TK & MldN'":" ITF:>'i:::l 

PAGE: 

CHECK# 

(I 6 _._ ~l1 U 

Sl:J 

U0l 

001 

1J 61 ~lCJ 

=:,J(i 

c 61 ~1 0 

[1(,1515 

cn.JSl 5 

~' 61 ~) 1 ,_ 

c 61 

51 h 

518 

CIG1:-lo 

Al\.lO'JNT 

4 4. 4 '? 

32S. 

~ 19. lll 

684. 

2 99. 

sr;. 0 6 

22. 'lR 

134. 

1 g;::. 1 j 

142. 

4. 

14.H_ 

3. 



AH REG'LlLAR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT KEGISTER FAGE: 

t-ACKE.T: 't-~19 CLJ..H1:::.· FOR 9/11/12 

'.'Ft~:::>::-)F SET: ':: 1 

~1 GE?'J!:RAL FUND 

G/L ACCCUNT NAME DESC8 li'Tl ON CliECK# 

conLlnued 

RE?AIRS & MAl M:SC REP.l'dR &. MAINT ITEMS 

kEPAIRS & r1AI >11 REJ>AIR & MF.IN7 l ':'EHS 

REPAIRS & V.AT MI~C REPA:::P & ~ATNT ITEMS 

1-~-:21:-.:- CONF l\'C F:MPLCYEE T?AV 'IkAVFL EXP-~RAINlNG SCH::-~c 

T8':LAL: '3, ~~·4.CG 



CJ/()Lj/2:=,12 0:1:' h.Jv) 

.9 CLAIMS ?OR 9/:il/12 

\TF:~[ 1 C1-I SST: 'Jl 

[12 EV~JA 

r.t_:[I_TF:.ATE LJ..BS & Ml:KlNG 

r-su::_6442 

1-348221 

ALLF.GT.:;NCE ::::OMMG0Jir-.:A~IU 

_;_ -r. l~'"': & T 

'~· l .4TWC..)U~ 

l-LH:J6S 

::::-231925 

T-22L:C18224010 

r-:2Cl!9 

J-SlC./824 .UCJl 

I -c 1 ~52.00: 

T-S16SCI432,0C(:. 

I-s:6004S6.0i):_ 

1- S :'.. 6 K l c 2 S . !) IJ 1 

I-BSW53936=.. 

REGULAR DEPARTMENT PAl:'MEKT Rl:Gl2TEF 

G/~ ACCOlJKT NAME 

IJ.2 

l12 -S973203 

-59'4203 

02 -59--:'4203 

~1ESCRTP':'IOK 

LAB TESTING LAB TEST lNG FEES 

LAB TE2TlNG LAB TESTl~S FEES 

~AD TE2.TINC-i Ll'\_B TES':"ING FEE~. 

~"AB TE::::::'INS .:.,Ai3 TEST:::NG FEES 

REPAIRS E. Jv'cA::: TE:;'liNG SUPPLIES 

8t'ERATIKG SUP ?'AFLF:. FOR C:JP:::ERS-CTT"i HA 

F<EPATRS & MAl JANITCRI?.I SUPFLIE.S 

REPAIRS & Y.Al MONTHLY BOTTLE R£!\i'l'JI.L F~~ 

INTER;-.JET SFR'/ INT~RNET SVS-E WWM FL.Z'<~'\T 

CHF:MICALS 

CHEM.:.CAL2 

C-fE~ICJI.LS 

CHEEICA~,S 

EMFLCYSE TRAV 

JI.LTJM FCK '~JT r 

I:O:PF-SR STJLf'HATJ:.. F:JF< ',•,TTF 

Al'J11 E. c:::.;?:~F.R :--::;·,JLFA'lE:-'v'i!TF 

ALIJ11 & CCPPSF< s·c::_~.n.TF.-'v'if':"!=' 

ANNt:.r ... L CCJNF FEE 

TE~E!HCNE ;.JT~ PH:::.JNF: "JI.:.L-1:\TERNE: 

R:t<.:t-,.tU!-\5 & Ml~T MJSC REPA:::? & :V..JUNT .!.~EM.::: 

RFPJdRS 1, MAl Ml.SC I<.Et~AJ:? E. EATNT TTEHS 

REPJI.lR2 & Mi\T M:::.5C MAINT su:::r-LlES 

SEWER MAIN :PE HlSC RE~"AIK & l1AINT TTE~~3 

RE?AlF?. & MAl MI:?C MA::-NT SIJ??'LIES 

SF.WF.R MAI:J ?E ~11 SC RE?Al R & MAINT T TF:~~S 

SE'v.JE'R MAil\ 

51:..\!oJEtl. ~I~ 

LAB ':'EST-:-NG 

?1ISC KEFAIR & MA:::NT lTJ:..Y..S 

~~TSC REPAIR 1, MA:::NT lTEY..S 

TOXICin:· ".:'E.C:Tl:\~ F:JR W'~JM 

O~EF<A':"I~S .5l. F' lllSCCJNNl:..CT DOOR H.Zl....\TSEFS 

CHL:--11CALS \'JTI 

PAGE: 

CHECK# 

c 614C:9 

OE:4 09 

(1(,14 (19 

CIC:. 429 

C6lt; 10 

Cl61·11E:. 

1]6::.41 6 

4:6 

061416 

t•l!. u 1 

·~ 61 4 2 3 

~·61423 

061 tl23 

:.·6] 

!.)3 

061 

AMCITJNT 

ll s. 
90. Oll 

4_:JU. C•v 

313 9. 

131. := 9 

3,2~1.19 

4, 21 8. tJS 

4' . 4' 

2, l S2. 

3, 

100. (I() 

2 l :=~ • c, Cl 

~1.99 

I. 12 

4. 

2. 4 3 



7 012 9 : 1 s A11 RF.GULF.R IJEPARTMENT PAYMEKT .REG::-STER 

CLAIHS 9/11/12 

,::_-8 ~·~~491 Bf:.t:N:\TAG ~-;:JTJTJ-l'l'i!FST 

::--ssw=~42f,t . .2 

:1F EN\' IF:.. CIJ?.LJTY 

l-~,S2SS2f4 A 

B.ROTHEF<S 

:t:NTEF~-SISES, JKC. 

T-7C<._- 8 

I--~ IJ ::_ 

l L' S & r:: :PE;\J':"A.:... ~~NTF.K, ::-N 

1-1:, 

T -.3·1318 

:-I·~ TYLEJ< ~ECHNOLC<_-:;IES 

CHF.:-_·1'::- :::ER'nCES 

I -u 1 

=- 1~1' ::_ 

I-9',1401-~ 

l1E2-':-IEK f, A.SSJC. :Nc 

T -11 

G/L ACCOUNT NAM:E 

::_-c_,r~t:nued 

331 f, 

4203 

DESCRIPTION 

CEEMI CALS FOR WTP 

LAB TEST:::NG LAP. JEST SUF?L::.ES 

EMP~CY!\E TRAV TE::=:TING FEES F:=;.R. L.:C5::NSE2 

EM?LOYEE TKAV TEST FEES FOR LTCF.N;:;E:;. 

E~PLOYEE TRAV TE2JT FEES FOR ::...lCl,NSES 

S:REE:T PEPAIH CONCRE'::-E ~-oR S':'REET REFAI 

REP AI R5 & Y..A::: EOTOR REPA::: RS r OR Wi~M 

;..;Et-·A:::HS & Y.tAI l10T8? REF'lL::S'.S FOR E l~W11 

STR~ET REFld? LQTJ::: PEF:N':' RE!\'TAL FEE 

REPi"...I?S t. l1F.I REE-'l_L;;r_:EJ.iF:NT Rl-1 HETER 

OPER.l\'l.:.Nli ~;l_lf M15C CFFICE SlJP?LIE2 

01-'ERATING SUP ~"fiSC CFFICE 5 1JI'I'LIES 

FEF:S 

REPA:::RS & MJU l1I5C l".E:t,AlR & l1AT~T 

21::\·~'E:c\ VAIN ""' l1ISC P~FAI.R & l1Al:\T 

.R.Sf.l:U.c\5 & MJU M:cc REFAIF< & MAINT 

KEFAIR.C: & MAl l·LSC KEr-AIR & l1AINT 

SE'I'i!F.R 111-d!'J ?E 11:: SC RE~AIR & t1A~NT 

REPAIRS & t1AI MISC RF.PAIR " MA::.NT 

.::'EWER Mr"'\TJ\ F;:;: Y.l?.C REf' AIR & MJI.INT 

RF.f'AIF<:C & ;..u:..::: ElSC kEE'A:::R & !V!J..TNT 

EJ\G YEE-STl1 WTF< !.:GMT 

ITEHS 

lTEMS 

lTEr-1.5 

ITErE 

TTEM;:; 

lTE~S 

::-TF:MS 

:L-:'Er15 

RECYC::LINC; lEN 1\'F.TER FOR RECYCLE ::_'T:K 

PJI.GE: 

CHECK# 

%142' 

CJ 6 ::_ 4 ~] 

061432 

061433 

0014 '34 

,-, f,l4 _J6 

4.39 

C16H 4 2 

C614S2 

DE14 61 

(1(14 61 

06:4 61 

CI(J} 4 6] 

::_1(,14 t'2 

0614 62 

0 c ::_ 4 62 

oc:4 c.2 

0614 04 

(1614 6""7 

AMm_;!\'T 

J, 

92. 

31 C. llO 

221. 

1, 

. 25 

:4.42 

. l E 

s. 
48. c~ 

34. 8 3 

:54. 4 ~ 

82. 

2J. 



9:15 AM REGULAR DEPARTMENT FAYEENT REGl.S~ER 

()8619 C::~J..I~S FJR 9/11/12 

ITeM G/~ ACCCUNT N.Z\.IVJE ~JESCRlPTION 

!-1·1· <: Jv:I.C:.'.:'i ·a~sLS"r" WATER ccntlnued 

I- "":'.:j L.S3 

/ i, 994 

F5-'T~? ~E';I)S CJ...?ITJ. • .:.. 

I-O'J6:·7292 

T-CIS6~"73C.J., 

1-(__, ,,~.50 :Jcl ~1AN;..rrN::nm:::NG 

I-43Cl/3 

:"J'F:.::.lLLY ;;;:TO FJ...K'l2 

=- c 2 'H"I-4 4 8 '1 G 1 

C0~~1E?CE 

:-=:9201:2-#291~1f) 

I -312~ 1 

CHE::MlCAL 2F:R'.' 

ST.:Ltt·I.F.S ADVA..'\ITAGE 

1 ,·, 'I. H. 

T -31 i, 31J 

I -4 t..94 9 

l-4 ~. 2c l 

UJ~BE? 

I-4612EO 

REFR1:_;~f<~"'.T:::o~, I 

C-1L6 

T-1_,61230 

-S86623CJ 

-St662JO 

-59"74.31--; 

(1:2 -::)g-,.4 31--; 

U2 -S9743.:.."1 

-S9"73203 

02 -~-9-ll.JU3 

02 521 

(12 -~.C)-')j/J4 

-S9'tl212 

-59"742:=:•6 

-59742~16 

\.·2 -59"72202 

-59"73203 

Cl2 -5912202 

2 -s.g15218 

02 -']9"/~21~ 

U/ -S91S210 

-S9"7S211 

-59':')35 

REC"iCLIKG CEI\ WATER FOR RECYCLE C~P 

RECYCL.:! NC; CEN Wl~TEK FOK RECYC::. __ .~ CTR 

RECYCLING l'EN WT .... TER f'08 RECYCLE CTR 

AlJ\/ERT:::SI~S/f' PUBLICATIONS AS NEEDEI• 

J...[:'JERTI~I;-.;G/!-' hiBL:::CATICNS AS 0;"EEDEI' 

A:Jiv'FRTIS:::NG/P FUR~,ICATIONS A'::: NEECED 

AI1VEF<.TISING/P PTJBLlCA~IOKS A;;. NEEI•ED 

REF-'ATRS & Y..Al REPLACEMENT OFFICE Fll?..NIT 

REPAIRS & MAT >fl ;;.c PLANT SL~PPL~:ES NEE:)E 

REPAIRS & ~1J!..::: MlSC p;~ANT Sl!f'P~lES NEE'JE 

CliBG LOAN ~S9 CDBG - EIJI;;' #2903 

LAB TES'TT~S 

LAB TES':"::-Nr; 

FUEL EXt-'LN::CE 

CHEr1lCAL:.' 

CI-!F.r1:::CALS 

CHEH.:CA~S 

TEST ::.NG FESS AS NEEDEil 

TESTING FEES AS NEEDED 

GJ...L DIESE:L FOR WTP 

CHEMJ:CAL FOk V.'TP 

CAl:ST:C FCR WTE­

CHE~ICAL FC:R WTE-

OFF:F:.X:'I:\G St1f M:::SC OFF:::CE S~JP?Ll~S 

REFATR8 1-. MAI OFF:::CE SUFPT TES 

8PERAT-:-NG SllP ~ISC FICE SLJPPL:::Es 

~TKE?T RE:=.I'I.IF\ FORJv:lNG V...ATFR:iALS 5"CF\ 

STREE:T El:PAIF<. FOPY,ING MATER_:_AL2 ?OR 

RFF!l..IF<.? & MAI REPLACE W:iRF. F:JR LAKE PU11 

3TRF:F:T ?EPP...I? CONC?.ETE BLALIES 

~VA':"F.8 MFTF,R?. REPLACE>:~N'l '.-JTR >1TTER? 

WA'::'ER HAil\ KF FIRE E-IYilf<Al'.J':::S & GAT~ \7J~sv 

PAGE: 10 

CHECK# 

lil·1 

.:;73 

:J614 7 3 

00::.4 7.3 

tJ t14 81 

Gl i 2: 

c: 614 8"7 

:=: 614 f. I 

492 

[161 tj 99 

[1614qg 

() 61 '~ 99 

061 SD2 

s; 1 

s 1] 

(161:-dl 

ABOUNT 

14. E7 

. 34 

? 1.-

fE. 1 1 

1'.-[1 

~ 9. ,;'_ (' 

~ 9. ~ 2 

4 2. l t 

. '14'c. 

139 . .:; 

1, 

4' c 
4' 

2, 

1, 

:14. :?9 

29.98 

11' 

14. 

f 1,1 (1 . ~· 

E1.12 



9/,~14/;;:C!l.? 9: ~5 .LM REGllLA.q_ IJEPARTMENT PAYMI<::NT RES::.STEP 

(J8619 CLAIMS F'OR 9/lJ/12 

\"Et,~,UF< 2-'E:: rJ 1 

ITEM Gj:_ ACCOUNT KAME 

contlnued 

-:--Cfl835 

I -LI61 S3t: 

S38 

:r-:6123g 

1-- (,1 

I- 0 618 4 ~ 

I-0El342 

;:-(102~193 

I-062C:·96 

J 6 

I -L,6221·-

'JN~ TEL' PACK.F..GI~JS & SHIP 

I -1 I: 84 6 

I-.3~49"7129.002 

_:_-.:::1CJCJ1683. [101 

T-:31498~,~:2. 

02 -59152:'.1 

~'2 -59"75211 

-5915211 

-591 S211 

-:::9','42(1j 

C12 -597 32 CJ3 

DESCRIPTION 

1o/\.L.TER ~1E~GPS REP~ACEME:\'T ·~:8 METER?. 

\IJATI:.:K METE?S kE fLACEM>:NT WTR I1F.TGR.S 

b"A'fEK METE:k2 RET'LAC'E.'1l:NT WTF:. ME'::'EKS 

WAT:O:I~ MAJJ\; KE I11;:)C REF.L.1R ITEXS FOt\ 

WATE?, ~E~2:RS ?EP:...AC:SME:.JT W;'R l'-::ETEBS 

:?EWER r-lAIN RE REFAI:k SllFP:" IE:S FOR 

\~ATER MAI:J RE WA'IEK ~.INE: R~f'AJR ITEXS 

SEWFR :vJA::.N RE REPAIR SL!PI'L T ES F:JR 

WAT.t:R I'll~ TN RE WATER LINE KE~·AJR ITEM::~ 

WA~ER MAl~ ~E WX:'ER LINE f<EPA::.R ITP"'S 

SEWER XA:N RE REPA:R ~-;up~'LIES FO? 

WATGK MAIN RE 'WATER L~NE REPAIP ITF::!'-1.5 

WATER METER?. REPLACEMENT ~~ATFR HETER:3 

WATFR :v;E~ER3 REPLACE:--1l:N~ 'iJl~TER Hl:o:TE8S 

IA1ATE:K METE8.S ?EPLACEHENT 'LA1.L.TLR ME':'ERS 

WATER MJUN RE ·~ATER T,-:-NE RE~'AI8 ITEMS 

REPAIRS & IJ.P..-:- .:::HIPP.;:NG FFF: ?OF< SA!1Plf.S 

REI'AIPS & t-1J..2_ 1-':l;::;C RF.PA:!:R & MAINT ITEI'-12. 

REPA-:-R::; Y.Al MISC ~LJ:..1~T 21'PPLT?S 

?EPA_;_~;: & M.l'.. T MI SC' ELECT SllFF':: ... ll:S 

PAGE: 11 

CHECK-it 

CGE~L 

061 SJ 1 

OELS:~ 

j 61511 

J61511 

[16'._511 

G 61511 

CJCdS11 

(161511 

061 ':!12 

(1 c 1 ~ ::_ 2 

c 61512 

61 ~' 12 

C~E,1S 

h1:: 18 

TOTAL: 

.A."10UNT 

2 (!,'1. c (~ 
_594. 'li 

. 0(1 

::34. 

5S1. 13 

(, ~ 7 . 

2'4.59 

'8. 

2S8. UO 

. 16 

1 41.94 

2 H4. 

29.3R 

1(](1, ()(J 

1 (IG. S S 

:::.9. 91 



REGULAR DEPARTMENT YA'r:'ME~':' F<:t:G.:_;_;'fE.R PAGE: 12 

:J;;;(}9 C::~A:L:v15 FOR 9/11/12 

AIPPCf\T _i'\.UTHORI':'Y 

IT~M fl- ~-;j L ACCOUNT NAME ll~SCRIFTION CHECK# AMOUN~ 

,-,:-I: ~:::??T NATTCNA::... BANK 

FNB LOAN # 11 9 LOAN ~ l : 2,S1CJ.00 

ELECTRIC L'TIL l:,j UTI L-AI f"'PC'J< 2(,]1,(14 

Fl:NL TOTAL: s, 969. 



y;r~4/20l2 lj: 1 :J AM REGULAR DEF-ARTMENT FAYME!\!'~ REGJ STF:R PAGE: 13 

r'.4Ci<ET: . 9 CLAU1S FCR 9/11/12 

:EN~~~R ?.ST: Ul 

fl_;;,J[ 1 N'J:R::-TION 

G/L ACCOUNT NAME liESCRIPT:ON CHECK# AMOllNT 

CON';_?ACT SER\T REIJv:B MILEAGF FOR MEAL [IEL Li61414 

CuNTkF.C! SF.PV REIM5 Y.l LFAl~E l-1EA~ UFL Cifl 43.'-J 

1-2 L' l 2 0 9 0 4 4 11 4 CONTRACT SE?.'/ C:ONTRACT gf.AL DELIVEF:.Y 061437 135. 

l-2il12ll904411~ CONTPACT SER'J RF::::HB M:iLE.L.GE FOR MEAL CEL OE14 :37 99.90 

CJB -:_;.s49J02 CONTRACT SERV COKTRF~CT MEAL ~'ELJ:VERY 'J6c 44c, S?J. 

J-2C1209CI4412 1J COl\ TRACT SERV R:t::IY.B MI:_E.P.GF FOR HEAL 11El. 06144~, 4 6. 62 

;r·4 ?Ir:h~L::LE CHEYENNF. 

I-2012:JY·~44~:' -SS.:J9308 ::_-oNTRT...C:T SERV CCN':·p~L.CT MF.A:, DELI\TEF:.Y c (.14 g.:;_ 1 SCI. 

:::-201209:J4:1 l J l:l C8NTRACT .SERV REIM3 Jv:lLEAGE FO? l.JEAL LEL 4 91 1 ~j 7 . 

I-/0~222224D81 7ELEPHONE U~l F1-iONE IJTI:"-NUTRITICN 

FUND NUTR:::TTON TOTA::...: 



4/2:H2 9:15AM 

FACI<GT: (':2619 CLAH1S FOR 9/11/12 

\-FK:::·cm SET: ~J 

Fi_.~L' T0"CF<:: SM F1'ND 

I':'E:-1 # 

Ff<:)NTIEF COTJNTRY MARKET 

I -671 ·0A 

REGll~AR DEPARTMEN'; FAJ:'MENT .k.:t:GISTFR 

G/~ ACCOUNT NA~E C'E.SC':kltTICN 

-=:.css214 TOURISM EXPEN GAHE PLAN OKLA AD'lEFTISIN 

l'iAIN 2TFEET 1-' C(Jl\TKACT ~"I~H MCAr...EsTER MAIN 

TOlJ? I 5!'1 ~XPEN TOU?I s:1 3ROCH'JRE 

FlJNl1 T01JRISJv: FUNL' 

PAGE: 14 

CHECK# 

.(1() 

4 71 1, 16 6. (/ 

-:'OTAL: 4, 2 (12. 



9:1" AM 

iJCO:(·l9 CLAIMS fOR 9/11/12 

SE EXF·O CENTER 

l'l~M ¥ 

T-lCL~ 

PI~'Rl":::r: :=;~k\'I :E/h~F 

I-2·::1;::U8294~ 9S 

'JtH:I?ST ~.o.:_:)ING5, ~.P. 

l-P24 :,9(;3948 

REGULAF: DEPARTMENT PAYMENT Rf::GIST22:R 

G/ 1 ACCOUNT NAME 

-~·t·5420l 

:28 -~:6!A2.,_j 

-565431.5 

:28 -.'::-·054313 

DESCRJ l'T'IUN 

REPA::-R & t-1AIN t-AINT & ~lSC Sl__~PPLISS 

8.EPA~R & MAll\ PAIKT & MlSC .SUPP~IE5 

REPl\IR & !'1h~N LL..:::NT t. Ml.SC SUPFLIE.S 

REPAIRS ~< MAl ·:JUARTFRLY PEST co:nKCL 

ELEC':'RlC UTIL F1 l"TIL-EXPO F:V ?AI\K 

ELECTRIC UTI:.., ELI:X':' UTTL-EXFO 

F<..E.?AlR & EATN ~1CJ? SERVICE 

F"L'N[ SE EX?O CE:\TER 

PAGE: 15 

CHECK# 

061 Lj 59 

Cl614C4 

l1614: 

061 ~13 

T0TAL: 

1 (,_<. 2' 

~I 196. 41 

s, 853. 



9I,J412CI12 9::15 A..V! REGULAR CEPAR~Jv:ENT PA'r1'1ENT REG15TE? 

P•.'"l\ET: I)RG19 CLAH~S F'OR 9l1li:C2 

~LT: }1 

t~?J1S ITEM # 

Jv:FJ\1-i:SR :.C=:INCHI:: L)E\/ELOP 

I-_· S2 (1 ::_ 2-2 (1 J 0-2 011 

24 ;~~-·?.~E.Sn:::-< MAl:.;' :3TREE: 

;-ssz 1l2-/0lJI201l 

34 tEH~,nl~RGSR 3RJ..'I'JLEY, INC 

I -HC-12- _: 1-02 

L'E:PT (_'Jt11'1ERCE 

l-092C12-#12248 

V?J:::~ I:"\f MCALESTER 

1-082012-2010-2011 

'1-F<. (14fr1 ROB~::OCN :::NTEF<NATIONAL, 

I-C820l2-?Ul2-:C3 

GIL ACCOUl\T KArJIF: 

30 -5211lS-5 

14 STI69 ~WY ENG FEE-14~~ & 69 SWR ~XT 

C~BG I EDI~ 11 CQBG - EDIF CONT #:2248 

-5211361 

I:.CONOET C IT\lELOPMEt\1' 

PAGE: 16 

CHECK# .1\.i''.OUNT 

061t;C3 

j_ 1 166. 

. cc 

061t;92 .(Jil 

.311. 'H 



9/[14/21,1::_2 9:1~· H.M 

F'.t'<.C::KF~: -.:SC19 CIAIE.S FDR 9/11/12 

c"ET: c,1 

; -P 1.•1 

-~:_- l 11_-,1 :I hi:: 

FLEET t-1Al~TE!\ANCE 

ITF.M # 

:::-grJ95:9 

>91CI4:S 

I-91l14S3 

T-9:0561 

I -9::_ 

T-910691 

I -91 CE 9'' 

I-9:LU>l' 

I-91~094 

I-911149 

.:-9111 1 1 

T -91 

1-9::348 

I-9-. :440 

I-9::C::C46g 

T- 0114 C. 2 

I-J.jC--:91310 

I-l1C-19h~·3S 

l-t-F>19b3 1 8 

_!_ -L 4.2 :;: 

REG'JLAR :)Ef'ARTM~NT FA1"M:ENT REGISTEP 

GIL P.CCOUNT NA.'!E 

35 -ss6221n 

-S2622U_:; 

-S802203 

·LS -S86220'l 

35 -':::,262203 

3S -"fl62/CI_5 

,=) -':::862203 

35 

REF'AIFS & Y...h.3: MISC REPAIR PARTS 

RFf"·AIR.c; & HAl ~ISC SJV..ALL PARTS' 

REFAlRS & >UU MlSC SVlALL PAPTS 

REPAIRS & MAI MISl' SMAi.~ PA..'\TS 

F<..EFAIF<:! & MAI MlSC :::;MALL PJI..RTS 

REPAIRS & P..Al MT SC .Slf..ALL PARTS 

RGPAI?S & MAI MlSC SJv'..ASL PARTS 

RE?AIRS & MAl M:SC SMAL:.., PARTS 

R.t:PAIRS & !'1AI ~ISC SMALL PART::) 

REPAIRS & J'f..A:l 1·11SC SIJ"ALL FABTS 

REPAIRS & HAl MISC SJv'..ALL ?ARTS 

RE?AIF<..S & MAl MISC SMAL:... PAR'":'S 

REPAIRS & MAT Ml.SC SMALL PA:K7?. 

REI' AT RS & ~1.r1.::: Y.l SC S!'1KLL P.L.RTS 

REPA:::Rs & V.AI MIS': ~W..ALL PARTS 

R!::FAIRS & M.ld MISC S11..II.~L FARTS 

REPAIRS & MAT M:;-sc: SMAL .... PA~T;:: 

REPAIRS & t1Al ~TSC SMALL PARTS 

REPA::-Rs .'--IA::: lf,I SC .Slf.ALL PJI.RT.:..; 

REPAI:k2 & '~':AI l-1ISC SM..I\11 PARTS 

REPAIRS & !>1Al H~SC SMJ..,_:_L ?ARTS 

REF·AIRS & t1AI M:::::·c SMAL .. PARTS 

R.t:PAIR::; & Mid :v!L'J" SMALL PAP':;-S 

REJ'l',IRS I. ~1A.:. HISC SMJI.LL PA:KTS 

?EPAJ..i<:S & V.JI.T MIS:::: .SY..ALL f·ARTS 

REfl ... TR;-:: 1, l·tii.l MlSl' SMA~L PARTS 

REPAIR::; & ~·1A: ST:JCK TlS.ES-PCL:CE CARS 

REl'AIRS & Y.AI TIR~S FCR U0-4 

REPA.:..Ps & EAT TIKE.::. FOR ?K-lS & GF::Nr,EP 

R~PAI?.S t.-. MAl ';""JRF.S FOR PK-38 & SR!NDER 

REPATF<:3 & MAI T:::RES FOR PD-LL 

REPAIRS & .'1A~ Y.'I SC REFAl R l TEMS AS NEE:::1 

REPAIRS & MJd PART::i FOR IJ':'M SA~' 

REPAIRS & r1P.l FCRKLTFT TIKES FO!-<. '.NTI 

PEf'AIRS & KL.I RLPA~RS TO POLirE <:A?S 

?EPA::-<.~' & l'1AI ?EPA::::?S T:::.-; HlLICE r:JI.R2 

f-'AGE: 17 

C1-1ECKtl 

• 2 

419 

(1014: 9 

(:f14J..CJ 

:=:·6141 g 

0614 J 9 

IJ614J..C) 

C::·E·l419 

061419 

1]614:'...9 

41 9 

(161419 

CJCt119 

C1Cl42lJ 

(:(;142'=: 

UD42:1 

L1 61420 

CJE.1421J 

OC142J 

Ubl c12CI 

061422 

oc:422 

OC1422 

(1f 1428 

2 8--:'. 

99. (I (I 

1 ~' 3. 13 

39. OE 

11.1(1 

14.29 

4. 2 9 

~ .. 9. 95 

::.. gg. 

12. 2 (j 

1 C4. 

11. c 4 

44. :52 

JS .. 

19.(:7 

I). 4 g 

1:: .. 4( 

61. '4 

2, 1 S8. 4 (1 

3'.:12. 44 

. 82 

12 

44. 

<;4. 



4/21 ~L 9: AM 

08619 CLAIMS FCR 9/11/12 

L ... EE'T ~,f,AlNTENANCE 

~;;N~·F=LL EOllTPtENT 

I-.35'::2 

..... /YI'JF.'S C:?E~;.:r; SEKVlCES 

: -(: l .3~4 

c·ENTER, T:J'::. 

T -12 8 3Jl 

l-ljSJS4 

I-135443 

l-l.J7 )7 ;::, 

l-13-;- 331 

I- 1 091 j 

I-7C9S.: 

1-7 j ~ 

G'f..E:~LLY At:T8 fARTS 

c-:·23U-441/11 ck 

:=-D23rJ-4424"79 

c-rJ2.J0-44629·, CR 

C:-023()-447596 CR 

:-·=:2:50-44•,'C72 

l-l12.30-44:J3S9 

I-02:?!...'-44) 9J2 

I-C):?3C,-4419R2 

1-S.:Z jlJ-442.302 

I-:-;231]-443422 

I-:·23\l-4434-:' 3 

I-C·2::C-4444(,2 

I-C)2J:J-444613 

::-lJ230-44.:J 

l-(12 <-44'::::28'] 

I-~·23,:1-44S2YrJ 

l-li2 ") ·-r14S30'J 

::--rJ23C-44S3!:·2 

l-''2 H)-.~45.3--:'3 

T-lj231]-44.'!4f..H 

.... •:..:-44S819 

I-·~'L-51_1-446112 

REGULAR "CE?ARTMENT F.l'·.l~ENT REGISTER 

S/L ACCOUNT NJ,J-lE 

35 -5Rti2203 

35 -5262203 

~s -5862203 

l'J -."862~03 

35 -5862203 

~~s -52E22·.J3 

~= -5862~r:u 

- ~: R (,2L: U _3 

.35 -:::,862203 

RE~AIRS & MAI MISC ~ARTS F. REPATRS 

k~-:FAIF<-2 & MAI REFAIFS FOR LY CDMPACTOP 

Rl<::?AIRS & Y..h:L S [:~SCOUN--:- FOR f'RCM?T F 

REPAIRS & V..AI .SP..hLL PARTS AS :\EELr::D 

REPAIRS & y_u;:;: OIL CHGS & RF.PAI:k.3 A':: NF"'E 

RE?AIRS & HAl HISC REPA18S & !='A?·~·,:: 

REPAIRS & ~.A::: VTSC REPA:::RS & l-'h.F.~S 

REPA::.Rs & MJ-d MISC ?Sil~TRS & f'ARTS 

RE~AIRS & MAI t·L::~·c KE?AlRS & PARTS 

REPAIRS & w~I ~-:!ISC::: PF.Pl\IRS & !:'ARTS 

REPAIRS & ~A::: HIS·': REP?.JR.<: & PA?T2 

RF.P?.IRS ~x 11P\J MTSC RSEAIPS & P?.KTS 

REPAIRS & MAl M:::SC RE?AlRS & F? . .RTS 

REPAIRS & MAI MISC REPAIRS & rARTS 

REPAl:kS & MAT t·1TSr ::-;.MAL~ Pl~RTS 

REFAIRS & MAI H::.SC SMALL PAR-:'S 

REPAlR3 & :-IAT ;.:lsC SVJI.LL FARTS 

REPAIRS & Y..P.I MT SC S.MA~L Lll..RTS 

KEFAIRS &. MJU HlSC ST·mU ... PA8T.S 

REFAIR2 & Hld M::SC St1AL.:_ I-'A?T.S 

RY?.ll..IRS & MAI :vt'ISC SHALL f'?.R'TS 

REPAIRS & !'fJI.:: ElSC SV.ALL FARTS 

REFAIR.S & V.ft.T MISC SMALL I·ARTS 

RF.I-'AIRS u H.l'd M I sr: SHA::..L F'Ak'I'S 

:\EPATRS & MAl M:::SC SMAL .. f'ARTS 

KSt·AIRS & MAI MISC SMALl PAA-:::2 

RE?AlHS & 1'1J".I ~ISC SMALL P.Z:...RTS 

RF.PAIR.~ & Y..A~ MI.:.-iC SV.ALL L48TS 

REl-'A.:_k.s & MAT t1ISC SM.L.~L 1"1-~.RTS 

REP?.T':Z;.~ 1, 1'-1Al MI.SC S.MAl::.. PA8T.S 

REF-AIRS & t1AI M:::::c SMALL f'AR-:-.5 

RE~'AIF<.~~ & MAT ~lSC SMALL PART?. 

REPJ-~.TRS & :-1A~ S:V....ALL FARTS 

REPAlR3 & V..A:;: MIS': SM.l..~L Lll..RL--; 

RF.PA::-Rs & 11ld MI SC SHA~L .?ARTS 

t-zF.Pl~::Rs c. HAl Ml SC SHAlL P.AkT.S 

:"'.U'A:::Rs 1, 1·1AI t1ISC S1v1Al::. PA?TS 

REFAll<~~ f, MAI H::.SC ~~MALL PAR-:::2 

PAGE: lR 

CHECK# AHOUNT 

4E:.1 

06] 41 ~) 

415 

0Cl41S 

=. 614-, rJ 

~ J (:_, 1 

,j/ 5 

OUPS 

4. 9 

::::614 1 9 

1]614 -·g 

CJ614 "79 

1)614 -;-g 

uc:479 

(1{) 11-:'9 

c f.14...., 9 

'614 f) 0 

U48C' 

1]61480 

0 c 1 4 8 0 

C'614f() 

~'·614 2 CJ 

v l-14 81-) 

48U 

'1(,] 

4, 

. Cl3 

11. Sti 

l·. 

1 ~ 9. ~ 8 

24. 

111. 1 c 
I 1 . 

9 . .3 5-

199. (1(1-

19t>. 4 9-

.ss. 89-

. 4 9-

-/(1. 54 

.96 

1 : -, . ·~ 1 

42. 44 

~ 4 4. f 4 

- 9'? 

g ~ . 

- . 96 

4 3. ( 4 

14. c I 



REGULAR D£PARTtv;ENT ?AYMEN~ .KEGISTER 

'(:C:'._9 C~AIMS FOR 9/11/}2 

:S FLEET MAINTENANCE 

I-~~2 <IJ-446122 

l-·':,2:51~1-44(269 

1-())J'::-446'12? 

I-02.3 1.i-4·~(,6:5C 

:;--~2:5Cr-44""71 (16 

I-l!23·J-44-322 

T-r~r23,,-44-:'4 

I-0230-44'1:'129 

I-02]':-,;41S68 

I-~:230-4-1""771)( 

1-U23r~-4418 

I-(1230-4483(9 

1-C23Cr-45:212 

:C -I<_ F<Jc;E? KEY SQlJ I PMF:NT 

I-80335 

I-2283()1 

:::-2233'8 

I-22~721 

S'::"~~~.'AF~ >~;..?TIN EQUIPJ.if,N 

I -71 (124 

1- ')Ills 

'viiAPkEN 

T-PS1C·043l415 

WA~TE RESEF.?.CH -:-NC. 

1-11 9U7 

G/~ ACCOUNT NAME 

ccnllm~ed 

3~ -5262203 

3~, -':F622CJJ 

K:E:PJUR:; & Mhl Jv:ISC .5JV..ALL PARTS 

REPAIRS & VAI MISC SMAi::.., PAR"S 

REPF.IFS & Ml~.I M:::.~c ::iMALL PF..RTS 

?.EFAI?.S " MAl MJSC S~1ALL EAF<T~~ 

F\E?AIRS & ~-= Mrs::_· Sl':ALL PAPTS 

PEF'l-dRS & FLZU MISC SMA.:...:.., T-'ARTS 

?.Ef-'AIRS ' MAl MlSC SMALL f'AKJS 

RLt='AI.KS & Ml~I }';ISC SXALL PARTS 

REPAIRS & VAl MIS:= SV..ALL FARTS 

REPAIRS & MM MISC SMA.:...:.., PAR':'S 

F\EPAlR2 & MAl MlSC SMALL PARTS 

REPAIR:::J & ~1/1. I l'::ISC .S~,-~li..LL t-ARTS 

REPA~RS & F.:AI MJ3C SK4LL :0ARTS 

:P~PAI:KS & MAT 55 GAL Jip;__,~.; ll..N":'IFREEZE 

REP.I\::-Rs & 1'-: .. .r..r U~KT::::. FC:k ?ARKS RF\IJ?.:-!OG 

?EPAlkS & l'mi ?ARTS FOR I-' ARKS BR!JSHOG 

Rf.PATF:.:~ & '!A= Rf,PA:::RS As NEELEII 

kEPl~TRS r..,_,...ru HFPT-..IRS AS NEE:,:)F:I 

?EPA_i_f-<5 & MJH REFJURS .r..s NEEI 1E;_J 

REt-AIRS ' MAl :kE?AIRS .li._S NLEUEI 1 

?EPP..~RS ' l1.£d t-ARTS FOR MOWER 

F\:fo:F.l'..lF\5 & Mld PAWl'S FOR M~1'~l£R 

RF.FA1R5 & Y.JI.I SF.J..LL REI'AIRS AS N~!:':UE~' 

RF.T'AIRS & FJU CY:..,INIIER FOR CAT LCJAI1ER 

1--<F.T'ldP.S ex lv1Lll._l :·<F.PAIR."' FOR l10TOR GRADER 

FLEFT MAINTE:\ANCE 

PAGE: 19 

CHECK# 

rJC148C 

4 8[1 

:::>614 2 u 

C'Ed 4 21 

1]6:,_4 81 

:.:, 614 S1 

(1fll451 

c 614 ~ j 

D614 Sl 

CrCd481 

c 614 2: 
~H,1<; 81 

431 

D614CJ4 

[ 1 614 94 

·.)61 SOJ 

86E·Cll 

(r(,l 5C1 

D61 Sl ( 

29.11 

C7. 51 

3.29 

96. (]C) 

3S4. 98 

g. 

~ 4 2. ':. 

29.04 

13:,. 33 

24 . .5( 

19.90 

t; 8. 0 1 

489.99 

4 ql. 1 c 
':::·32. 

24 8 • Is 
31. 

5.').62 

.52 

912. 

j_ ., I S51. 4 1 



g: 1 :_, A.'vf 

FAJ::KST: r,2619 CLAH1S FCR 9/11/12 

\-T.N:::·'i7 :::·.F:T: 1•1 

\'JCRKER' S COMPEN~ATION 

H;.;TTJJ".T, ASSUF<.P..NCE AD:::MTN 

T-2445 

REGULAR DEPARTME!\T PAJ:'MENT REGTSTE.:R 

G/~ ACCOUNT NAME 'JESCS'.IPTJCJN 

Jf, -S:215315 THIK[l Llli<.TY A W/C AD~IN:::STRATION FEE 

&AGE: 20 

CP.ECK# .AMOTJNT 

1] 614 68 941. 

941. 



CJ: ~5 N1 

CJri619 '_:LATHS FOR 9/11/12 

41 CIF FTJ]\~ 

ITEM # 

FIB23T NATICNA::... SAN"K 

I-~,92C12-#13"i 

EF.H~3t'F<GF.? BF<P.'I'i!LEY I :::Nc 

l-W>11-CJ4-0CJ 

KEGULAR DEPARTMENT FAYlv1ENT REGT?TER 

G/L ACCOUNT NAME DE.'-JCRI FT 1 ~N 

LEASE 1-'AY:t-iENT LEASE FAY>1F.N~ 0~ UJRAFATCHER 

41 -':9-:' SL; OS 

FtTNC' 41 

PAGE: 

CHECK# A.I10UNT 

1 It EZ.: 

TCTAL: 

2321 lj_ 



- ~,4 31 

1 -~,43LJ2f< 

] -~4 =< 3J1 

REGU~AR DEPARTMENT PAYMENT KEGISTER PAGE: 22 

====·====LINE 1 TEH· ====== :== == -"====GROUP BUDGET====-=== 

NA~E 

0::. L-OK FOP TNI1EFEN::·F.NT LIV 

GPE?ATI~G ST_;f-'PLIES 

CO~S 1JLTA.\'TS/LABOR F:.~U·.TION 

EMPLOYEE TRNJE~ & TKAIKIN 

C)PE?ATING S'JV?LIES 

CUNTRF.CTEC SF:KVICES 

AD'JERTlSDJG & PKDJT-::NG 

FEF.S 

CO!\S'JL~.J'.....\T2 

C;J=ER.E:..TING SllPPL:::ES 

ELECTFTC l~TILITY 

Gl"'.S UTE .. l:Y 

TELEt':-!ONE UTIL_ TY 

OFERF.T u.;G SUFPL::: ES 

SOF'Tl'VARE V.AINTE;\JANCE 

Of-'F.KATING E:Xf-'ENSE 

COi\TRACTEL .5~RV-:-CES 

O?ER.l:.,_1 .::NG STTPF.:...lE.':: 

':LOTHJNG A::...LOWA'JCE 

CCN:'SU;CTED SER'JJ CES 

F<EPJI.l?.S & MAJNTENA.'JCE 

LEASE 1'A"I1'1ENTS 

2:t~F.R..I\TlNG :::31JJ)FLIE3 

EEt'ATRS 6.: ::V.JUN--;" SLTPPLlES 

Sl'fl.c.ALL TOC·L.5 

CLOTH.:;:NG ALLOWANCE 

~NTF::RNET 3ER'JJCE 

EMPLOYEE TRAVEL & TRAlKIN 

OPE?ATING 2lTPPLlES 

REPP..:::R & r1AT!\T SllFP~IFS 

.K.Et~AIRS f, MAINT SllPP::...lE:2 

CONTRF.CTET) SE?\-'ICI::~~ 

REPl'~-:-R:O u MJ..I;.JTENfu'\J-=:i 

OPE.KA': lNG SllPP::...IE.5 

?.EH~IKS r. ~INT S 1JPt-'LIE.5 

F;:;.::FAJR:::i & V..AIN.:'EKANC~ ~--; 1JPF 

CONTRACT LABCR 

PEI'ATRS c.. M.Z:\.IN~ .SFPPL~E.S 

C:ON~SACTETI SEK\':::CES 

Il\;TE?..N~T S?RVI'::E 

AMOUKT 

1, 

2' 

.(1() 

35. 34 

139. 

13.49 

104.4 (J 

1·:J7. 4 S 

61. 14 

200. 

~ 1 12 s • 
385. OJ 

1' 341. 84 

1 c. 79 

98.30 

2LI0. 

2 31 . 

f 4 9 . ..., 4 

. Sl 

719. 

~I 1 RS. (J[I 

.39 

.9S 

1 9. 42 

: 1 250, 

S'C. LIL', 

4 52. 

1, 

CJUU. 

j 1 1 98, 4/ 

. 94 

.J'....."JNUAL 

BUDGI::T 

24 61 9]"1 

; 41 

) 1 (08 

4 IJ 1 
1.10() 

S 1 9CLl 

61 3 () ~ 

21 

21 

2 I :=_.()1] 

901 

14, 

C) I ~ (J (I 

BUDGET OVEK 

AV .. L.I LA5LE BUDG 

1041 =·~4. sc 

2 nl 

1 r; I (I (I ij , ~I ' 

4,9qo.os 

51462.00 

1, 2 9CJ. 60 

41 113, 4 6 

.? 1 102. 

_:so. 
41 ~34.99 

282, 54S.19 

13, 94 0. Sl 

JS 1 689.2' 

21 491. 11 

qs. 22 

3,!:>93.62 

'.. 1 C'89.UU 

g 1 8S1. S6 

4' ,90 

10, 122.C4 

41 ~--; 4 , 0 [I 

10
1 

_ 3S. S 1 

; 1 422. ](l 

I 1 504. ""79 

::_4, --:qc. 

sl 340 . 

BUDGE':' OVER 

AVAI::..ABLE BUDG 



CJ/C·4/2·'J12 9: AE 

'_.l -~JRe:"~82 

-59742:'._:2 

,'•2 -~9 14 3(!'1 

'J2 -~,C)"'r1]}; 

-~216313 

~=~ -Si=' e,511 

-SS49 ::,1 '-, 

-sr,: ~214 

:kEGIJLAR DEPARTMENT PAJ:1-1E:JT REGT .5'1 ER PAGE: 23 

G/L ACCOU~T TC>TALS 

=========LINE I TF.M====---'-==== =--:-======G?,OUF B'JQSET=== 

REFAIKS & MAINTENANCE STJ?? 

R£f'A:Rs & MAIN~EJ\AN"CE 

ABATE:-1ENTS 

A'NA?l'S PROG:KAM 

AlJ'v'ERTISING & f'RlNTI~JG 

CPEK.l>.':'ING ::UPPLIES 

R£F-AIR & l'1AI~T-Tf<._i'\FFlC CON 

SlREE:T RF:PJI~:::PS & l'1AINTS;.JAN 

:iNTEKNE~ 3ERVICE 

CPERATING ,::;__;pf-'LIES 

FEES 

OFERAT:::NG Sllf~f'"~_,J:ES 

-:'SLEPHONS 'JT:!:LITY 

CLBG LOA."J #3908 

::..EASE F'AY~ENTS 

fZECYCLING CENTER E'XPEN?E 

C8N8lll TAN~S 

F.~PLOYEE T?-.J..\l£1 & TKAI:\lN 

OFERJI.T:::NG SUPPLTSS 

KE?AIF<S & l"..A:::NT 2'TJpp:::_,rES 

LAB TES~ING 

REPAIRS & l'1ATNTEN.l>J'.JCE 

INTERNET SERV 1 CE 

EMF:::_,CYEE TRAVEL & TRAlNlN 

:kE?AIRS & JV.JI.!NT .SUP?LTF:S 

CHEH:::CA:::.,s 

YL'EL EXPENSE 

LAB TESii!\G 

.L._['\TERTI S :::NG/ PRJ:NTTNS/ ?OSTJI. 

E~-'!:PLOYEE '":'R..l'o._VEL & TRAININ 

WATER l{ETE?.S 

S~REEJ" REPA_;_f\S & AAINTENAN 

SE:WER MAIN ?EF-AIR 

WA~ER MAIN R:t:PAIR 

EMPLOYEE TRJI.VEL & TRAIN:::N 

E~EC~RTC U'!.'lliTY 

FNB LOAN # 1 ~ 9S 1 I PAYMEKTS 

::ONTRAC? SE:kVICES 

TE:LFFHONE l.'TlL -:---:"Y 

TO'JRI.SM EXie'El\SE 

MISC PRIDE, TN MCALE~TF,R 

l'1AIN STKEET I'ROGR.r-.H 

REPJI~lR & l'1AJNT St1 PI'~IES 

2LECTFIC IJ':'ILITY 

:kEPAIR:: & l'1AIKTF.NANCE 

AMOUNT 

8 :J4. 39 

• iJ(I 

'Hl. 

~~4R.J=~ 

. 1 6 

l 1 145. 2 3 

8 1 S24. 

93.53 

632. 

.(11] 

1 ~~. 92 

l 
1 

2(1Q, I 5 

3 1 G10.47 

1,9Sl.'U 

.9S 

92. 

31648.0b 

3 'J 1 l fi4. 

~ 1 6E:f. 

:;: 1 1_39. (} i 

::_ (,2.-;- 9 

. :-.q 

4' . C1 

4114.::::. 

1 1 43 f.. (14 

1 CJ I 1]4 ~~. 

~·1232.4"' 

ANNUAL 

BTJDGE::T 

1, 

131 ; :.(1 

31 

1, 

1-1, 100 

3 I 
1 

!-,()() 

401 s '() 

114, 

3S9 1 

: J 1 8 (I~) 

_j(ll (:(10 

3, 

1 ~ (l 1 

lOCI, 

~.(1, C! ~·0 

15 1 

.50, ]Qil 

uuu 

14, 

63' 

BlliJGET OVER 

AV.L.ILABL2 pp:::JG 

~ fS. 15 

10 1 1 :)5. 32 

I, :.9(0. 

4, 

--:1 (I. 0(1 

l J 1 q). 

I I 1 [19. 

_3 1 91 j. f8 

5, 114. gg 

39' .:~14. 

:;_ •
1 

1 J12. 

'19.S9 

:21 1 su. ,J:J 

l J 151. (13 

53,20g. 

2 (',I 91 s. 68 

Sf.l. 1 S 

H4,---; 92. 

2291 ~<;9.29 

1 U, .'9 

221 

l 1 4CI:,.fH 

4 C:J . 

24, ~134.(J9 

301 

l 1 932 • 

24,J99.JrJ 

~·= 1 C) b•1 . 

1 C), q,p. 

ANK;JJI.L 

BUDGET 

BUDGET OVER 

AVJI.ILXDLE Bt'IJG 



g: 15 A.~ 

IEr.? 

REG1JLAF LJEPARTMEN~ PAYMENT RECJI5TEK 

NA."'::E 

MTSC PR:LLIE TN MCALE.STF:R 

~..AIK :=JTREET PROGR..Iu'1 

t::CONOMIC CE\/E~CP. SJ::R'v'ICES 

~CBBYING SERVICES 

14 ST/t,g HWY .SWR EXTF:NS:ON 

CDBG / EL1l F [1TJRJ\LINE ::...cAN 

FEPAIRS & ;.t,A;:NTSNANCE s·Jpp 

TH::.RD PARTY AIIH FEF.S 

~EAS~ f-'.L.'l"}1ENT.S 

YEAP T:J~ALS 

G/ L ACCOUNT TOTJ>..LS 

AM01JNT 

2' . Oli 

1, 166. 

17 I 8 8 2·. CJO 

lC, 55•1.4° 

941. 68 

.84 

PAGE: 24 

==Lll\E ITEM========-·" =======C~f<01JP BTJL,GET======= 

Al\~ 1JAL 

BUDGET 

.30, 

234, :)1 :, 

L4, 

12' 

BLJI,GF.T OVER 

!NAT LABLE Bi..;-'JG 

. co 
11, (( t":. 68 

y 

ANNUAL 

BUDGE~ 

BUDGET OVER 

A'i/AILABLE B1JLG 



9/04/2012 9:13 AM 

?ACKE'.T: 08619 CLAIMS FOR 9/11/12 

VENDOR SET: 01 

BANK FNB FIRST NATIONAL BANK 

VENDOH NAME I I . D. DESC 

FUND 

01 

01 

02 

02 

03 

03 

08 

08 

27 

28 

28 

30 

35 

35 

36 

41 

ALL 

A I P CHECK REGISTER 

CHECK CHECK 

TYPE DATE DISCOUNT 

POSTING PERIOD RECAP * * 

PERIOD AMOUNT 

8/2012 1,939.96CR 

9/2012 71,814.72CR 

8/2012 1,038.15CR 

9/2012 84,358.85CR 

8/2012 3,459.52CR 

9/2012 2,510.00CR 

8/2012 153.08CR 

9/2012 856. 22CR 

9/2012 4,202.29CR 

8/2012 5,232.47CR 

9/2012 620. 55CR 

9/2012 38,371.91CR 

8/2012 3,867.19CR 

9/2012 13,684.28CR 

9/2012 941.6BCR 

9/2012 5,040.84CR 

238,091. 71CR 

AMOUNT 

CHECK 

NO# 

PAGE: 15 

CHECK 

AMOUNT 



August 27, 2012 

SABRA TATE 
601 SOUTH SECOND STREET 

MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA 74501 
(918) 423-5482 • FAX (918) 426·1413 

The Honorable Steve Harrison, Mayor 
City of McAlester 
McAlester, OK 74501 

Dear Mayor Harrison: 

Item C, D, E, & F 

The purpose of this letter is to request appointments of members 
of the Community Tree Board of the City of McAlester. 

The terms of three of the current members of the Tree Board are 
due to expire in September, 2012. I would like to request that 
all three of these members -- John Goodyear, Doris Hackler, and 
Karen Harrison -- be reappointed to two-year terms that will 
expire in September, 2014. 

Also, there is currently a vacancy in one term that will expire 
in September, 2013. I would like to request that David Cantrell 
be appointed to fill the unexpired portion of this term. 

I have spoken with each of these four people, and all have 
expressed a readiness to serve the terms described above. 

The three additional members of the Tree Board who are currently 
serving are Marsha Green, Theo Webb, and myself. Our terms do 
not expire until September, 2013. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter. 

Sincerely, 

Sabra Tate, Chairman 
Community Tree Board 



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: September 11, 2012 Item Number: 

Department: City Manager 

Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak, CM Account Code: 

Date Prepared: September 4, 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 2 

Subject 
Tabled - Discussion and possible action, on a Resolution put forward by the Gaines Creek Association of Free 
Will Baptist opposing the removal of figurines depicting U.S. Military Kneeling in Silent Prayer from the 3rd 

Street intersection and asking the City of McAlester to reverse the decision and reinstall the silhouette. 

Discussion 

Approved By 

Department Head 

City Manager P. Stasiak 

Initial Date 

09/04112 

Page 1 of 1 



04 August 2012 

To the Gaines Creek Association of Free Will Baptist (GCAFWB) when convened at New Hope Free Will 

Baptist Church on 04 August 2012 for the annual meeting. For several decades the .01% that oppose 

Christian values have worked very hard to impose their secular beliefs on the other 99.9% through our 

Legislative , Judicial and Executive branches of government. In the last decade you might recall that the 
City of McAlester, yielded to the unpopular pressure to remove a cross from its logo. Recently the City 

had installed figurines depicting various items of interest at key intersections throughout the city. The 
figurines at a 3rct street intersection depicted U.S. MILITARY KNEELING IN SILENT PRAYER. By order of 

the city manager these figurines at the 3rct street intersection (as reported on Fox 23 News} were 
removed supposedly so as not to offend anyone. Much could be said about this but I think you get the 

picture! Accordingly the following Resolution# 2012-Ql is offered for consideration: 

Be it resolved that the Gaines Creek Association of Free Will Baptist stand opposed to the removal of 
figurines depicting U.S. MILITARY KNEELING IN SILENT PRAYER from the 3rct street intersection in 

McAlester. 

Whereas :The United States Supreme Court has ruled that silent prayer, a moment of silence, silent 

meditation etc. is legal 

Whereas: Obviously the figurines and the posting there of were in compliance with said Supreme Court 

ruling 

Whereas: The Military witness of actual battlefield situations should be a welcome gesture and not put 

in a negative light to offend those who stood in harm's way to protect our freedoms. 

Be it further resolved that the GCAFWB call on the City council of McAlester to reverse the city 

managers decision and have said figurines reinstalled in accordance with the will of the people. 

Approved this 04 Day of August 2012 

Clerk signature: Gaines Creek Association of Free Will Baptist 

CF: McAlester City Council 

McAlester News Capital and Democrat 

Fox 23 News (Tulsa Oklahoma) 



To: McAlester City officials 15 August 2012 

Subject: City Manager removal of figurines I silhouettes from 3'd and Washington mounting 

Gentlemen 

Request our objection to subject action be included as an agenda item for 28 August 2012 council 

meeting. 

Regards, 

lncl Resolution 2012-1 



GAINES CREEK ASSOCIATION OF OKLAHOMA FREE WILL BAPTISTS 

m I 
' 

' 

Executive Board 
Bro. James Prince, Chairman 

Bro. Carl Brooks 

Bro. David Meredith 
Bro. Dan Reagan 
Bro. David Choate 

August 11, 2012 

Gaines Creek Free Will Baptist 
Pastors and Executive Board 

McAlester NewsCapital 

McAlester City Council 

Fox 23 News (Tulsa, Oklahoma) 

Bethel FWBC - Allen 
Bro. Lonnie Palmer, Pastor 

580-857-2674 

Canadian Shores FWBC - Indianola 
Bro. Brent Jarrett, Pastor/Moderator 

918-823-4461 

Fellowship FWBC- McAlester 
Bro. Jamie Kirkpatrick, Pastor 

918-429-2047 

New Hope FWBC - Indianola 
Bro. Fred Morrison, Pastor 

918-823-4565 

Stuart FWBC - Stuart 
Bro. Cecil Day, Pastor 

918-423-9396 

Tannehill FWBC- Tannehill 
Bro. Steve Eldridge, Pastor 

918-823-4634 

RE: Figurine depicting U.S. Military kneeling in silent prayer from 3rct street intersection in McAlester 

Please find attached a copy of the Resolution that was approved at our Annual Meeting on Saturday, 
August 4, 2012; and let it be known that the McAlester NewsCapital will be publishing said Resolution in 
the Sunday, August 12, 2012 Newspaper. 

In His Service, 

J;t~; Jt[a~ t Ja/V~ 
Sis. Marie E. Farris, Clerk 

Home Phone: 918-423-3706 2019 North 14th St. Cell Phone: 918-429-7577 
McAlester, OK 74501 



------~--~~~~~~~+~~~~C~·-------------------~----------

11 ~~~· ~--~LL~~~J ---



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: September 11, 2012 Item Number: 2 

Department: Finance 

Prepared By: Toni Ervin Account Code: 

Date Prepared: September 4, 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 

Subject 
Consider, and act upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance No. 2425 which established the budget for fiscal 
year 2012-2013; repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and declaring an 
emergency. 

Recommendation 
Motion to approve the budget amendment ordinance. 

Discussion 
The budget amendment ordinance is necessary to cover proposed revenue and/or expenditures not included in 
the budget for this fiscal year. 

See attached. 

Approved By 

Department Head 

City Manager P. Stasiak 

Initial 

T. Ervin 
Date 

9/4/2012 

9/4/2012 

Page 1 of 1 



ORDINANCE NO. 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, 
OKLAHOMA, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 2425 WHICH 
ESTABLISHED THE BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2012-2013; 
REPEALING ALL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVID­
ING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, the City Council heretofore adopted Ordinance No. 2425 setting 
forth the Budget for Fiscal Year 2012-2013 beginning July 1, 2012 and ending June 30, 
2013;and 

WHEREAS, the City Departments and Divisions routinely review their budget 
appropriations to determine if any changes are necessary; and 

WHEREAS, based upon said review the City staff now recommends that certain 
amendments to the Budget be considered by the City Council; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has the authority to make amendments to the City 
Budget under Article 5, Section 5.07 (b) ofthe new City Charter as well as State law; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the proposed amendment to the 
FY 2012-2013 Budget, with the revenues and expenditures therein contained, is in the 
best interest of the City; and therefore, desires to adopt the same by formal action. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, 
OKLAHOMA: 

SECTION 1: The proposed amendment to the FY 2012-2013 Budget of the City 
of McAlester, Oklahoma, as heretofore adopted by Ordinance, as summarized in Exhibit 
A-1, which is attached hereto and fully incorporated herein by reference, be, and the 
same hereby are, completely adopted and approved as an amendment to the said FY 
2012-2013 Budget. 

SECTION 2: All portions of the existing FY 2012-2013 Budget, Ordinance No. 
2425 except as specifically herein amended, shall remain in full force and effect, and not 
be otherwise affected by the adoption of the amendatory ordinance. 

SECTION 3: That all other ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of any such conflict or inconsistency and all other ordinances not in conflict 
herewith shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION 4: Should any paragraph, sentence, subdivision, clause, phrase, or 
section of this ordinance be adjudged or held to be unconstitutional, illegal or invalid, the 



same shall not affect the validity of this ordinance as a whole or any part or provision 
thereof, other than the part or parts as declared to be invalid, illegal, or unconstitutional. 

SECTION 5: That an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and for the provision 
of the public peace, health and safety, by reason whereof it is necessary that all acts take 
effect immediately and be in full force and effect from, and after the passage and 
approval. 

PASSED and the EMERGENCY CLAUSE ruled on separately this 11th day of 
September, 2012. 

ATTEST: 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

CITY OF MCALESTER, OKLAHOMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

By ________________________ __ 
Steve Harrison, Mayor 

Approved as to form and legality this 11th day of September, 2012. 

William J. Ervin, City Attorney 



ExhibitA-1 

City of McAlester 
Budget Amendment - FY 2012-2013 

E911 
September 11, 2012 

Estimated Revenue or Fund Balance 

Balance 

Amount of 

Amendment 

Fund Account 
Number 

Before Increase 

Number Department Description Amendment (Decrease) 

29 -1 --r-- -- -- _ _, __ -=-:_--- -t;,:·~~~·~---- ---t~~~"~l ~-
40999 

Appropriations 

Fund Account 
Number Number Department Description 

29 r 5324202 
1 

E911 
; J _________ _ 

1=----=~---==· -+_-_.:. I - --------
--+- --- t 

~--Op-el-ating Suppli~~--- __________ -

-- f 
! 

-- --+ 

-+ ---

1--

---+---
-- ----1--- ___ :.:_:t=-----
I 
I ---- - : 

J 
I F IUI'I 

!original Budget- Revenues ••• 
Amendments 

Current Budget- Revenues 

$ 689,000 ••• Does not include appropriated fund balance. 

Original Budget- Expenditures 
Amendments 

Current Budget- Expenditures 

$ 689,000 

$ 638,968 
164,000 

$ 802,968 

Explanation of Budget Amendment: 

Balance 

Before 
Amendment 

6,000.00; 

- --------~----

t _, 

Amount of 

Amendment 

Increase 
(Decrease) 

2Q,OOOOO[ 

I 

- -i-

I : -

---- l" 
2o.ooo.oo 1 

Balance 

After 

Amendment 
92,000.00 

Balance 

After 
Amendment 

26,000.00 

Approved by the City Council this 

September 11,2012 Appropriate funds to operating su_pfllies for upgrade to_radio base station in order to meet the rural fire 

and McAlester fire communication needs. 

Approved: 

Ma~or 

Attest: 

--------.,------------Posted By ______ Date------ BA# ____ Pkt# 
C11~ Clerk 

A1113-016 



FY 12-13 Budget Amendments listed by fund 

Revenue Ex~ense 

004 7/24/12 01 General Fund Appropriate funds for Fire Payroll (206,800.00) 
7/24/12 01 General Fund Appropriate funds for Fire Payroll 206,800.00 

010 8/14/12 01 General Fund Budget Supplement to lapse and reappropriate 105,004.00 
002 7/24/12 02 MPWA Appropriate funds for CDBG 86,069.00 
007 8/14/12 02 MPWA Appropriate funds for CDBG (not awarded) 78,081.00 
011 8/14/12 02 MPWA Budget Supplement to lapse and reappropriate 71,060.00 
008 8/14/12 27 Tourism Appropriate funds for rebranding 18,500.00 
012 8/14/12 29 E911 Budget Supplement to lapse and reappropriate 72,000.00 144,000.00 
016 9/11/12 29 E911 Appropriate funds to operating supplies for upgr 20,000.00 
001 7/10/12 30 Economic Development Appropriate funds for HWY 69 water & sewer 350,000.00 
013 8/14/12 30 Economic Development Budget Supplement to lapse and reappropriate 79,873.00 
015 8/28/12 30 Economic Development Appropriate funds for the Award from the Strate· 133,000.00 147,780.00 
003 7/24/12 33 CDBG Appropriate funds for CDBG 164,150.00 164,150.00 
006 8/14/12 33 CDBG Appropriate funds for CDBG (not awarded) 78,081.00 

8/14/12 33 CDBG Appropriate funds for CDBG (not awarded) (78,081.00) 
014 8/14/12 33 CDBG Budget Supplement to lapse and reappropriate 73,874.00 134,302.00 
005 7/24/12 41 Capital Fund Appropriate funds for Fire Payroll (206,800.00) 
009 8/14/12 41 Capital Fund Budget Supplement to lapse and reappropriate 601,423.00 

236,224.00 2,000,242.00 



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: September 11, 2012 Item Number: 3 

Department: Finance 

Prepared By: Toni Ervin, CFO Account Code: 

Date Prepared: September 4, 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 

Subject 
Consider and Act Upon, an Ordinance amending Ordinance 2235 Sections 106.71 (a) and 106.71 (c) of the 
McAlester City Codes Fixing Water Rates and Declaring an Emergency. 

Recommendation 
Motion to approve Ordinance amending Sections 106.71 (a) and 106.71 (c) of the McAlester City Codes. 

Discussion 

By using the 2012 Poverty Guidelines from the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, this section of the 
code will be annually updated when the new guidelines are published. By recommending this change in the ordinance, 
the intention is to keep it more up to date, accurate and transparent for the citizens and employees going forward. 

The 2012 Poverty Guidelines from the U.S. Department of Health & Human Services: 
1 person in household $11,170 and 2 person in household $15,130 

Approved By 

Department Head 

City Manager P. Stasiak 

Initial 

T. Ervin 
Date 

09/04/12 

09/04/12 

Page 1 of 1 



0 R D I N A N C E N 0._ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS 106.71(a) AND 106.71(c) OF THE 
McALESTER CITY CODES FIXING WATER RATES; AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY 

* * * * * * * * * * * 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF McALESTER, 
OKLAHOMA, that: 

* 

SECTION 1: Section 106.71(a) of the McAlester City Code is hereby amended to read 
as follows: 

(a) The rates to be charged for water furnished by the City Water System shall be as 
follows: 

Cubic Feet INSIDE CITY USERS OUTSIDE CITY USERS 

300$ $ 9.16 (minimum) $ 13. 8 8 (minimum) 
Over 300 $ 3.32 per 100 cubic feet $ 4. 97 per 1 00 cubic feet 

1-300 $ 10.50 (minimum) $ 15.91 (minimum) 
Over 300 $ 3.81 per 100 cubic feet $ 5. 70 per 100 cubic feet 

SECTION 2: Section 106.7l(c) of the McAlester City Code is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 

(c) Low volume discount. 

1) Single households with income of $8,000 per year, or less, and married households 
with income of $12,000 per year, or less, shall be granted an adjustment of $11.00 on 
their monthly utility bill, but in no case shall the bill be adjusted belmv 
the basic minimum. 

1) Using the official poverty guidelines published by the U.S. Department of Health & 
Human Services each year, households with proof of income less than this poverty 
level shall be granted an adjustment of $11.00 on their monthly utility bill, but in no 
case shall the bill be adjusted below the basic minimum. 

SECTION 2: EMERGENCY CLAUSE 

That an emergency is hereby declared to exist for the preservation of the public peace, 
health and safety, by reason whereof it is necessary that this Ordinance take effect and be in full 
force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 



PASSED and the EMERGENCY CLAUSE ruled on separately this nth day of 
September , 2012. 

ATTEST: 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

Steve Harrison, Mayor 

Approved as to form and legality this 11th day of September , 2012. 

By __________________ __ 

William J. Ervin, City Attorney 



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: September 11, 2012 Item Number: 4 

Department: Utility Department 

Prepared By: Sheila Norman Account Code: 

Date Prepared: September 4,2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 3 

Subject 
Consider and act upon awarding bid in the amount of$27,171.00, for one new and unused One Ton Truck for 
the Waste Water Maintenance Department. 

Recommendation 
Motion to approve the award of bid to Nix Ford, McAlester, Oklahoma, for the purchase of one (1) New and 
Unused 2012 F-350 1 Ton Truck. 

Discussion 
The current truck used by the Waste Water Maintenance Mechanic is over 20 years old and way past its useful 
life and currently not drivable. The bid for the replacement vehicle is quoted through State Central Purchasing 
Contract. This one ton truck is needed to facilitate the use of a small crane to R&R pumps at the lift stations 
when necessary and to haul large pumps; valves and other equipment needed to keep the WWM Plants and Lift 
Stations up and running. 

Attachments: 
1) State Central Purchasing Quote- Nix Ford 
2) Nix Auto Center Bid 
3) Dunn Country Motor Bid 

Approved By 

Department Head 

City Manager P. Stasiak 

Initial 

DM 
Date 

9/04/12 

9/04/12 

Page I of I 



-------------

TO: CITY OF MCALESTER 

IN RE: GOVERNMENT BID FOR 2012 F350 CAB AND 
CHASSIS. 

2012 FORD F350 CHASSIS CAB DRW/165" WB 
OXFORD WHITE 
VINYL 40/20/40 SPLIT BENCH SEAT 
6.2 LITER GAS ENGINE 
6 SPEED AUTOMATIC 
4.30 LIMITED SLIP REAR AXLE 
POWER EQUIPMENT GROUP 
ELECTRONIC SHIFT ON THE FLY 
SPARE TIRE AND WHEEL 
TRAILER BRAKE CONTROLLER 
CRUISE CONTROL 
AM/FM CD 

PRICE OF TRUCK AFTER GOV1T PRICE CONCESSION 
$27171.00 
KNAPEHIDE BODY: $8385.00 (2-3 WEEKS FROM ORDER) 
TOTAL TURN KEY: $35556.00 

MARK DEJACIMO 
NIX FORD 

1000/1000 ~ vL69 C6v S16 XVd 61:11 6106/S0/60 



09/04/2012 11:17 FAX 918 423 1401 nix auto 1410001/0002 

Vehicle Search Detail Report 
Current as of 09/04/2012 - 11:07 AM EDr 

Dealership: NIX AUTO CENTER, INC. 

Email: 

Phone: 

Fax: 

Search Criteria 

--------------------·-------- --------·---
Division: GMC 

Model Year: 2012 

Model: TK31003- 3500 Sierra: H. D. Reg Chassis Cab 4WD 

Earliest Event Code: 5000 - Vehide Delivered to Dealer 

"Must Have" Options: 1SA,L96 

Location Criteria: My Inventory 

ZIP 74502,250 Mile Radius 

Selected Search Results 

YIN/Order# Event COde 

1GD322CG1CF217453 5000 VehiCle Delivered to Dealer 

PEG: 1SA- Base Option Package 

Primary Color: SOU - Summit White Exterior Color 

Trim: 888- Dark Trtanium Cloth Interior Trim 

Engine: L96- Engine: 6.0L, V-8, SFI, FlexFuel w/ E63 only 

Transmission: MYD - Transmission: 6-Speed Automatic 

Options: 1 SA: Base Option Package 

SOU: Summit White Exterior Color 

585: Window Power Operated, Side (SEO) 

6P3: Power Mirrors, Camper, (SEO) 

888: Dark Titanium Cloth Interior Trim 

9E5: GVW Rating 13,200 LBS 

AE7: Seat: 40/20/40/ Split Front Bench 

AU3: Power Door Locks 

BG9: Floor Covering: Rubber Vinyl, Graphite 

C67: Air Conditioning, Manual 

FE9: Federal Emissions 

GSO: Locking Differential, Rear 

GT4: Rear Axle 3.73 Ratio 

© 2008 General Motors. All Rights Reserved. 

'ft»~< .BJD -Ptcta 
'33~ ?50S!-

------

MSRP with Destination 

Charae 
Destination Charge 

l$36780.00 l$995.00 

L96: Engine: 6.0L, v~a, SFI, FlaxFuel w/ E63 only 

MYD: Transmission: 6-Speed Automatic 

N2N: Fuel Tank, Dual Front and Rear, 63.5 Gallon Total 

NZZ: Skid Plate, Off·Road 

PYW: Wheel 17" Steel, Painted 

QZT: Tires: L T 235180R17 BW AL T 

U01: Roof Marker Lamps 

U2J: SlriusXM Satellite Radio, Delete 

UEO: Onstar Delete 

UQ3: Audio System Feature, Uplevel Speaker System 

USS: Radio, AMIFM Stereo, Auto Tone, CD 

V76: Recovery Hooks 

VF7: Rear Bumper Delete 

Page 1 of 2 



09/04/2012 11:17 FAX 918 423 1401 

JL 1: Integrated Trailer Brake 

1<34: Cruise Control 

K47: Air Cleaner, High Capacity 

KC4: Cooler, Engine Oil 

KNP: Traosmisslon Cooling System 

W/A noted above means Will Advise 

© 2008 General Motors. All Rights Reserved. 

nix auto 1410002/0002 

VK3: License Plate Front Mounting Hardware 

Z85: Handling/Trailering Suspension 

ZW9: Body/Chassis: Standard 

ZV1: Solid Paint Application 

ZZT: Tire Spare: L T235/80R17 BW OOR 

Page 2 of 2 



DUll 

PHONE: (918) 689-2595 FAX: (918) 689-3871(Main) 

(800) 890-2595 (918) 689-2298(Sales Mgr) 

(918) 689-2167(Finance) 

DATE: ~3/-lt 

TO:sle:h 

FROM: &Ji~-nc;t 

p.1 

COMMENTS: ______________ _ 

TOTAL PAGES INCLUDING COVER:_2_ 

DEALER CODES: CHEVROLET - 05523 

GMC - 30623 

BUICK - 55624 



p.2 

GM GlobalConnect Page 1 of2 

-~r--·~-------------------··------·-----VWiia-n Lawson :·:.... . ~n~~·=.t; .. _c:~:> ..• DUNN COUNTRY CHEVROLET BJICi<. GMC 
owb005 Edit My Profile Logout 

l[tliJll; f\lJfJtl~•f.Jif;JUWIMaln > Loc.atc './c:h·cle~ > Lncr:~lc b~ VlN > Vehicl-e Detail 

PLAN & FORECAST ORDER VEHICLES 
MANAGE 
INVENTORY 

Vehicle Detail- VIN 1GB4KZCG5CF201410 

BAG 213538 Name. DUNN COUNTRY CHEVROLET BUICK GMC 

V<>hicle Specifications 

LOCATE VEHICLES DELIVER VEHICLES 

t GM o'/11: not maim any sales cr policy adjustnen1s in :he case or inac-:::urate pricing Jnformat:on in this summary. Plo?ase 
reler to actual vehide in·<OICP. for ccmpiet~ pncing infornkltion. 

Mode: Ye;r: 2012 Division: Chevrolet 

Model: CK31 043- Silverado: Crew Chassis cab, 4WD, Dual RearWIIeel 

Incentives: t Lookup Incentives by VIN 

Pr~fcm~d 

Equipment Croup: 1Wf- Wor1<Trudk 
Primary Color: 50U- Summit While Exterior 

Color 
Secondal)· Color: NIA- NIA 

Trim: 88V- Dark Titanium Vinyl 
lnteriorTrtm 

Eng1nc: L96- Engine: 5.0l, V-8, SF I, 
FlexFuel wl E63 ooly 

Transm1ssion: MVD .. Transmission: 6-Speed 
Aut<>matic 

Other Options: 1 WT: Work Truck 
SOU: Summit Whtle Exterior 

Color 
585: Window Power Operated, 

Side (SEO) 
6P3: Power MiTOts, Camper, 

(SEO) 
SBV: Dart. Titanium VInyl Interior 

Trim 
9ES: GVW Rating 13,200 LBS 
AE7: Seat 401201401 Split Front 

BanCI1 
AU3: Power Door Le>Cks 
BG9: Floor Covering: 

Rubberized Vinyl, Blac~ 
C67: A1r Conditoning, Manual 
FE9: Federal Emissions 
G80: LcckJng Diflerenlial, Rear 
GT5: Rear AxlE>, 4.10 Ratio 
JL 1: lnlegraled Trailer Brake 
K34: Crutse Control 
K47: Air Cleaner, High CapacJty 
KNP: Trans missloll Coo II ng 

System 
L95: Engine: 6.0L, V.jj, SF I, 

Fle<Fuel wl E63 cnly 
MYD:Transmission: 6-Speed 

Automatic 
N2N: Fuel Tank, Dual Fronl and 

Rear, 63.5 Gallon Total 
NZZ: Skicl Plates: Off-Road 
PYW:Wheel 17' Steel, Painted 
QOO:Tires: LT 235180R17 BIN 

Highway 
UOt : Roof Marker Lamps 
U2J: S111usXM Sate1t11e Radio, 

Delete 
UEO: On star Delete 
UM7: ETR AMiFM Stereo 

w/Seek-Scan and Digital 
Clock 

V76-: Recovery HOOKS 
VF7: Rear Bumper Delete 
VK3: License Plate Front 

Mounting Harnware 
285: HandlingiTrailering 

Suspens;on 
Z)N9: Body/Chassis: Standard 
lY1: Solid Paint Application 

Print Invoice 

Event Code: 5000- Vehide Delivered to Dealer 
Orc~r #: QFRCOM 

MSRP w! DFCt: $39,276.00 
Order Tyoe: TRE- Retail Stod< 

A(le cf Inventory: 141 

Stock#: N/A 

Status: Allalable 
ln'JCi::e w-'OFCt· $313,876.48 

3MS w! DFCj: WIA 

• Copy to My Stored Configurations 

https:l/www.autopartners.net/apps/naowb/naow b/locatevehicle/lc _ 05 _body .do 

REPORTS & TOOLS 

8/3112012 



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: September 11, 20 12 Item Number: 5 

Department: City Manager 

Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak Account Code: 

Date Prepared: September 4, 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 

Consider, and act upon, the Collective Bargaining Agreement between the City of McAlester and the 
International Association of Fire Fighters (IAFF) Local No. 2284, effective July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013 
and to include 2012-2013 Memorandum ofUnderstanding. 

Recommendation 
Motion to accept the IAFF 2012-2013 Collective Bargaining Agreement; this includes a 2012-2013 
Memorandum of Understanding. 

Discussion 

Approved By 

Department Head 

City Manager P. Stasiak 

Initial Date 

09/04/12 

Page 1 of 1 



McALESTER PROFESSIONAL FIRE FIGHTERS, 
IAFF LOCAL 2284 

To: Peter Stasiak, City Manager 
City of McAlester 
P.O. Box 578 

McAlester, OK 74501 

Re: FY 2012-2013 Collective Bargaining Agreement 

Dear Pete: 

Office of City \\!\(1\13 981 

SEP - 4 ZOll 

r~ecelved 

On August 30111 the membership met and ratified the City's Proposal to basically roll the 
agreement with some minor changes. The changes are as proposed by the City and 
submitted to our Representative, Rick Beams, President of the PFFO just following the 
last negotiation session. It was our understanding that you would not put the City's 
proposal on the Council Agenda until we had voted on the issue. If you have any 
questions please give me a call. 

Sincerely, 

Mike Caniglia, President 
IAFF Local 2284 

Cc: Rick Beams 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

AGREEMENT 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS 

LOCAL 2284 

and 

CITY OF MCALESTER 

July 1, 2012 - June 30, 2013 

1 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
ARTICLE ......... . 
1. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT. 
2. RECOGNITION ..... 

.. PAGE 
4 

5 
3. AUTHORITY AND TERM . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 5 
4. MANAGEMENT RIGHTS SECTION . . . . . . . . . . . 7 
5. UNION RIGHTS . . . 9 
6. DEFINITIONS. . . . . . 11 
7. PREVAILING RIGHTS. . . 13 
8. PROHIBITION OF STRIKES 13 
9. MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY TO AVOID DISCRIMINATION. 15 
10. UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICE 15 
11. PERSONNEL REDUCTION . 16 
12. GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE . 17 
13. MAINTENANCE OF PHYSICAL CONDIITON AND FITNESS 

FOR DUTY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 22 
14. MERIT INCREASES . . . . 24 
15. HOURS OF DUTY 
16. CALL BACK AND OVERTIME. 
17. HOLIDAYS BANK TIME 
18. SICK LEAVE ..... 

25 
26 
27 
30 

19. INJURY LEAVE .................. 36 
2 0 . SENIORITY . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3 7 
21. UNIFORM ALLOWANCE AND PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 38 
22. ANNUAL LEAVE ..... 
23. DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS .... . 
24. INSURANCE ......... . 
25. UNIFORM MAINTENANCE ALLOWANCE .... . 
26. LONGEVITY SERVICE PAY ........ . 

39 

41 
41 
42 
42 

27. DUES DEDUCTION ................ 43 
28. WAGES ..................... 46 
29. SAVINGS CLAUSE . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50 
30. REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY 51 
31. WORKING OUT OF CLASSIFICATION ......... 52 

2 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

32. GARNISHMENTS AND LEVY ON WAGES 	  53 
33. UTILITY SUBSIDY  	53 
34. SHORT TIME LEAVE 	  54 
35. PROMOTION PLANS FOR McALESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT 	 54 
36. DEPARTMENTAL FIRE SERVICE TRAINING 	  59 
37. PENSION/RETIREMENT 	  62 
38. TRANSFERS 	  63 
39. ALCOHOL AND DRUG TESTING POLICY 	  67 
40. HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 	  82 
41. AFFILIATION LEAVE 	  84 
42. SAFE STAFFING LEVELS 	  84 
Signature page 	  86 
Attachment #1 Pay Plan 	  87 
Attachment #2 Memorandum of Understanding . 	 88 

3 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 1 
PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT 

It is the intent and purpose of this Agreement, entered into 

by and between the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, a municipal 

corporation, hereinafter referred to as Employer and Local 2284, 

International Association of Firefighters, AFL-CIO/CLC, 

hereinafter referred to as Union, to protect the public health, 

safety and welfare of the citizens of McAlester, Oklahoma, from 

strikes, work stoppages, or slow-downs by the Union; to insure 

that the employees in the Bargaining Unit not be denied other 

well-recognized rights of labor, including the right to be 

represented by the Bargaining Agent of their choice and the right 

to bargain collectively with Employer concerning wages, hours and 

other terms and conditions of employment; and to provide for the 

equitable and orderly settlement of grievances which may arise 

during the term of this Agreement. The parties to this Agreement 

agree that uninterrupted and prompt fire service to the public is 

the basis for the existence of the fire service. 

4 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 2 

RECOGNITION 

The Union proposes that of the sworn personnel, only the 

Chief and one designated representative may be excluded from the 

bargaining unit. The City and Union agree that the following 

personnel shall be excluded from the bargaining unit: 

A. Fire Chief 

B. Assistant Fire Chief or One (1) Designated 

Administrative Assistant 

C. Probationary Firefighters 

D. Civilian Employees 

ARTICLE 3 

AUTHORITY AND TERM 

SECTION 1. The articles in this Agreement constitute an 

agreement by and between the Employer and the Union. 

SECTION 2. This Agreement shall be effective as of the 1st 

day of July 2012 and shall remain in full force and effect until 

the 30th day of June 2013. 

SECTION 3. The terms of this Agreement shall not exceed one 

(1) year, provided this Agreement shall continue from year-to-

year and be automatically extended for one-year terms unless 

written notice of request for negotiations is given by either 

5 



MCALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

party at least thirty (30) days before the anniversary date of 

this Agreement. Should a new agreement be in stages of current 

negotiations, the existing agreement shall be automatically in 

effect. 

SECTION 4. It shall be the obligation of the Employer to 

meet at reasonable times and confer in good faith within ten (10) 

days after receipt by the Employer of written notice from the 

Union requesting a meeting for collective bargaining purposes. 

SECTION 5. Whenever wages, rates of pay, or any other 

matters requiring the appropriation of monies by the Employer are 

included as matters of collective bargaining under the provisions 

of this Agreement, it is the obligation of the Union to serve 

notice of request for collective bargaining at least one-hundred 

twenty (120) days before the last day on which monies can be 

appropriated by the Employer to cover the contract period, which 

is the subject of the collective bargaining procedure. 

SECTION 6. In the event the Union and the Employer are 

unable within thirty (30) days from and including the date of the 

first meeting to reach an agreement, any and all unresolved 

arbitrative issues may be submitted to arbitration at the request 

of either party, in accordance with the provisions of Title 11, 

O.S.A. (1978), Section 51-106 through 51-110. 

6 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 4 

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS SECTION  

SECTION 1. Union recognizes the prerogative of Employer to 

operate and manage its affairs in all respects and in accordance 

with its responsibilities, and the power of authority which the 

Employer has not officially abridged, delegated, granted or 

modified by this Agreement are retained by the Employer; and all 

rights, powers and authority the Employer had prior to the 

signing of this Agreement are retained by the Employer, and 

remain exclusively without limitation within the rights of the 

Employer. 

SECTION 2. Except as may be limited herein, the Employer 

retains the right in accordance with the Constitution and Laws of 

the State of Oklahoma and the responsibilities and duties 

contained in the Charter of the City of McAlester, Oklahoma, and 

the ordinances and regulations promulgated thereunder; 

A. To determine Fire Department policy, including the 

right to manage the affairs of the Fire Department in all 

respects, except as above stated; 

B. To assign working hours, including overtime; 

C. To direct the members of the Fire Department, including 

the right to hire, terminate, suspend, discipline, promote 

or transfer any Firefighter; 

7 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

D. To determine the table of organization of the Fire 

Department, including the right to organize and reorganize 

the Fire Department and the determination of job 

classifications and ranks based upon duties assigned; 

E. To determine the safety, health and property protection 

measures for the Fire Department; 

F. To allocate and assign work to Firefighters within the 

Fire Department; 

G. To be the sole judge of the qualification of applicants 

and training of new employees; 

H. To schedule the operations and to determine the number 

and duration of hours assigned duty per week; 

I. To establish and enforce Fire Department rules, 

regulations and orders; 

J. To introduce new, improved or different methods and 

techniques of operation of the Fire Department or change 

existing methods and techniques; 

K. To determine the amount of supervision necessary; 

L. To control the departmental budget, and; 

M. To take whatever action may be necessary to carry out 

the mission of the Employer in situations of emergency. 

8 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 5 

UNION RIGHTS  

SECTION 1. The Union President and his two (2) designees 

shall be granted time off with pay to conduct bona fide and 

necessary business, up to an aggregate maximum of ninety-six (96) 

hours during the term of this Agreement, provided, approval is 

obtained from the Fire Chief or his designee. Records of time 

off for Union business will be maintained by the Fire Department 

Administration. A copy of this record will be provided to the 

Union President and/or his two (2) designees upon request. 

SECTION 2. It is agreed by the City that up to three (3) 

members of the bargaining unit may serve as members of the Union 

negotiation team for the purpose of negotiating annual agreements 

and shall be excused from duty without loss of pay, if prior 

approval is obtained from the Fire Chief. The parties expressly 

understand that no Union member shall receive additional 

compensation from the City due to the Union member's status as a 

member of the negotiation committee for the Union. 

SECTION 3. The Union may have a bulletin board within the 

Fire Station, its size and location subject to the approval of 

the Fire Chief. It is for notices concerning Union; education, 

recreation and social affairs, and other matters the Union and 

the Employer may agree upon. It is understood that material of a 

9 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

political, controversial or inflammatory nature shall not be 

posted. For the purposes of this section, political shall be 

defined to include matters dealing with the administration of 

public affairs or pertaining to political activities at the 

local, state or national level. For the purposes of this 

Article, inflammatory shall be defined as those comments tending 

to excite passion, tumult or of a personal derogatory nature, 

especially those comments directed toward the administration of 

the fire service, local government or toward elected officials of 

the City of McAlester. The Fire Chief or his designee shall be 

authorized to remove any material from the bulletin board that 

does not conform to the intent of this Article. It shall be the 

responsibility of the Union to maintain the material they post, 

to insure prompt removal of out-dated material, and further 

insure that the posting of such material is limited only to the 

bulletin board. 

10 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 6 

DEFINITIONS  

SECTION 1. Grievance — Grievance shall mean any alleged 

unilateral violation of this Agreement by either party or any 

dispute or controversy concerning the meaning, interpretation or 

application of this Agreement or any terms or provisions thereof. 

SECTION 2. Management — Management shall mean the City 

Manager, his designated representative or such other persons 

carrying out his directions or policies or acting in his behalf. 

SECTION 3. Employee — Employee shall mean any full-time 

employee engaged in the occupation of fire fighting for the City, 

excluding the Chief and one Assistant Fire Chief or one 

Administrative Assistant, probationary employees and civilian 

employees. 

SECTION 4. Immediate Family — Immediate family shall mean 

spouse, children, brothers, sisters, parents, guardians or other 

relatives of the employee who reside in employee's household and 

brothers, sisters and parents of employee's spouse. 

SECTION 5. Probationary Period — Probationary period shall 

apply to any employee who has served the City Fire Department 

less than twelve (12) months. Probationary period for employees 

advancing into a higher rank shall not be less than six (6) 

11 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

months, or more than twelve (12) months, at the discretion of the 

Chief, substantiated by written evaluation. 

SECTION 6. Twenty (20) Year Anniversary Date — The 

anniversary date is twenty (20) years from the date of the 

employee date of hire in the McAlester Fire Department. Any 

interruption or break in service shall be added to the employee 

anniversary date to insure that the employee has a full twenty 

(20) years of service with the McAlester Fire Department. 

SECTION 7. Anniversary Date — Anniversary date for all 

merit evaluations will occur on an employee's initial hire date 

and will remain with the employee during his/her entire tenure 

with the City of McAlester Fire Department, irregardless of 

promotions. For all employees who have an anniversary date based 

on their last promotion and were not topped out as of 7/1/2006, 

they will continue to have merit evaluations based on their last 

promotion. This date will remain with the employee for future 

merit evaluations irregardless of future promotions until the 

employee tops out and reverts to date of hire for anniversary 

date. (This definition will change language in a number of 

locations in the agreement and if the parties miss a particular 

location this definition is controlling.) 

12 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 7 

PREVAILING RIGHTS  

SECTION 1. All rules, regulations, fiscal procedures, 

working conditions, departmental practices and manner of 

conducting the operation and administration of the Fire 

Department currently in effect on the effective date of this 

Agreement shall be deemed a part of this Agreement, unless and 

except as modified or changed by the specific terms of this 

Agreement. 

SECTION 2. It is mutually recognized by the parties that 

this statutory requirement applies equally to each of the 

parties. 

ARTICLE 8 

PROHIBITION OF STRIKES  

SECTION 1. During the term of this Agreement, the Union 

agrees to prohibition of any job action, i.e. strikes, work slow-

downs, mass absenteeism, or being party to such activities. In 

addition, the Union agrees not to petition its affiliate, AFL-

CIO, for legal sanction to strike during the term of this 

Agreement. The Union shall not be in breach of agreement where 

the acts and actions heretofore enumerated are not caused or 

13 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

authorized by the Union. Union shall not aid or assist any 

person or parties engaging in the above prohibited conduct, by 

giving direction or guidance to such activities and conduct, or 

by providing funds, financial and other assistance for the 

conduct or direction of such activities or for the payment of 

strike, unemployment or other benefit to those persons or parties 

participating in such prohibited conduct and activities; 

provided, however, that Union may provide legal representation. 

SECTION 2. Upon notification, confirmed in writing by the 

City to Union, that certain of its members are engaging in 

wildcat strike. Union shall immediately in writing, order such 

members to return to work at once and provide City with a copy of 

such an order, and a responsible official of Union shall publicly 

order them to return to work. Such characterization of the 

strike is in-progress or has taken place or that any particular 

member is or has engaged in a wildcat strike. The notification 

shall be made solely on the representation of Employer. In the 

event that a wildcat strike occurs, Union agrees to take all 

reasonable, effective and affirmative action to secure the 

members return to work as promptly as possible. 

14 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 9 

MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY TO AVOID DISCRIMINATION 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted as 

diminishing the obligation of both parties to undertake 

affirmative action to insure that applicants or employees are 

treated without regard to race, color, religion, sex, size, 

national origin, status or union membership, political 

affiliation or mental or physical handicap. Specifically, 

pursuant to Equal Employment Opportunity Commission Guidelines, 

each party is obligated to take positive action in affording 

equal employment, training and promotional opportunities to all 

members, as required by Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 

1964, as amended. 

ARTICLE 10 

UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICE  

SECTION 1. The Employer and the Union agree that unfair 

labor practices, as defined in Title 11 O.S.A. (1978), Section 

51-102 (6), (6a), and (6b), shall constitute unfair labor 

practices for the purpose of this Agreement, and shall be subject 

to review by the P.E.R.B. of the State of Oklahoma. 

15 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 11 

PERSONNEL REDUCTION  

SECTION 1. In the event of a personnel reduction, the 

employee with the least seniority shall be laid off first. 

Seniority shall be determined by the last date of hire within the 

Fire Department. 

SECTION 2. No new employees shall be hired until the 

employee or employees laid off have been notified that an opening 

exists by certified or registered mail. Within fifteen (15) days 

after receipt of such notification, employee or employees on 

layoff will notify the City Personnel Office of their intention. 

Any employee's failure to respond within fifteen (15) days shall 

be considered as indication that the employee does not intend to 

continue his employment with the McAlester Fire Department. 

SECTION 3. Employees who have been laid off shall retain 

the recall preference for a period of twelve (12) months from the 

date of individual lay off from duty. 

16 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 12 

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE  

SECTION 1. The City, Union or any employee covered under 

this Agreement may file a grievance within thirty (30) days of 

alleged occurrence, as hereinafter defined, and shall be afforded 

the full protection of this Agreement. For the purposes of this 

Article, "City" shall mean the Fire Chief or his designated 

representative. 

SECTION 2. The Union President, or his authorized 

representative, may report an impending grievance to the Fire 

Chief in an effort to forestall its occurrence; similarly, the 

Union may be so informed by the City. 

SECTION 3. Any controversy between the City and the Union 

or any employee concerning the interpretation, enforcement or 

application of any provision of this Agreement shall be adjusted 

in the following manner: 

A. The grievance shall be discussed by the employee 

involved with the City. The answer shall be orally 

submitted by the City within ten (10) calendar days to 

the employee involved and to the Union President. 

B. If the grievance is not settled by the provision 

of Section 3A, it shall be submitted, in writing, to 

17 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

grievance within that time, it shall be submitted to 

arbitration for adjustment as follows: 

1. The bargaining agent and the City shall each 

select and name one (1) arbitrator and shall 

immediately thereafter notify each other, in 

writing, of the name and address of the person so 

selected. 

2. The two (2) arbitrators so selected and named 

shall, within ten (10) days, agree upon and select 

a third arbitrator. 

3. If, on expiration of the period as above 

stated, the arbitrators are unable to agree upon 

the selection of a third arbitrator, the 

bargaining agent and the City shall request the 

Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service to 

provide a list of five (5) arbitrators. 

4. Within seven (7) calendar days from the 

receipt of such panel, the two (2) arbitrators 

already selected shall meet and alternately strike 

names until one (1) arbitrator remains who shall 

be chairman of the Arbitration Board. The City  

parties will alternate who  shall strike the first 

name. 

19 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

the Union Grievance Committee. Within ten (10) 

calendar days, the Union Grievance Committee shall 

determine, in its sole discretion and judgment, whether 

or not a grievance exists within the terms and 

conditions of this Agreement. 

1. If the Union Grievance Committee finds a 

grievance does exist, the Committee shall submit, 

in writing, the grievance and written report of 

their fact-finding investigation to the Fire Chief 

for adjustment. 

2. If the Union Grievance Committee finds a 

grievance does not exist, no further proceedings 

shall be necessary. 

C. The Fire Chief shall submit his answer, in writing, to 

the employee involved and to the Union Grievance Committee 

within five (5) business days. If the grievance has not 

been settled within that time, it then shall be sent to the 

City Manager for adjustment. 

D. The City Manager shall submit his answer, in writing, 

to the Grievance Committee within ten (10) business days. 

If the Fire Chief, the employee involved, the City Manager, 

and the Union Grievance Committee have not settled the 

18 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

5. The Arbitration Board (acting through its 

Chairman) shall call a hearing to be held within 

thirty (30) calendar days after the date of the 

appointment of the Chairman. 

6. Within twenty (20) days after the conclusion 

of the hearing, the arbitrators shall issue a 

written opinion containing findings and 

recommendations with respect to the issue 

presented. A copy of the opinion shall be mailed 

or delivered to the Union and the Employer. 

7. With respect to the interpretation, 

enforcement, or application of the provisions of 

this Agreement, the decision, findings and 

recommendations of the arbitrator shall be final 

and binding on the parties to this Agreement. 

8. The arbitrator's authority shall be limited 

to the interpretation and application of the terms 

of this Agreement and/or any supplement hereto. 

The arbitrator shall have no jurisdiction to 

establish provisions of a new Agreement or 

variation of the present Agreement or to arbitrate 

away, in whole or part, any provisions or 

20 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

amendments thereof. This shall not preclude 

individual wage grievance. 

9. 	The cost of the impartial arbitrator shall be 

shared equally between the Union and the City. If 

a transcript of the proceedings is requested, then 

the party so requesting shall pay for it. 

SECTION 4. All time limits set forth in this Article may be 

extended by mutual consent but if not so extended, they must be 

strictly observed. If a party fails to pursue any grievance 

within the time limits provided, he shall have no further right 

to continue the grievance. 

SECTION 5. It is specifically and expressly understood that 

filing a grievance under this Article, which has as its last step 

final and binding arbitration, constitutes an election of 

remedies and a waiver of any and all rights by both parties, the 

Union, or other representatives of the party, to litigate or 

otherwise contest the last answer rendered through the Grievance 

Procedure in any Court or other appeal forum. 

21 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 13 

MAINTENANCE OF PHYSICAL CONDITION AND FITNESS FOR DUTY  

SECTION 1. The City and Union mutually recognize that the 

health and physical fitness of its Firefighters are of paramount 

importance. It is recognized that it is each employee's 

responsibility to maintain a physical condition sufficient to 

perform the position he/she holds. In order to maintain said 

condition, City may develop, and each employee shall undertake, a 

program of progressive physical condition and exercise on a 

regular basis. 

SECTION 2. The City agrees that positions shall be filled 

with due regard to the physical capabilities of applicants and in 

that regard, the City may, at any time, order an employee to 

undergo fitness-for-duty medical examinations at the City's 

expense. The City will advise the employee, in writing, of the 

basis for the examination and shall furnish a copy of said 

examination to the affected employee. If it is determined by the 

established medical evaluation procedure that the employee in 

question is not physically fit for duty, a written explanation 

will be forwarded to the employee at that time. The employee 

will be placed on probation as required by the appropriate 

22 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

medical authority. If the medical authority determines that a 

life-threatening condition exists, suspension may be ordered. 

SECTION 3. An employee who is suspended or terminated from 

active duty for failure to meet physical requirements shall not 

have any of his accrued legal rights penalized by action of this 

Article. 

SECTION 4. It is understood and agreed that the City shall 

seek and receive from Union input as to review and conditioning 

programs. It is agreed that the City and Union have, by this 

Article, made a mutual commitment to improve the physical health 

and safety of the members of the bargaining unit. The physical 

conditioning program shall not be employed in a disciplinary or 

correctional manner. Prior to participation in the program, each 

employee shall receive medical evaluation to establish 

participation parameter. 

SECTION 5. Prior to implementation of a functional  

employment testing program and/or a program of progressive  

physical conditioning and exercise both Management and the  

Bargaining Agent must agree with the program in its entirety.  

23 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 14 

MERIT INCREASES 

SECTION 1. The parties hereto recognize that increases and 

steps of pay are to be granted on the basis of merit, knowledge 

and performance, and that employees are not automatically 

entitled to step increases. In order to insure proficiency in 

advancement, the City may administer proficiency examinations. 

SECTION 2. The City will prepare proficiency examinations 

with respect to training and materials actually made available at 

least sixty (60) days prior to the testing date. 

SECTION 3. All employee merit evaluations will occur on 

his/her current anniversary date and that date thereafter unless 

the employee is promoted or demoted. Anniversary date is as 

defined in Article 6 above. 

SECTION 4. Employees promoted to a higher rank shall move 

one step back from the step they were in at a lower rank in the 

new higher pay class while the employee is on probation. Once 

released from probation, the employees will advance to the same 

pay step they had previously held, but in the new classification. 

If the increase in pay while on probation is less than 3 percent 

of the previous base pay the employee will be placed in the same 

24 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

step of the new classification and will not receive an increase 

when released from probation. 

ARTICLE 15 

HOURS OF DUTY  

SECTION 1. Employees shall work a schedule of twenty-four 

(24) hours on-duty and forty-eight (48) hours off-duty. 

SECTION 2. Employees work period shall be twenty-seven (27) 

days averaging two hundred and four (204) hours per work period 

on an annual period. 

SECTION 3. Shift change shall be executed at 0700. In the 

event an employee is moved from one station to another station 

during the normal shift the employee will receive normal city 

mileage for the distance they travel from one station to another 

to compensate him/her for use of their personal vehicle. The 

travel expense will be calculated and submitted quarterly. 

SECTION 4. It is agreed that members of the bargaining unit 

who are injured as a result of their personal pursuits while on 

the Employer's premises shall have no basis for claim against the 

Employer under Title 85 of the Oklahoma Statutes, entitled 

"Workmen's Compensation". 

25 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 16 

CALL BACK AND OVERTIME  

SECTION 1. Employees who are called back to duty from an 

off-duty status shall be credited with a minimum of one (1) hour 

of duty at a time and one-half computation. A callback list 

shall be established beginning with the most senior fire 

department member to the least senior member. When situations 

arise that require one or more employees to be employed for 12 

hours or more at time and one-half (1 1/2) their regular rate of 

pay, due to occurrences relating to manning the employee at the 

top of the list, will be given the opportunity to work the 

overtime. Regardless of whether the employee is unable to work 

or works the callback, his name will go to the bottom of the 

list. The next employee rotates into the top spot until all 

employees have been given the opportunity to work the callback. 

SECTION 2. Overtime shall consist of authorized duty in 

excess of the number of hours in any scheduled work week. 

Checking in and checking out time shall not be counted when 

computing overtime. The Fire Chief or City Manager shall have 

the authority to schedule departmental meetings six (6) times 

annually. These meetings will be mandatory for attendance. 

26 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 3. No member of the bargaining unit shall be 

awarded overtime compensation without the prior approval of the 

Fire Chief or his designee. 

SECTION 4. Each employee shall furnish the Manager's Office 

with a letter from his "outside" employer stating the employee 

acknowledges that the McAlester Fire Department is his primary 

responsibility. All "outside" employment shall be approved by 

the Fire Chief or City Manager each year. 

ARTICLE 17 

HOLIDAY BANK TIME  

SECTION 1. 	Each employee shall be granted thirteen (13) 

days of holiday bank time on the first day of January. 

SECTION 2. Employees may take holiday bank time at any time 

subject to the following: 

A. It must be approved and scheduled in advance with 

the Fire Chief or his designee; 

B. It must be taken in amounts not less than twenty- 

four (24) hours at one occurrence. 

C. Earned time may be taken in twelve (12) hour 

increments with approval of Captain. 	Captains shall 

request approval from the Fire Chief. 

27 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 3. Holidays observed by the City are: 

A. New Year's Day 

B. Martin Luther King Day 

C. Good Friday 

D. Memorial Day 

E. Independence Day 

F. Labor Day 

G. Presidents Day 

H. Veterans Day 

I. Thanksgiving Day and the Friday following Thanksgiving 

Day 

J. Christmas Day and the day before or the day after, that 

day being the same as observed by other city employees; 

K. Birthday 

SECTION 4. 	In the event other City employees receive an 

extra holiday during the year, the members of the Fire Department 

will receive an extra holiday also. 

SECTION 5. All holidays are to be scheduled and used in the 

calendar year in which the hours are accrued. The only exception 

will be where an individual cannot take certain hours of leave 

due to the demands of work as determined by the Fire Chief or his 

designee. All hours not used at the end of the calendar year must 

28 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

be used within the next three months and, if they cannot be used 

due to work demands as determined by the Fire Chief, the hours 

will be paid out of the next regular pay period following March 

30th of the applicable year. Subject to this exception, holiday 

leave hours cannot be carried over from year to year. 

SECTION 6. Firefighters working holidays shall accrue 

twelve (12) hours of comp time for working that holiday. This 

comp time accrual is restricted to fire department employees 

working the majority of the holiday. 

SECTION 7. Firefighters will receive comp time for time 

spent in class off-duty when the city determines that they are 

not going to pay for the expenses related to the class or 

registration fees. These training classes include any class 

instructed by OSU Fire Service Training or National Fire academy 

except those incentives taught at the McAlester Fire Department 

by McAlester Fire Department instructors with comp time earned on 

an hour for hour actually spent in class. 

29 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 18 

SICK LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Each member of the bargaining unit shall 

accumulate accrued sick leave at the rate of one ( 1) day per 

month. 

SECTION 2. All sick leave accrual shall be subject to a 

maximum accrual of ninety ( 90) days as of January 1st of each 

year. 

A. Employees hired prior to July 1, 1997, shall sell 

back one and one-half (1.5) days of accumulate sick 

leave per month beginning when the employee reaches 

seventeen and one-half (17.5) years of employment with 

the McAlester Fire Department. The hourly rate shall be 

recalculated in January and July of each year and any 

increase in pay in the last six (6) months shall be 

used to calculate buyback rate. After the employee=s 

twenty (20) year anniversary date the City shall have 

no further obligation to buy the employee=s accumulated 

leave. However, the employee following his twenty (20) 

year anniversary date shall be able to accumulate up to 

forty-five (45) shifts of sick leave. This additional 

accumulation, plus any sick leave that may have been 

30 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

accumulated prior to the twenty (20) year anniversary 

date that was not subject to buyback, at retirement, 

these employees will not be compensated for accrued but 

unused sick leave. 

B. Employees hired after July 1, 1997, will not be 

entitled to sell back or be compensated for accrued but 

unused sick leave prior to retirement as stated in Sub-

section A. At retirement, employees will be entitled 

to be compensated for a maximum of 720 hours of accrued 

but unused sick leave, depending on the amount of 

accrued leave. 

C. Employees hired after July 1, 2007, will not be entitled 

to sell back or be compensated fore accrued but unused sick 

leave prior to retirement as stated ln Sub-section A. At 

retirement, employees will be entitled to be compensated for 

a maximum of 260 hours of accrued but unused sick leave, 

depending on the amount of accrued leave. 

D. Upon separation, prior to an employee becoming eligible 

to receive their regular service pension, the employee shall 

be paid for unused sick leave on a one to three basis i.e. 

pay for one (1) shift for each three (3) shifts of 

accumulated leave. However, no employee may receive payment 

for more than the number of hours set forth in Subparagraph 

31 



-- -------------------

McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

A, B and C above, respectively based on hire date. The 

parties acknowledge that Administrative Policy No. 27 and 

Section 3.02 entitled Compensation for Unused Sick Leave 

contained in the City=s Personnel Manual shall not apply to 

those employees covered by subsection A, B and C above. 

SECTION 3. Computation of sick leave shall be accomplished 

and recorded as of December 31st of each year by crediting each 

employee with one (1) day of sick leave for each month of 

employment during that year, and then deducting one (1) day for 

each shift period used as sick leave. 

SECTION 4. Sick leave shall be used when sickness or injury 

incapacitates employees, which is not job-related. 

SECTION 5. Sick leave with pay shall be granted to 

employees in accordance with the following provisions: 

A. Sick leave used shall not exceed the total amount 

accrued to the employee at the time of his absence; 

B. Leave without pay may be granted by the Chief or 

his appointed designee for sickness or injury extending 

beyond the amount of accrued sick leave; 

C. Non-scheduled work days shall not be included in 

computing sick leave expenditures; employees shall be 

granted up to two (2) work days of sick leave as 

32 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

emergency leave with pay in the event of a death or 

serious illness of the employees or employees' spouses, 

immediate family and/or grandparents, grandchildren, 

aunts and uncles. 

SECTION 6. Employees who are absent from duty for reasons 

which entitle them to sick leave shall notify the Chief, or his 

designee, within a reasonable time after their usual reporting 

time, if physically able to do so. Reasonable time is generally 

considered to be one (1) hour after the usual reporting time. 

SECTION 7. Sick leave with pay in excess of two (2) work 

days for reasons of personal illness or injury shall be allowed 

only after presentation of a written statement by physician 

certifying that the employee's condition or his immediate 

family's condition prevented him from appearing for work or 

presenting himself for duty. Employee calling in for sick leave 

shall leave telephone number and address where he/she can be 

reached. Employee will be checked. Failure to answer telephone 

check will result in loss of pay for that shift. A written 

reprimand will accompany the loss of pay. 

SECTION 8. All costs for medical care required by employee 

because of an injury in the line of duty shall be the 

responsibility of the City through the Workmen's Compensation 

33 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

system. However, an employee may not receive both paid benefits 

in the form of sick leave and/or injury leave, and concurrently 

receive benefits in the form of temporary disability payments 

through the State-required Workmen's Compensation System. 

SECTION 9. 

A. Employees who accrue sick leave in excess of their 

maximum accumulation days during any year shall be permitted 

to exchange such excess for annual leave time on a three to 

one (3 to 1) basis (three (3) sick days of such leave for 

one (1) day of annual leave) or to be paid for such excess 

on the same basis (payment for one (1) annual leave day for 

each three (3) sick days). Excess sick leave will be 

exchanged for annual leave at the rate of three (3) for one 

(1) in January following the year in which it is earned. 

B. A one-day bonus shall be given to any member of the 

Fire Department who has not used a sick day during the year. 

Accumulation of ninety (90) sick days is not necessary to 

receive the bonus day. The City reserves the right to 

determine whether any buy back of sick leave shall occur. 

For buy back purposes, refer to Administrative Policy No. 

27. Buy back of sick leave under Section 2A shall have no 

effect on receiving the one (1) day bonus. Bonus day is to 

be taken and not bought back. 

34 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 10. As a matter of definition, one sick day will be 

equal to one twenty-four hour shift. 

be at the rate of one day per month. 

This sick day accrual will 

SECTION 11. Upon depletion of sick leave for any reason, 

the City will grant an employee one-shift advancement of sick 

leave for every year of service up to a maximum of twenty (20) 

shifts. The employee will pay back any advancement within a 

thirty (30) month period. 

Employees will be eligible for the employee donation program 

if they have exhausted all sick leave, including any advanced 

leave by the Employer. Any advance not paid back when an 

employee terminates for any reason may be deducted from 

employees' last check. 

35 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 19 

INJURY LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Injury leave shall be granted to any member of 

the bargaining unit who is injured on the job or who contracts an 

occupational illness on the job. 

A. Injury leave will not exceed sixty (60) consecutive 

scheduled shifts for each injury or occupational illness. 

B. Injury leave will be granted only on the written 

recommendation and evaluation of a medical doctor. In the 

event an employee is granted injury leave, such employee 

shall submit a physician's written evaluation for each 

thirty (30) days so granted for injury leave, or any portion 

thereof, until said employee returns to work. 

C. Injury leave granted under this provision will not be 

applied against accumulated sick leave. Employees will not 

accumulate sick leave during the time they are on injury 

leave. 

D. Should an employee die as a result of an occupational 

illness or injury sustained on the job, the City agrees to 

pay funeral expenses of the deceased employee up to a 

maximum of $5,000. 

36 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 20 

SENIORITY 

SECTION 1. Seniority shall mean the status attained by 

length of continuous service for the Employer. It shall commence 

from the date on which the employee becomes a regular employee 

upon satisfactory completion of, not to exceed one (1) year, 

probationary period. 

SECTION 2. Upon completion of the probationary period, the 

employee shall be credited toward seniority with the time served 

during the probationary period. 

SECTION 3. Where two or more employees in the same 

classification were appointed on the same date, their relative 

seniority standing shall be determined in the order of their 

employment application. 

SECTION 4. Seniority shall be lost upon the occurrence of 

any of the following: 

A. Discharge, if not reversed; 

B. Resignation; 

C. Unexcused failure to return to work upon the expiration 

of a formal leave of absence, and 

D. Retirement. 

37 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 21 

UNIFORM ALLOWANCE AND PROTECTIVE EQUIPMENT 

SECTION 1. Such uniforms and/or equipment will be repaired 

or replaced by the City, when, in the opinion of the Chief, or 

his designee, such repairs or replacements are deemed necessary. 

SECTION 2. Each employee shall be responsible for the 

proper care and maintenance of his assigned protective equipment, 

and if such equipment is lost or damaged through over-sight or 

inattention by the individual employee, then said employee shall 

be financially responsible for the repair or replacement of such 

equipment. 

SECTION 3. Each employee shall receive a clothing allowance 

ln the amount of four hundred fifty dollars ($450.00) per year, 

to be used only for the purchase and replacement of items of 

uniformed clothing as prescribed by the Fire Department Rules and 

Regulations. Employee may submit requests for uniform purchase, 

said purchase to be charged against his/her uniform allowance. 

Footwear shall be limited to a maximum of one hundred fifty 

dollars ($150.00) to be deducted from the four hundred fifty 

dollar ($450.00) clothing allowance. Scuba or repelling 

equipment should be limited to a maximum of two hundred seventy-

38 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

five ($275.00), which will be deducted from the four hundred and 

fifty dollar ($450.00) annual clothing allowance. 

SECTION 4. The City shall make every good faith effort to 

schedule a uniform vendor on the premises, on not less than a 

quarterly basis. 

ARTICLE 22 

ANNUAL LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Employees with zero (0) to five (5) years of 

service shall earn twelve (12) hours per month of annual leave 

with pay each calendar year, or a total of six (6) days per year. 

SECTION 2. Employees with five (5) to ten (10) years of 

service shall earn twenty (20) hours per month of annual leave 

with pay each calendar year or a total of ten (10) days per year. 

SECTION 3. Employees with excess of ten (10) years of 

service shall earn thirty (30) hours per month of annual leave 

with pay each calendar year or a total of fifteen (15) days per 

year. 

SECTION 4. The vacation schedule shall be posted no later 

than the 1st day of February, and employees may sign and bid for 

vacation scheduling through the 1st day of March. Seniority 

shall be a factor in granting annual leave. The Fire Chief or 

his designee shall schedule annual leave. 

39 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 5. Employees may accumulate annual leave up to a 

maximum of forty-five (45) calendar days. The City may buy back 

any excess annual leave over the forty-five (45) day maximum but 

not to exceed the (10) days over forty-five (45) days. The City 

reserves the right to determine whether any buy back shall be 

affected. 

SECTION 6. One (1) day equals twenty-four (24) hours 

(1 24 hours). 

SECTION 7. An employee's annual leave accumulation shall be 

reduced by at least one and one-half (1.5) days per month 

beginning when the employee reaches seventeen and one-half (17.5) 

years of employment with the McAlester Fire Department. As the 

accumulation is reduced, the City shall pay the employee for the 

excess over accumulation. The City shall be required to purchase 

rre more than two and one-half (2.5) days per month of excess 

annual leave at the employee's normal rate of pay on an hour per 

hour basis. The hourly rate shall be recalculated in January and 

July of each year and any increase in pay in the last six (6) 

months shall be used to calculate buyback rate. 

SECTION 8. However, the employee following his twenty-year 

anniversary date shall be able to accumulate up to twenty-two and 

one half (22.5) shifts of annual leave, the City shall have no 

40 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

further obligation to buy the employee's accumulated leave nor 

will any additional accumulated leave be subject to buy back. 

ARTICLE 23 

DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 

SECTION 1. The employer agrees to pay all dues, 

certification fees, recertification fees, and subscription fees 

for all employees qualified for membership or certification in 

the following organizations: 

A. Oklahoma State Firefighters Association; 

B. National Registry of Emergency Medical Technicians; 

C. Oklahoma State Emergency Medical Technicians 

Association. 

D. Pittsburg County Fire Fighters Association 

ARTICLE 24 

INSURANCE 

SECTION 1. The City shall have no responsibility to offer 

or provide any insurance to members of the bargaining unit. The 

City shall pay to the designated representative of the members of 

the bargaining unit an amount equal to the city's cost in 

providing each City employee with medical, dental and life 

41 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

insurance or $610.66 $641.19 per bargaining unit member, 

whichever is more. 

SECTION 2. Should the bargaining agent provide the City 

thirty days' notice prior to the beginning of a new contract year 

that they wish to join the City's medical insurance plan, the 

City agrees to accept all employees subject to acceptance by the 

City's insurance carrier. 

SECTION 3. The Employer agrees to payroll deduct dependent 

coverage for members of the bargaining unit who have authorized 

and approved such payroll deduction. 

ARTICLE 25 

UNIFORM MAINTENANCE ALLOWANCE 

SECTION 1. Each employee shall be responsible for cleaning 

and laundering of uniforms and maintenance of footwear. 

ARTICLE 26 

LONGEVITY SERVICE PAY 

SECTION 1. In addition to the base rate for each position, 

City agrees to provide a longevity service pay benefit for each 

member of the bargaining unit, which shall be calculated on a 

42 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

basis of five-dollars ($5.00) per month for each year of 

continuous service with the City. The longevity benefit shall 

commence with the fifth anniversary date of employment. Said 

longevity shall be paid semi-annually in the months of June and 

December of each calendar year with a maximum benefit of thirty 

(30) years. 

ARTICLE 27 

DUES DEDUCTIONS 

SECTION 1. City agrees to deduct regular monthly Union dues 

from earned wages of those members of the bargaining unit. The 

deduction shall be made from one (1) paycheck each month. The check 

for the total payment of dues withheld by the City shall be made 

monthly to the Secretary-Treasurer of the Union. 

SECTION 2. Employees authorizing deductions shall present an 

executed authorization card to the City more than thirty (30) days 

prior to the beginning date of the deduction. 

SECTION 3. City shall deduct dues only from employee's 

paycheck, and will not deduct initiation fees, special assessments, 

fines or other deductions. Deductions shall be at a stated rate 

throughout the term of the collective bargaining agreement executed 

herein. No deductions shall be made when the salary to be paid an 

employee lS not sufficient to cover the amount to be deducted. 

43 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 4. All deductions will be for the month in which they 

are taken. All deductions refundable at the time of termination or 

resignation shall be refunded by the Union. The City shall not be 

responsible for errors or omissions. In the case of an error or 

improper deduction made by the City, a proper adjustment of same 

shall be made by the Union with the employee affected. 

SECTION 5. The Union shall indemnify, defend, and hold the City 

harmless against any and all claims made, and against any suit 

instituted against the City on account of payroll deduction of Union 

dues. The cost for the payroll deduction service charged by the City 

shall be in accordance with the following: 

A. All extra work or expense incurred by the City because of 

requests or delays in furnishing information, materials, or 

supplies by the Union, or due to the furnishing of indefinite, 

erroneous or conflicting data shall be paid for or borne by the 

Union. The charges are to be based upon the City's actual cost 

and will be due and owing to the City upon delivery of an 

itemized invoice to the Union; 

B. For normal services contemplated by this section, the Union 

shall be charged $200.00 per year. 

C. City shall not be liable either at law or equity for any 

damages incurred by the Union which occurs from the City's non­

performance or delay of the duties and obligations of this 

44 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

covenant, where such non-performance or delay is due to fire, 

electrical or machine failure, strike, lock-out, governmental 

order or regulation, or any other failure similar or dissimilar 

beyond the City's reasonable control. 

D. Any member of the Union wishing to stop Union dues 

deductions shall notify the personnel/payroll office by the 

first day of each month. 

E. Employees in the bargaining unit who are not members of the 

Union may voluntarily elect to have an amount deducted from 

their paycheck, which reflects 85% of the monthly Union dues 

amount. In order to provide for such a voluntary, monthly 

deduction from a paycheck, an employee must present an executed 

authorization card to the City more than thirty (30) days prior 

to the beginning date of the deduction. Further, any such 

employee may revoke such authorization and such voluntary 

deduction at any time, upon presenting written notice of 

revocation to the City more than thirty days prior to the next 

deduction. 

SECTION 6. The Employer agrees to make payroll deductions of an 

IAFF payroll assessment fee in addition to those provided in Section 

1 from the paychecks of dues-paying members of the Union. The 

assessment shall be applicable to members who have signed and have on 

file with the Employer a voluntary, effective, authorized and 

45 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

approved payroll deduction card. The special assessment shall be 

revocable by the Employee notifying Employer in writing. The Union 

shall be notified of any revocation. 

ARTICLE 28 

WAGES 

SECTION 1. For FY 2012-2013, members will not receive an across 

the board increase effective as of July 1, 2012. 

SECTION 2. 

FIREFIGHTERS PAY RANGE 

Captains C-19 

Lieutenants C-17 

Operators C-15 

Firefighter II C-13 

Firefighter I C-11 

Probationary Firefighter C-9 

A. All members of the Fire Department shall obtain State 

EMT Certification within the first two (2) years of employment 

with the McAlester Fire Department unless circumstances warrant 

extending the time period by the Fire Chief. After the first 

registry obligation there will be no further requirements to 

maintain National EMT Certification status. Each 

46 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

firefighter/officer shall receive an additional $20.00 per month 

per training sticker, not to exceed $470 per month for all 

stickers and units inclusive and those identified by separate 

article in Article 36. Only five (5) refresher stickers will be 

counted toward training sticker incentive pay. The second five 

(5) training stickers may include one (1) refresher sticker per 

course only. Each party reserves the right to request reopening 

this contract if requirements of EMTs change during the course of 

this contract period. 

B. Each firefighter obtaining an Associate's Degree shall 

receive $25.00 per month over base salary. Each firefighter 

obtaining a Bachelor's Degree shall receive $50.00 per month over 

base salary. Each firefighter obtaining a Master's Degree shall 

receive $75.00 per month over base salary. These educational 

incentives are not cumulative, and satisfactory proof of 

qualification must be provided by the firefighter. 

C. Each firefighter shall receive an additional $10.00 a 

month for obtaining the first instructor certification and $5.00 

a month for the next three (3), with a maximum of $25.00 a month. 

Instructor certifications are limited to Instructor Level I, 

Instructor Level II, Fire Cause Determination and Investigation 

(FCDI), Level I, FCDI, Level II and CPR Instructor. 

47 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

D. Each firefighter/officer shall receive an additional 

$50.00 per month over base salary for obtaining the 

qualifications required to be a Fire Department 

Inspector/Investigator. 

E. Each firefighter/officer shall receive an additional 

$5.00 per month per Hazardous Material Training course not to 

exceed $25.00 per month. Each firefighter/officer shall receive 

an additional $5.00 per month per Hazardous Material Train-the­

Trainer course or Hazardous Material Response Team Instructor 

(as identified ln Article 36, Section 4) not to exceed $25.00 per 

month. This incentive is no long obtainable after 07-01-05. 

Incentives earned under this sub-section prior to 07-01-05 shall 

continue. 

F. Certified EMT instructors shall receive one hundred 

fifty dollars ($150.00) a month incentive pay. No more than two 

EMT instructors will be eligible to receive this pay and the Fire 

Chief shall be responsible for making the assignments. 

G. No more than three employees will be assigned to 

perform mechanic duties. These employees will receive an 

additional $150.00 per month incentive pay. Duties are outlined 

in the Rules and Regulations. Designation of the mechanics and 

any additional duties and responsibilities shall be solely 

designated by the Fire Chief. 

48 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

H. Each firefighter will be paid twenty ($20) dollars per 

month for completion of any OSU rescue series and vehicle 

extrication. This is subject to the incentive limitation as 

identified in Article 28, Section 2a. All members of the 

McAlester Fire Department shall obtain and maintain Hazardous 

Materials Operations Level Certification. Any employee wanting to 

receive incentive pay and serve on Hazardous Materials Response 

Team (HMRT) at Technician certification level will be paid an 

additional seventy-five ($75.00) per month. Not subject to 

limitation as identified in Article 28, Sec.2-A. Employees may 

sign up for this incentive upon completion of the course or each 

year in July. Employees may remove this incentive after two (2) 

years of signing up. (This would allow for the choice to be on 

the HMRT.) Should the number of Techs fall below the required 

minimum, the Employer may request negotiations and re-open this 

section of the agreement with ten (10) days notice to the 

Bargaining Agent. 

I. The Fire Marshal shall receive an additional one 

hundred fifty dollars ($150) per month for successfully 

completing and maintaining CLEET Certification and Bonding. 

SECTION 3. 

A Firefighter shall obtain the rank of Firefighter II after: 

49 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

A. The successful completion of Oklahoma State Fire 

Service Training Recruit School. 

B. The successful completion of EMT basic training and 

issuance of the Oklahoma State EMT registration. 

C. The successful completion of five (5) Oklahoma 

State Fire Service training stickers. 

D. Anniversary date shall be date of obtaining rank of 

Firefighter II. 

SECTION 4. A new recruit has to have complete OSU training 

courses A and B, Recognizing and Identifying Hazardous Materials, 

and Wild Land Fire. Rodney Ragan and Larry Glover shall be 

grandfathered in as having completed these courses even though 

OSU Fire Service Training does not recognize that they have 

completed the course. 

ARTICLE 29 

SAVINGS CLAUSE 

SECTION 1. If any provision of this Agreement or the 

application thereof to any person or circumstance is held 

invalid, the invalidity shall not effect other provisions or 

applications of this Agreement which can be given effect without 

50 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

the invalid provision or application, and to this end, the 

provisions of this Agreement are severable. 

SECTION 2. It is understood that the foregoing is a 

complete understanding of all the terms and conditions of 

employment to be governed by this Agreement during the contract 

period, and it cannot be altered in any manner save by the 

complete written concurrence of the parties subscribing hereto. 

SECTION 3. Any Appendices to this Agreement shall be 

numbered, dated and signed by the Employer and the Union, and 

shall be subject to the provisions of this Agreement unless the 

terms of said Appendices specifically delete or change a 

provision of this Agreement; and all Appendices shall become part 

of this Agreement as is specifically set forth herein. 

SECTION 4. It is understood that all time limits found 

within this Agreement may be extended by mutual concurrence. 

ARTICLE 30 

REIMBURSEMENT FOR PERSONAL PROPERTY 

SECTION 1. Personal articles necessary to enable 

Firefighters to better perform their duties that are damaged or 

broken in the line of duty shall be repaired or replaced at the 

51 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

option of the City; however, with regard to watches, the City's 

responsibility to repair or replace may not exceed $75.00. 

SECTION 2. Personal articles, as contained in this Article, 

shall include, but are not limited to: 1. Prescription 

eyeglasses and/or contact lens; 2. Dentures; 3. Hearing aides; 

4. Watches; 5. Medical ID jewelry. 

SECTION 3. A written report of the damage or breakage shall 

be made to the on-duty Shift Commander when such damage or 

breakage occurs. 

SECTION 4. When repair or replacement is necessary, the 

Firefighter's report stating how, when, and where such damage or 

breakage occurred shall be forwarded to the Fire Chief. 

ARTICLE 31 

WORKING OUT OF CLASSIFICATION 

SECTION 1. When an authorized budgeted position lS 

temporarily and/or permanently vacant and the Fire Chief has 

authority to fill said vacancy, the Fire Chief shall appoint an 

employee to fill said vacancy on a temporary basis. 

SECTION 2. After forty-five (45) calendar days from the 

date of actual vacancy, an employee appointed to fill that 

position on a temporary basis shall be entitled to receive the 

52 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

base salary pay of that position. Once the position is 

permanently filled, this working out of classification pay shall 

cease on the date of the permanent appointment. 

ARTICLE 32 

GARNISHMENTS AND LEVY ON WAGES 

SECTION 1. Employees shall be expected to pay their bona 

fide debts so as not to bring discredit to the department and the 

City. 

SECTION 2. Failure to comply with this Article by means of 

the City being served with a Garnishment and/or Levy on Wages on 

an employee may be cause for dismissal, providing such employee 

has had more than two (2) Garnishments and/or Levy on Wages 

served on the City for process within one (1) calendar year, 

excluding continuous orders. 

ARTICLE 33 

UTILITY SUBSIDY 

SECTION 1. Each employee residing within the McAlester City 

limits will be required to pay 100% of his/her municipal utility 

bill. 

53 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 34 

SHORT TIME LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Fire personnel may take leave off in twelve (12) 

hour increments, provided such absence does not create manning 

problems. Such short-time leave shall be deducted from accrued, 

unused holiday, sick or annual leave, as appropriate under 

existing criteria for leave usage in Article 17, 18 or 22, 

subject to Management or Management's designee's discretion as 

listed in each specific article. 

ARTICLE 35 

PROMOTION PLANS FOR McALESTER FIRE DEPARTMENT 

SECTION 1. The Promotion Board shall consist of five 

members: City Manager or his designee, Fire Chief, Local 2284 

Union President, and two (2) at-large firefighters elected by the 

Bargaining Unit. The City Manager, Fire Chief, and Union 

President shall serve as long as they occupy the office described 

above. The at-large representatives shall serve a period of two 

(2) years. Each member shall have one (1) vote and the majority 

of the votes shall be the final decision on Promotion Board 

matters. The Fire Chief shall serve as Board Chairman. 

54 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 2. Eligibility questions and Promotional Issues not 

contained specifically herein shall be posed to the Promotion 

Board for a ruling. If such an issue should arise any member 

will call the Board Chairman and it shall be his purpose to set 

notice, call meetings, and notify each member when a Promotion 

Board meeting is required. 

SECTION 3. All testing for promotion shall contain at least 

three (3) applicants. In the event there are not three (3) 

applicants eligible as identified in Section 4, the Promotion 

Board shall recess back one day at a time, utilizing time in 

service, until at least three (3) applicants are obtained. If 

more than one applicant falls eligible in the same day that the 

third applicant has become eligible, then these applicants will 

likewise be eligible. 

SECTION 4. Eligibility requirements for promotion shall be: 

A. Driver/Operator - Must have been a firefighter for three 

(3) years without any interrupted service with the McAlester Fire 

Department. 

B. Lieutenant - Must have six (6) years of uninterrupted 

service with the McAlester Fire Department and three (3) years of 

the six (6) years must have been as a Driver/Operator. 

55 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

C. Captain - Must have nlne (9) years of uninterrupted 

service with the McAlester Fire Department and three (3) years of 

the nine (9) years must have been as Lieutenant. 

D. Training Captain/Fire Marshal - Must have nine (9) years 

of uninterrupted service with the McAlester Fire Department and 

three (3) years of the nine (9) must have been as a Lieutenant. 

Must have satisfactorily completed the following O.S.U. Fire 

Service Training Courses: 

Fire/Arson Detection (12 hours), 

Fire Cause Determination and Investigation Level II (72 

hours), Fire Instructor Level II 

Inspection Practices (60 hours), 

Three (3) college hours relating to Fire Inspection 

Practices or a Fire Service Training Inspection Certificate from 

O.S.U., and eight (8) weeks of Basic Police Academy Training by 

C.L.E.E.T. 

Should any employee applying not have the required 

C.L.E.E.T. training or the three (3) college hours relating to 

Fire Inspection Practices but meet all other criteria, then these 

requirements shall be waived. The Fire Marshal appointed will 

have up to one (1) year to successfully complete these 

requirements unless Management determines that additional time is 

necessary to complete these requirements. 

56 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 5. All tests shall be administered by O.S.U. 

Service Training and shall consist of 100 multiple choice, 

true/false, or matching questions; the combination to be 

Fire 

determined by O.S.U. Each question shall be worth one (1) point 

each. For Captain the test questions shall come from the most 

current edition of the following books: Company Officer, 40 

questions; Fire Instructor, 30 questions; Essentials, 30 

questions. For Lieutenant the test questions shall come from the 

most current edition of the following books: Company Officer, 35 

questions; Fire Instructor, 30 questions; Essentials, 35 

questions. For Driver/Operator the test questions shall come 

from the most current edition of the following books: Apparatus, 

60 questions; Essentials, 40 questions. Passing score shall be a 

minimum of 60 points. If an applicant achieves the minimum 

passing score, they shall add one (1) point for each year of 

service over the minimum eligibility requirement for the 

position; they shall add one (1) point for each year of in grade­

service over the minimum eligibility requirements; they shall add 

one (1) point for each Certified Fire Instructor class (I or II) 

and one (1) point for each Fire/Arson class (I or II). A 

practical examination on streets, driving and operation of tools 

and apparatus utilizing a checklist shall be prepared and agreed 

upon by both parties on the Driver/Operator exam and a copy of 

57 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

the last street exam be provided to all applicants two weeks 

prior to the exam. This checklist and street test will be 

prepared within the Department, with the street test being 

prepared and the streets chosen on the day of the exam. For Fire 

Marshal/Training Captain the test questions shall come from the 

most current edition of the following books: Company Officer, 30 

questions; Fire Instructor, 30 questions; Essentials, 10 

questions and Inspection Practices, 30 questions. 

SECTION 6. The Fire Chief shall make the promotional 

appointment from either of the top two (2) applicants with the 

highest total score. If the highest scoring applicant is not 

chosen the Chief shall give a reasonable explanation of why the 

highest scoring applicant was not chosen. Scores shall remain 

valid and eligible for one (1) year. If another vacancy occurs 

within this one (1) year, the Chief shall then make his 

appointment from the top two (2) applicants on the eligibility 

list. 

SECTION 7. Any employee who has been reduced in rank by 

administrative action or on his/her own accord will not be 

eligible to test for that position for a period of one year. 

58 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 8. The Chief or his designee shall post an opening 

for promotion testing within thirty days from the date the 

position has become vacant. 

SECTION 9. Any applicant who is eligible to test for any 

promotion shall notify the Chief in writing within the allotted 

deadline. 

SECTION 10. Upon the Fire Chief's promotional appointment 

the successful appointee will have a performance evaluation in 

six (6) months to sustain the appointment. 

ARTICLE 36 

DEPARTMENTAL FIRE SERVICE TRAINING 

SECTION 1. Basic Continuing Education ~ Basic fire fighting 

continuing education shall consist of the following O.S.U. Fire 

Service courses and the minimum training required for completion 

of each course. 

Unit l~Ul, Forcible Entry, Rope and Portable Fire 

Extinguisher~l8 hours 

Unit 2~u2, Ladder Practices~30 hours 

Unit 3~U3, Hose Practices~30 hours 

Unit 4~U4, Salvage and Overhaul Practices~24 hours 

59 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

Unit S-US, Fire Stream Practices-48 hours 

Unit 6-U6, Fire Apparatus Practices-60 hours 

Unit 7-U7, Ventilation Practices-20 hours 

Unit 8-U8, Rescue Practices-48 hours 

Unit 9-U9, First Aid Practices-40 hours 

Unit 10-U10, Inspection Practices-60 hours 

SECTION 2. Change over to New System- Both parties agree 

that the Fire Department shall change over to the new O.S.U. Fire 

Service record-keeping system on July 1, 1993. 

SECTION 3. Additional Continuing Education Courses 

Additional fire-fighting continuing education shall consist of 

the following O.S.U. Fire Service courses, under the new record­

keeping system, and the minimum training required for completion 

of each course. 

Unit 11-U11, Basic Strategy and Tactics-30 hours 

Unit 12-U12, Firefighter Safety and Protective Equipment-24 

hours 

Unit 13-U13, Fire Behavior and Chemistry of Fire-24 hours 

Unit 14-U14, Self-Contained Breathing Apparatus and 

Cascade-12 hours 

Unit 15-U15, Company Officer-30 hours 

Unit 16-U16, Public Fire Education-18 hours 

Unit 17-U17, Wild Land Firefighting Fundamentals-16 hours 

60 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

Unit 18-U18, Leadership for Company Officer-30 hours 

Unit 19-U19, Industrial Fire Protection-20 hours 

Unit 20-U20, Fire Fighter Health and Safety-36 hours 

SECTION 4. Hazardous Material Training- Hazardous material 

training courses shall consist of the following O.S.U. Fire 

Service, N.F.A. Fire Service Training courses and/or Train-the­

Trainer hand-off courses and the minimum training required for 

completion of each course. 

Hazardous Materials Incident Analysis-12 hours 

Hazardous Materials the Pesticide Challenge-12 hours 

Recognizing and Identifying Hazardous Materials-8 hours 

Incident Command System-12 hours 

Hazardous Materials Response Team Training-36 hours 

Hazardous Materials Operations-48 hours 

Hazardous Materials Technician-SO hours 

LPG Class 12 hours 

Emergency Vehicle Driver Training 8 hours 

Confined Space Operations 24 hours 

Confined Space Rescue 40 hours 

Emergency response to terrorism 16 hours 

Should any of the "Hazardous Material Train the Trainer" 

courses be discontinued by the O.S.U. or N.F.A., employees having 

had the course either within the Fire Department or outside the 

61 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

department and being certified as a Level I or II instructor 

shall then meet the qualifications required to instruct these 

courses within the McAlester Fire Department and receive the 

incentive pay attached to these courses. 

Each firefighter who attends Officer and Leadership courses 

that are only offered through OSU Fire Service Training or 

National Fire Academy and taught by their instructors will 

qualify as additional continuing education courses as if listed 

in Section 3. 

ARTICLE 37 

PENSION/RETIREMENT 

SECTION 1. In accordance with 11 O.S. 49-122, the City 

shall contribute the statutorily required percentage of the 

employees' total actual paid gross salaries to the Oklahoma 

Firefighters Pension and Retirement System. 

SECTION 2. In accordance with 11 O.S. 49-122, the employee 

shall contribute eight percent (8%) to the Oklahoma Firefighters 

Pension and Retirement System. The new conversion calculation 

shall begin on December 1, 2006. 

SECTION 3. All other terms of pension and retirement shall 

be governed by the Oklahoma Firefighters Pension and Retirement 

System as provided in 11 O.S. 49-100.1 to 11 O.S. 49-143, et al. 

62 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 38 

TRANSFERS 

SECTION 1. Any Full-time employee working for the City of 

McAlester excluded as an employee under the terms and conditions 

of this agreement may transfer into the Fire Department and the 

Bargaining Unit subject to approval by the Fire Chief and City 

Manager and pursuant to the terms of the agreement and the 

following sections. 

A. Any full-time employee who is approved for transfer 

into the Fire Department shall be allowed to transfer 

annual leave and sick leave accumulation into the Fire 

Department at a rate of eight (8) hours per day of 

accumulated leave. Annual leave accrual rates shall be 

based on time in service as an employee as defined in 

Article 6 of the Agreement. 

B. Any full-time employee who is approved for transfer 

into the Fire Department shall have longevity figured 

on continuous time in service with the City of 

McAlester rather than service with the Fire Department. 

C. Any full-time employee who is approved for transfer 

into the Fire Department shall begin his/her salary at 

63 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

the beginning pay classification, Step One (1) for a 

Fire Recruit. However, if the employee has prior 

documented fire service experience or is at least a 

Certified EMT he/she may begin his/her salary at Steps 

Two (2) or Three (3) but still at the same pay grade of 

a Fire Recruit. 

D. Any successful applicant who is not a City employee 

shall likewise start at the Fire Recruit pay 

classification, Step One (1) unless he/she has prior 

documented fire service or is at least a Certified EMT. 

He/she too, must start at the Fire Recruit pay 

classification but start at a higher step grade as 

described in Section Four. 

SECTION 2. Fire Department Employees (as defined under 

Article 6) transferring within the Department from a Line 

position to a Staff position or from a Staff position to a Line 

position shall make the conversion pursuant to the terms of the 

agreement and the following sections or sub-sections. 

A. Any employee transferring from a Line position to 

a Staff position shall be allowed to maintain all 

annual leave and sick leave accumulations based on the 

total hours allowed under Article 22 and Article 18. 

Example: A) 45 days X 24 hrs = 1080 hours of annual 

64 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

leave accumulation. B) 90 days X 24 hrs = 2160 hours 

of sick leave accumulation. The employee may exercise 

an option to have all hours of accumulation reduced to 

eight hour days and to be compensated for all excess 

leave over and above the maximum accumulations on an 

hour for hour basis at the employee's regular hourly 

rate of pay. Example: 1200 hours of annual leave 

accumulation reduced to maximum of 360 hours leaving 

840 hours to be bought back by the City at the 

employee's hourly rate; or 2400 hours of sick leave 

accumulation reduced to maximum of 720 hours leaving 

1680 hours to be bought back by the City at the 

employee's hourly rate. 

B. Any Employee transferring from a Line position to 

a Staff position shall accrue or earn annual leave and 

sick leave in the following manner. 

1. Employees with less than nine (9) years of 

service shall not be allowed to transfer from a 

Line position to a Staff position. 

2. Employees with nine years of service shall 

earn fourteen (14) hours per month of annual 

leave with pay each calendar year or a total of 

twenty-one (21) days per year and shall take 

65 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

annual leave based on eight (8) hours 

day of leave. 

one (1) 

3. Staff employees will earn sick leave at a 

rate of eight (8) hours per month and shall 

take sick leave based on eight (8) hours = one 

(1) day of leave. 

4. Staff employees will receive thirteen (13) 

holidays based on eight (8) hours = one (1) 

holiday. 

5. Staff Employees shall begin to earn their 

leave and Holidays based on an eight (8) hour 

day (forty (40) hour work-week) on the first 

(1st) day of the month following the transfer 

from line to staff. All leave and holidays 

earned prior to this date will be at the 24-

hour day. (Fifty-three (53) hour week) 

6. Staff Employees shall work a schedule of 

eight (8) hours per day five (5) days per week 

or forty (40) hours per week. The daily and 

weekly work schedule is flexible and may be 

scheduled with the approval of the Chief as 

long as forty (40) hours per week are scheduled 

and worked. 

66 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

C. Fire Department Employees (as defined under 

Article 6) transferring within the department from a 

Staff position to a Line position shall earn and 

accumulate all leave as listed in the specific article 

of the agreement for such leave beginning on the first 

(1st) day of the month the transfer takes place. All 

leave and holidays earned while employed as a Staff 

Employee will be at eight (8) hours = one (1) day rate. 

SECTION 3. Transfers within the same pay grade from Staff 

to Line position or from Line to Staff position may be allowed 

only if the employee has tested for and is still eligible to fill 

a position that is created or has become vacant, or the employee 

is transferring to a position, either Staff or Line, that the 

employee formerly held. 

ARTICLE 39 

ALCOHOL AND DRUG TESTING POLICY 

SECTION 1. Alcohol and Drug Testing Policy and Purpose 

The purpose of this article is to maintain a work 

environment that is safe and conducive to high work standards. 

The policy is a joint effort of the City of McAlester and the 

IAFF Local 2284 for the elimination of substance abuse and the 

67 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

improvement of related job performance. Having a substance abuse 

problem may render an employee unfit for duty. Such behavior 

shall not be tolerated and the City will administer a program to 

educate employees regarding the hazards of substance abuse and to 

eliminate such abuse. The City's program shall include efforts 

to rehabilitate employees suffering from substance abuse 

problems. This policy shall be in accordance with and 

administered pursuant to OKLA. STAT. title 40, 551, et, seq.: 

The Oklahoma Standards for Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing 

Act, 49 U.S.C. sections 2717 and 1434 of the Federal statutes and 

the Department of Transportation (D.O.T.) Rules and Regulations 

found at 40 CFR Part 121 and 40 CFR Parts 382, 391, and 392 and 

any amendments thereto. Drug or alcohol testing required by and 

conducted pursuant to federal law or regulation shall be exempt 

from the provisions of the Standards for Workplace Drug and 

Alcohol Testing Act and the rules promulgated pursuant thereto. 

SECTION 2. Effective Date 

This policy will be effective thirty (30) days after 

official posting and following distribution of the policy to all 

members of the bargaining unit. 

SECTION 3. Application and Violation 

This policy shall apply to all employees of the McAlester 

Fire Department. Employees who violate any aspect of this policy 

68 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

(including receiving a confirmed positive test or refusing to 

submit to testing) may be subject to disciplinary action, up to 

and including termination. 

SECTION 4. Pre-Placement Testing 

All applicants for position with the McAlester Fire 

Department shall undergo drug and alcohol testing as part of 

their physical prior to assignment. 

Job applicants shall be tested only after conditional offer 

of employment. Refusal to undergo a test, or a confirmed 

positive test, shall be the basis for withdrawing offer of 

employment. 

SECTION 5. Random Testing 

A. The City may request or require unit members to undergo 

drug testing on a random selection basis. 

B. "Random selection basis" means a mechanism for 

selecting employees for drug testing that: 

1. Results in an equal probability that any employee 

from the group of employees subject to the selection 

mechanism will be selected; and 

2. Does not give the employer discretion to waive the 

selection of any employee selected under the mechanism. 

C. Unit employees shall be randomly tested at the 

following test rates: 

69 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

1. The maximum yearly percentage rate for random­

controlled substances testing shall be twenty-five 

(25%) percent of all Fire Department members. 

D. The City shall strive to ensure that random-controlled 

substance tests, conducted pursuant to this article, are 

unannounced. Following the testing of the pool of Fire 

Department members, the City will provide the Union 

President a listing of all members scheduled for testing and 

those tested. 

E. Every unit member who is selected for random drug 

testing shall proceed to the test site immediately upon 

notification, unless the unit member is actively performing 

a safety-sensitive function at the time of notification, 

which will not reasonably allow his/her replacement. In 

such cases, the unit member's supervisor shall ensure that 

the unit member proceeds to the testing site as soon as 

possible. 

F. Unit members will be informed that they have been 

selected to submit samples after they have arrived at work 

on the day of collection. Specimen collections shall occur 

as soon as possible after the beginning of the work shift. 

Unit members shall be tested only during working hours. 

70 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

G. Fire Department employees shall be considered a 

separate pool of employees for purposes of random testing. 

SECTION 6. Reasonable Suspicion 

Drug and alcohol testing may be required of any employee if 

there is "reasonable suspicion" that the employee is using or has 

used drugs or alcohol in violation of this policy. 

suspicion is, among other things: 

Reasonable 

5.1 Observable and articulable phenomena, such as physical 

symptoms or manifestation of being under the influence of drugs 

or alcohol while at work or on duty: 

5.2 The direct observation of such use while at work or on 

duty. 

5.3 A report of drug or alcohol use while at work or on 

duty provided by reliable and credible sources and which have 

been independently corroborated; 

5.4 Evidence that an employee is involved in the use, 

possession, sale, solicitation, or transfer of drugs while on 

duty or while on the employer's premises or operating the 

employer's vehicle, machinery, or equipment. 

No testing under "reasonable suspicion" shall be initiated 

unless the circumstances are properly reviewed and agreed upon by 

a least two (2) supervisory-level personnel within the Fire 

Department. A written record of the observations leading to any 

71 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

drug or alcohol tests shall be created by the supervisor(s) who 

made such observations within 8 hours of the observed behavior. 

SECTION 7. Post-Accident Testing 

Post-accident drug and alcohol testing may be conducted on 

any employee where there has been damage to City property which 

the City reasonably believes at the time exceeds Five Hundred 

Dollars ($500.00) or where there has been injury to any employee 

or third party, or where there exists "reasonable suspicionu that 

the accident, injury, or damage was a result of the use of drugs 

or alcohol by the employee. 

SECTION 8. Post-Rehabilitation Testing 

The City of McAlester may require an employee to undergo 

drug or alcohol testing without notice for a period of two (2) 

years after returning to work after a confirmed positive test 

and/or following participation in a drug or alcohol dependency 

treatment program. (Post-rehabilitation testing shall be in 

addition to any other testing the rehabilitation program 

requires.) 

SECTION 9. Substance for Which Test May be Given (Includes 
Related Metabolites) 

9.1 Ethyl Alcohol or Ethanol (beer, liquor, etc.) 

9.2 Cannabinoids or Marijuana (pot, weed, grass) 

9.3 Cocaine (including crack) 

72 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

9.4 Amphetamines (including speed) 

9.5 Opiates (including morphine, codeine, dilaudid, 
percodan) 

9.6 Phencyclidine (including angel dust, PCP) 

Threshold reporting levels shall be those established and 

maintained by the Federal Department of Transportation and as 

utilized by the National Institute for Drug Abuse. 

SECTION 10. Testing Methods and Collection Procedures 

10.1 All collection and testing shall be done in 

accordance with the rules promulgated by the Oklahoma State 

Board of Health. 

10.2 All sample collection and testing for drugs and 

alcohol pursuant to the provisions of this article shall be 

conducted in accordance with the following: 

a. Samples shall be collected and tested by labs 

deemed qualified by the State Board of Health. 

b. The collection of samples shall be performed 

under reasonable and sanitary conditions. 

c. A sample shall be collected in sufficient 

quantity for splitting into separate specimens 

pursuant to rules of the State Board of Health 

to provide for any subsequent independent 

73 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

analysis in the event of challenge of the test 

results on the main specimen. 

d. Samples shall be collected and tested with due 

regard to the privacy of the individual being 

tested. In the instance of urinalysis, no 

employer shall observe an applicant or employee 

in the process of producing a urine sample. 

e. Sample collections shall be documented, and the 

documentation shall include: 

1. Labeling of samples so as reasonably to 

preclude the probability of erroneous 

identification of test results, and 

2. An opportunity for the applicant or 

employee to provide notification of any 

information which the applicant or 

employee considers relevant to the test, 

including identification of currently or 

recently used prescription or non­

prescription drugs, or other relevant 

information. 

SECTION 11. Cost 

The City shall pay all costs of testing for drugs or alcohol 

required by this policy including confirmation tests required by 

74 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

this policy. If an employee requests a retest of a sample in 

order to challenge the results of a positive test result, the 

employee shall pay all costs of the retest. If the retest 

reverses the findings of the challenged positive test, the City 

shall reimburse the individual for the cost of the retest. 

SECTION 12. Refusal to Undergo Testing; Tampering with 
Samples 

Employees refusing to undergo testing according to the terms 

of this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and 

including termination. Employees found supplying or attempting 

to supply an altered sample or a substituted sample, not their 

own, by whatever means, shall be subject to disciplinary action 

up to and including termination. 

SECTION 13. Confidentiality 

The City shall treat all tests and all information related 

to such test, including interviews, memoranda, reports, and 

statements as confidential. 

SECTION 14. Disciplinary Action 

The City shall not take disciplinary action against any 

employee who tests positive for drugs or alcohol unless the test 

is confirmed by a second test performed on the same sample using 

the methods prescribed by the Oklahoma Standards for Workplace 

75 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

Drug and Alcohol Testing Act. However, this shall not preclude 

the use of paid leave in cases involving reasonable suspicion. 

Non-probationary employees with a previously satisfactory 

work record will be given an opportunity to continue employment 

after an initial occurrence of a positive drug or alcohol test. 

Some period of leave with pay may be granted dependent on the 

employee's leave accrual for the employee to be enrolled in an 

approved rehabilitation program. 

Continued employment, if offered, shall be contingent upon 

the employee agreeing in writing to undergo random or periodic 

drug and/or alcohol post-rehabilitation testing for two (2) 

years. 

If an employee tests positive for drugs and alcohol, said 

employee may be suspended, demoted, or terminated following a 

pre-termination hearing. Employees refusing to enroll in an 

approved rehabilitation program shall be terminated. 

SECTION 15. Upon demand that the employee submit a sample 

for testing, the employee shall receive a written description of 

his/her rights, obligations and options, as set forth in 

subsection 1 below. Thereafter, the employee shall be escorted 

to the designated medical or collection facility where samples 

will be given for the purpose of analysis. 

76 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

A. RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES UNDER THE SUBSTANCE ABUSE POLICY FOR 
THE CITY OF MCALESTER 

You, as an employee of the City of McAlester, have been 

asked to give the City a breath sample for alcohol testing and/or 

a urine sample for drug testing under the substance abuse policy. 

You, as an employee, have the following rights: 

1. You may refuse to provide the City with the appropriate 

sample. However, if your refuse, it may result in 

termination of your employment. 

2. If you agree to give a breath and/or urine sample for 

testing, you will be asked to sign a consent form which 

authorizes the taking and sending of the sample to the 

laboratory used by the City to conduct the analysis and to 

release said results of the analysis to the medical review 

officer and to the designated Substance Abuse Policy 

Administrator for the City of McAlester, which is the 

Personnel Director for the City of McAlester. 

3. If you agree to be tested, you will be escorted to a 

medical facility by the applicable supervisor. If you are 

tested for alcohol and not drugs, you will be returned to 

work upon a negative finding subject to special instruction 

for safety-sensitive employees. If positive, you will be 

unable to return to work for at least twenty-four (24) hours 

77 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

and will be subject to possible disciplinary action. Upon 

being tested for drugs under reasonable suspicion, post 

accident, or post vehicular accident testing, you will be 

suspended with pay. Suspension will be effective 

immediately after the testing and shall be for the period of 

time required to process, screen and confirm test results. 

If your test results are negative, you will be reinstated 

and all reference to the suspension shall be removed from 

your personnel file. Random testing and return to duty 

follow-up testing for drugs does not require immediate 

suspension. 

4. If your test results are positive for drugs or alcohol, 

you will be given the opportunity to participate in the 

Employee Assistance Program. Participation in the Employee 

Assistance Program will not avoid any discipline, including 

termination, which may be imposed. 

5. You may, within seventy-two (72) hours on receipt of 

the drug test results, request the split specimen be 

analyzed by a different certified laboratory site. 

If you request the split specimen test, you will be 

responsible for its cost unless the test results are negative. 

On this day of , 20 I 
------

Have read the foregoing rights and fully understand them. 

78 



---------------------------------- - ---------------

McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

Employee Signature 

Prior to testing, the employee shall sign a consent form 

authorizing: (1) the medical facility to take the specimen; and 

(2) authorizing the testing laboratory to release the test 

results to the medical review officer and the designated 

substance abuse policy administer. The consent form shall 

provide space for the employee to acknowledge that he or she has 

been notified of the substance abuse policy. An employee's 

refusal to sign the consent form shall constitute a refusal to be 

tested. 

MEDICAL CONSENT AND RELEASE OF INFORMATION 

The undersigned voluntarily consents and agrees, as a 

condition of employment, to submit to a drug and/or alcohol test, 

which may include a urine test for controlled substances and/or 

evidential breath or blood alcohol test by doctors or other 

qualified persons. 

The results of any such examination and tests may be 

released to the Personnel Director of the City of McAlester, 

Oklahoma. 

I hereby release the physicians, medical facilities, 

clinics, and their employees, agents and representatives from 

79 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

any and all liability, except for inaccurate test results 

arising from the release and use of the information discovered 

in such test including the results of any test and any decision 

regarding my employment or prospective employment with the City 

of McAlester, Oklahoma. 

(Employee Signature) 

CONFIDENTIALITY OF TESTING RESULTS AND RECORDS 

A. The City shall maintain all drug and alcohol test results 

and related information including, but not limited to, 

interviews, reports, statements and memoranda, as confidential 

records separate from other personnel records. 

B. Such records, including the records of the testing 

facility, shall not be used in a criminal proceeding or a 

civil or administrative proceeding, except in administrative 

actions taken by the employer. 

C. The records maintained by the City shall be the 

property of the employer and, upon request of the unit 

member, shall be made available for inspection and copying 

to the unit member. 

D. The City shall not release records to any person other 

than the unit member or the City's medical review officer 

except the list of those scheduled for testing and those who 

80 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

have been tested to the Union President, unless the unit 

member, in writing following receipt of the test results, 

has expressly granted permission for the City to release 

such records or pursuant to valid court order. 

E. A testing facility, or any agent, representative or 

designee of the facility, or any review officer shall not 

disclose to any employer, based on the analysis of a sample 

collected from a unit member for the purpose of testing for 

the presence of drugs or alcohol, any information relating 

to: 

1. The general health, pregnancy or other physical or 

mental condition of the unit member; 

2. The presence of any drug other than the drug or its 

metabolites that the City requested to be identified and for 

which a medically acceptable explanation of the positive 

result, other than the use of drugs, has not been 

forthcoming from the unit member, provided however, a 

testing facility shall release the records of the drug or 

alcohol test, and any analysis and information related 

thereto, to the individual tested upon his request. 

F. If the test result is negative, the MRO shall only inform 

the City that the test was negative without disclosing any 

other information. 

81 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM (E.A.P.) 

The City shall maintain either an in-house or contract an 

"Employee Assistance Program", which at a minimum provides for 

drug and alcohol dependency evaluation and referral services for 

substance abuse counseling, treatment or rehabilitation. 

APPEAL PROCEDURES AND REMEDIES 

A. Unit members may appeal any discipline imposed as a 

result of drug or alcohol testing via the grievance procedure. 

B. The Oklahoma Standards for Workplace Drug and Alcohol 

Testing Act provides that any person aggrieved by a willful 

violation of the Act may institute a civil action for 

declaratory or injunctive relief and damages, and provide for 

misdemeanor penalties for knowing and willful violations of 

the Act. 

C. The party's agreement to random drug testing in no way 

diminishes, acquiesces, or removes a unit member's civil 

rights under the U.S. Constitution. 

ARTICLE 40 

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMMITTEE 

There is hereby established a Health and Safety Committee 

and responsibilities are as follows: 

82 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

SECTION 1. Committee shall consist of five (5) members, 

which include one firefighter, one driver, one lieutenant, one 

captain, and the Fire Chief or his designee. 

SECTION 2. Any and all recommendations shall be presented 

to the Fire Chief for action or non-action. If this committee 

disagrees with the Chief's action or non-action, the matter shall 

automatically go to the Safety Officer. 

SECTION 3. The Safety Officer will review all details and 

submit a final report in writing to the Chief and Safety 

Committee. 

SECTION 4. The Committee of Rank will be selected to serve 

as follows: 

A) Firefighters will designate their representative 

B) Drivers will designate their representative 

C) Lieutenants will designate their representative 

D) Captains will designate their representative 

SECTION 5. It is understood this committee will act solely 

as an advisory and non-authoritative committee. 

83 



----------------~~---

McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

ARTICLE 41 

AFFILIATION LEAVE 

SECTION 1. Any employee who becomes an officer or maintains 

an appointment on a fire service related board or committee such 

as Fire Chiefs Association, International Association of Arson 

Investigators, Oklahoma State Firefighter Pension Board, Oklahoma 

State Firefighters Association, International Association of Fire 

Fighters, Professional Fire Fighters of Oklahoma, State Fire 

Marshals Office at either the state or national level shall be 

given time off of up to one day per month to attend committee 

meetings, board meetings, or conventions. This leave will not be 

accumulated from month to month. 

ARTICLE 42 

SAFE STAFFING LEVELS 

Section 1. The parties agree the McAlester Fire Department is 

an organization of dedicated professionals who are committed to 

serving the community by protecting life, property, and the 

environment through fire and injury prevention, education, fire 

suppression, and emergency medical response. 

Section 2. The parties agree staffing levels have not been 

increased since 1981. 

84 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

Section 3. The parties agree to prioritize staffing and strive 

to increase staffing to adequate levels consistent with the 

national recommended minimum staffing level needed to safely and 

efficiently extinguish a 2000 square foot residential structure. 

The parties further agree that grants or other funding sources 

will be sought to offset additional costs to the City. 

Section 4. The parties agree that increasing staffing levels 

will be incremental in nature and cannot fully be accomplished in 

one fiscal year. A committee made up of three (3) designated 

representatives of management and three (3) designated 

representatives of the bargaining unit will agree on the duration 

of time needed and the incremental number of staff per fiscal 

year needed to meet the needed staffing level based on revenues 

available. 

Section 5. The parties agree a minimum staffing level of forty 

(40) bargaining unit employees will the base number of employees 

for implementing increases in staffing. 

85 



McALESTER IAFF COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT 2012/2013 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands 
this day of 20 

ATTEST: 

Cora Middleton, City Clerk 

Secretary of Bargaining Agent 

CITY OF McALESTER, OKLAHOMA 
A Municipal Corporation 

By __________________________ __ 

Mayor of McAlester 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF 
FIREFIGHTERS 
Local 2284 
Bargaining Agent 

By ____ ~~----~~----~~-------­
President of Bargaining Agent 

Attachment 1: IAFF Classified Pay Scale 
Attachment 2: Memorandum of Understanding (Hiring 1 (one) Additional 

Firefighter 

86 



CLASS 

F-9 

F-11 

F-13 

F-15 

F-17 

F-19 

4% Union Proposal 

1YR 1YR 

1 2 
1YR 

3 

ATTACHMENT #1 

FIRE 
CLASSIFIED PAY SCHEDULE 

1YR 

4 
2YR 

5 
2YR 

6 
2YR 

7 
2YR 

8 
2YR 

9 
2YR 
10 

$2,653.00 $2,733.00 $2,815.00 $2,900.00 $2,987.00 $3,076.00 $3,168.00 $3,254.00 $3,361.00 $3,462.00 

$2,813.00 $2,897.00 $2,984.00 $3,073.00 $3,166.00 $3,260.00 $3,359.00 $3,459.00 $3,563.00 $3,670.00 

$2,982.00 $3,071.00 $3,163.00 $3,257.00 $3,356.00 $3,456.00 $3,560.00 $3,667.00 $3,777.00 $3,891.00 

$3,161.00 $3,25500 $3,354.00 $3,454.00 $3,558.00 $3,664.00 $3,773.00 $3,888.00 $4,004.00 $4,124.00 

$3,350.00 $3,451.00 $3,554.00 $3,661.00 $3,770.00 $3,883.00 $4,001.00 $4,120.00 $4,244.00 $4,371.00 

$3,551.00 $3,658.00 $3,767.00 $3,880.00 $3,998.00 $4,116.00 $4,240.00 $4,368.00 $4,499.00 $4,633.00 

~ 
tzJ 
{/) 

1-3 
tzJ 
~ 

H 

~ 
l'>j 

() 

g 
t"i 
tzJ 
() 
1-3 
H 

~ 

~ 
~ 
H 
~ 
H 
~ 
(j) 

):1 

~ 
~ 
1-3 

1\) 

0 

~ 
........ 
1\) 

0 

b; 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

This Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") is entered into by and between the City of 
McAlester ("City") and the International Association of Firefighters, Local 2284 ("Local"). The 
City and the Local have engaged in negotiations for a Collective Bargaining Agreement 
("CBA") for FY 2012-2013. The Local desires to increase the staffing at the Fire Department 
while the City desires to retain its management right to determine appropriate staffing levels. 
The parties have tentatively agreed to language for a CBA. To show good faith, the City will 
take action pursuant to its management right to hire a new firefighter for FY 12-13. The City 
represents that it will budget for a new firefighter position in the FY 12-13 budget and that it will 
take action to advertise and commence the hiring process for a new firefighter. The City retains 
its management right to be the sole judge of the qualifications of applicants and to render a final 
decision as to the individual selected under this MOU. 

One Time Agreement: This agreement shall not be interpreted as modifying, limiting or 
infringing on any management right(s) established by any CBA before, on or after the date of 
execution of this agreement. This agreement is solely a memorialization of the City's 
representation (and the Local's reliance thereon) that it will exercise its management right to hire 
a new employee so that the CBA for FY 12-13 can be finalized and agreed to. This MOU does 
not establish mandatory or minimum staffing levels and does not establish an obligation of the 
City to hire any employees beyond the one individual who may be selected and does not 
establish any obligation for any future fiscal years. The parties agree that the terms of this MOU 
may not be introduced as evidence at any future proceeding with the exception of a proceeding 
before the PERB alleging that the City made the above representation in bad faith (i.e. that the 
City made the representation with no intention of fulfilling it). 

Entered into this __ day of ___________ , 201 

CITY 

Pete Stasiak 
City Manager 

LOCAL 

Mike Caniglia 
Local President 



McAlester City Council 

AGENDA REPORT 

Meeting Date: September 11, 2012 Item Number: 6 

Department: City Manager 

Prepared By: Peter J. Stasiak Account Code: 

Date Prepared: September 4, 2012 Budgeted Amount: 

Exhibits: 1 

Subject 
Final review of Marketing Alliance Agreement with City Attorney changes and comments. 

Recommendation 

Discussion 
This agreement was approved at City Council Meeting August 28, 2012, subject to the City Attorney review of 
changes and comments. It was requested by Council to bring back the Agreement for final review with the City 
Attorney recommended changes. 

Approved By 

Department Head 

City Manager 

Initial 

P. Stasiak 

Date 

09/04112 

Page 1 of 1 



P.O. BOX 578 • 1ST & WASHINGTON • McALESTER, OKLAHOMA 74502 • 918 423-9300 • FAX 421-4971 • www.cityofmcalester.com 

City Manager Report to the Council 

September 11, 2012 

Business 

• The Street Department has completed 14th. Street between Carl Albert Parkway 
and Washington. This project entailed new drainage culverts, cement curbs and 
gutters and concrete resurfacing. The street will be open for traffic the week of 
September 10, 2012. The Street crews will now focus on asphalt resurfacing in the 
neighborhoods as long as the asphalt plant remains open for the season. 

• Construction update for Strong and Wyandotte signalization. The signal arms and 
controller have been delivered. Crews will be hanging the arms this week along 
with the installation of the control box. The crews will also be reconstructing the 
comers of the intersection for handicap ramps to meet ADA requirements. The 
anticipated completion for signalization is the week of September 10, 2012. 

• The staff met with representatives from ODOT and the Railroad at the intersection 
of Main St. and Ottawa. The Railroad crossing on Ottawa has been determined to 
be the second most dangerous Railroad crossing in the state. The Railroad is 
planning to install crossing arms along with flashing lights at the site. The 
challenge becomes the traffic lights at the comer of Main Street and Ottawa. These 
signals require upgrading to synchronize with the Railroad crossing. We will be 
working closely with ODOT and the Railroad in the future to resolve this issue. 
UPDATE: I spoke with Anthony Echelle, ODOT Division Engineer about the 
possibility of upgrading the signalization. He is going to research why this signal 
was installed. He will be looking at this from two approaches: (1) is the signal 
necessary and (2) if the signal is necessary, how can ODOT assist with the 
upgrades. 

• The drainage study for 9th. and Illinois has been received from Meshak and 
Associates. The Public Works Department has issued its comments on the study 
and these elements have been incorporated in the final draft. Staff will be 
reviewing the proposal for completeness and the study will be available the week 
of September 10, 2012. The report identifies six problems in the drainage area and 
incorporates recommendations for solving the drainage problems. 



• Met with Patrick H. Barkley, Regional Program Director for EagleMed. EagleMed 
is the helicopter servicing company for MRHC. EagleMed will be taking over air 
ambulance service for McAlester beginning December 1, 2012. They have 
purchased a new 2012 helicopter to be based here in McAlester. They are 
currently doing a feasibility study to determine the need for a fixed wing aircraft. 
EagleMed had toured the McAlester Airport to determine there needs if a fixed 
wing aircraft is based in McAlester. The City has land available to the south of the 
existing hangars if a hangar is necessary for their operations. If EagleMed brings 
in a fixed wing aircraft, there employment base in Mcalester could reach 24 
employees. 

• I have been in discussions with DEQ on the National Guard Armory remediation. 
DEQ has completed the initial environmental assessment. Asbestos is present in 
the floor tile and mastic of the main building. Lead based paint is present on the 
armory windows, doors, parking stops, floors, stair rails, trim and exterior siding 
of the main building. Elevated levels of lead dust is present on the floors. Lead 
dust is also present in outbuildings 2, 3, and 5. Asbestos is present in out buildings 
5 and 7. DEQ estimates that the project will be bid this month, with full 
remediation of the main building to be complete in one year. The outbuildings will 
be bid separately and DEQ does not have a date for full remediation at this time. 

• Demolitions: The City Council previously voted to demolish 7 structures in the 
City of McAlester. This project is out for bids and bids will be opened on 
September 12, 2012. 

Labor Negotiations 

• The City received three (3) new grievances from the FOP. 
1. Officer Robert Young, letter of reprimand for acting in a manner that brings 

discredit to the department. 
2. Officer Charles Rogers written reprimand for his alleged conduct during an 

arrest. 
3. Officer Sterling Taylor written reprimand and ten days off for his alleged 

conduct during an arrest. 

Miscellaneous 

• Attended a seminar in Tulsa on Health Care Reform and the next steps put on by 
McAfee & Taft. 



JULY 

NUMBER 
DESCRIPTION PERMITS 

RESIDENTIAL: 
New Construction 4 
Remodel 3 
Additions 
Mobile Homes (Modulars) 

Total Residential ?.. 

COMMERCIAL: 
New Construction 2 
Remodel 1 
Additions 
Storage Buildings 

Total Commercial ~ 

TOTAL JULY 2012 10 

NOTES: 
Commercial - McDonald's 

FEES 
VALUATION COLLECTED 

$ 570,000 $ 3,983 
43,650 286 

$ 613,650 $ 4,269 

1,020,000 3,610 
7,000 40 

$ 1,027,000 $ 3,650 

$ 1,640,650 $ 7,919 

CITY OF MCALESTER 
BUILDING PERMITS 

Jul-12 

YEAR-TO-DATE 

NUMBER FEES 
PERMITS VALUATION COLLECTED 

Q $ - $ 

Q $ - $ 

Q $ - $ 



AUGUST 

NUMBER FEES 
DESCRIPTION PERMITS VALUATION COLLECTED 

RESIDENTIAL: 
New Construction 2 $ 190,000 $ 1,733 
Remodel 4 202,900 456 
Additions 
Mobile Homes (Modulars) 

Total Residential §. $ 392,900 $ 2,189 

COMMERCIAL: 
New Construction 2 1,350,000 5,010 
Remodel 
Additions 1 60,000 352 
Storage Buildings 

Total Commercial ~ $ 1,410,000 $ 5,362 

TOTAL AUGUST 2012 ~ ~ 118021900 ~ 71551 

NOTES: 
Commercial - Medical Building - Strong Blvd. 

My Dentist- George Nigh Expressway 

CITY OF MCALESTER 
BUILDING PERMITS 

Aug-12 

YEAR-TO-DATE 

NUMBER FEES 
PERMITS VALUATION COLLECTED 

6 $ 760,000 $ 5,716 
7 246,550 742 

13 $ 1,006,550 $ 6,458 

4 2,370,000 8,620 
1 7,000 40 
1 60,000 352 

§. $ 2,437,000 $ 9,012 

19 $ 3,443,550 $ 15,470 



Council Chambers 
Municipal Building 
August 28, 2012 

The McAlester Airport Authority met in a Regular session on Tuesday, August 28, 2012, 
at 6:00P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted August 27, 2012. 

Present: 

Absent: 
Presiding: 

Weldon Smith, John Titsworth, Travis Read, Robert Karr, Sam Mason, 
Buddy Garvin & Steve Harrison 
None 
Steve Harrison, Chairman 

A motion was made by Mr. Smith and seconded by Mr. Titsworth to approve the 
following: 

• Approval of the Minutes from the August 14, 2012 Regular Meeting of the 
McAlester Airport Authority. (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, regarding claims ending 
August 21, 2012. (Toni Ervin, Chiefl:' .... inamia! Officer) In the amount of $10,145.89 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 3, an Ordinance amending 
Ordinance No. 2425 which established the budget for fiscal year 2012-2013; 
repealing all conflicting ordinances; providing for a severability clause; and 
declaring an emergency. Toni Ervin, ChiefFinanda! Officer) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 4, authorizing a change in the 
rental fee for Bren Air Inc. from 5.0% of gross fuel sales to a flat rate of 
$.10/ gallon of fuel pumped at the McAlester Regional Airport. (Peter]. S tmiak, City 
Manager) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 12, authorizing the submittal 
of Certification for Competitive Bid and/or Contract with the Oklahoma 
Department of Commerce. (Peter]. Stasiak, City Manager) 

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Trustees Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read & Chairman Harrison 
NAY: None 

Chairman Harrison declared the motion carried. 



There being no further business to come before the Authority, Mr. Smith moved for the 
meeting to be adjourned, seconded by Mr. Titsworth. 

There was no discussion and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Trustees Karr, Garvin, Mason, Smith, Titsworth, Read & Chairman Harrison 
NAY: None 

Chairman Harrison declared the motion carried. 

ATTEST: Steve Harrison, Chairman 

Cora Middleton, Secretary 

2 



Council Chambers 
Municipal Building 
August 28, 2012 

The McAlester Public Works Authority met in a Regular session on Tuesday, August 28, 2012, 
at 6:00P.M. after proper notice and agenda was posted August 27, 2012. 

Present: 

Absent: 
Presiding: 

Weldon Smith, John Titsworth, Travis Read, Robert Karr, 
Sam Mason, Buddy Garvin & Steve Harrison 
None 
Steve Harrison, Chairman 

A motion was made by Mr. Garvin and seconded by Mr. Mason to approve the following: 

• Approval of the Minutes from the August 14, 2012 Regular Meeting of the McAlester 
Public Works Authority (Cora Middleton, City Clerk) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item D, regarding claims ending August 
21, 2012. (Toni Ervin, Chi~fFinanrial Officer) In the amount of $240,172.00 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 8, the final Contractor's Pay Estimate 
No. 8 for the Water Treatment Plant Filter and Clearwell Improvements. (David Medlry, 
Dim-tor rif Utilities) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 9, bids that were opened on Tuesday, 
August 14, 2012, for the 2010 CDBG Water and Sewer Improvements Project. One 
Contractor submitted a bid, C.S. Day & Associates, LLC of Tahlequah, Oklahoma. The 
bid was in the amount of $325,190.00. Due to the bid being considerably higher than the 
City's budgeted amount and the receipt of only one bidder, the Engineer, Mehlburger 
Brawley, and the Utility Department recommends rejection of bid and direction to re-bid. 
{Datlid Medlry, Director rifUtilitiej) 

• Confirm action taken on City Council Agenda Item 10, authorizing a water purchase 
contract to Pliant, LLC a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Berry Plastics referred to as a 
"Wholesale Customer". (Peter]. Stmiak, City Manager) 

There was no discussion, and the vote was taken as follows: 

AYE: Trustees Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Harrison 
NAY: None 

Chairman Harrison declared the motion carried. 



There being no further business to come before the Authority, Mr. Garvin moved for the meeting 
to be adjourned, seconded by Mr. Mason. There was no discussion and the vote was taken as 
follows: 

AYE: Trustees Smith, Titsworth, Read, Karr, Garvin, Mason & Harrison 
NAY: None 

Chairman Harrison declared the motion carried. 

ATTEST: Steve Harrison, Chairman 

Cora Middleton, Secretary 

2 


	Agenda City Council Regular Session, September 11, 2012

	Item A, Minutes City Coucil Regular Session, August 28, 2012

	Item B, Claims from August 22, 2012 thru September 4, 2012

	Item C,D,E,F, Appointments and re-appointments to the Tree Board

	Item 1, Resolution by Gaines Creek Association

	Item 2, Budget amendment FY2012-2013

	Item 3, Amending ordinance 2235, Fixing Water Rates

	Item 4, Award bid for New and unused One Ton Truck

	Item 5, IAFF Contract FY2012-2013

	Item 6, Review Marketing Alliance Agreement

	City Manager's Report

	Minutes McAlester Airport Authority Regular Session, August 28, 2012

	Minutes McAlester Public Works Authority Regular Session, August 28, 2012


